
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
PACKET 

FOR

Tuesday, July 16, 2024 
Sherwood City Hall 

22560 SW Pine Street 
Sherwood, Oregon 

6:00 pm City Council Executive Session 
(Per ORS 192.660(2)(e), Real Property Transactions) 

6:30 pm City Council Work Session 

7:00 pm City Council Regular Meeting 

URA Board of Directors Meeting 
(Following the regular 7:00 pm City Council Meeting) 

This meeting will be live streamed at 
https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood 

1

https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood


Amended Agenda, Item 5.A Revised Minutes & Item 5.G Addition 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
July 16, 2024 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 
6:00 PM CITY COUNCIL EXECUTIVE SESSION 
1. ORS 192.660(2)(e), Real Property Transactions 

(Sebastian Tapia, Interim City Attorney) 
 
6:30 PM CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
 
1. Update on UGB Expansion 

(Eric Rutledge, Community Development Director) 
 
7:00 PM REGULAR SESSION 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Approval of June 18, 2024, City Council Meeting Minutes (Sylvia Murphy, City Recorder) 
B. Resolution 2024-049, Appointing Jay Walmsley to the Sherwood Planning Commission 

(Sean Conrad, Planning Manager) 
C. Resolution 2024-050, Appointing Joe Tillotson to the Sherwood Planning Commission 

(Sean Conrad, Planning Manager) 
D. Resolution 2024-051, Reappointing Steve Munsterman to the Sherwood Parks and Recreation 

Advisory Board (Kristen Switzer, Assistant City Manager) 
E. Resolution 2024-052, Appointing James Booker to the Sherwood Parks & Recreation Advisory 

Board (Kristen Switzer, Assistant City Manager) 
F. Resolution 2024-053, Appointing Tara Khodadadian to the Sherwood Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board (Kristen Switzer, Assistant City Manager) 
G. Resolution 2024-055, Appointing Barbara Leitzinger to the Sherwood parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board (Kristen Switzer, Assistant City Manager) 
 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Resolution 2024-054, Approving Ballot Title and Explanatory Statement and Submitting to the 
Voters a Proposed Charter Amendment regarding Council Compensation for Expenses 
Incurred while Conducting the City’s Business (Sebastian Tapia, Interim City Attorney) 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL  
July 16, 2024 

 
6:00 pm City Council Executive Session 
(ORS 192.660(2)(e), Real Property Transactions) 

 
6:30 pm City Council Work Session 

 
7:00 pm City Council Regular Session 

 
URA Board of Directors Meeting 

(Following the 7:00 pm City Council Mtg.) 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 SW Pine Street 
Sherwood, OR  97140 

 
This meeting will be live streamed at 

https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood  

2

https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood


Amended Agenda, Item 5.A Revised Minutes & Item 5.G Addition 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
July 16, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
A. Ordinance 2024-002, Amending sections of the Sherwood Zoning and Community 

Development Code, and adopting Chapters 3.40 and 5.36 of the Sherwood Municipal Code for 
Climate-Friendly and Equitable Communities rules (First Reading) (Joy Chang, Senior Planner) 
 

9. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
10. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
11. ADJOURN to URA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
 
 
 
How to Provide Citizen Comments and Public Hearing Testimony: Citizen comments and public hearing testimony may be provided in person, in writing, or by 
telephone. Written comments must be submitted at least 24 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting start time by e-mail to Cityrecorder@Sherwoodoregon.gov and 
must clearly state either (1) that it is intended as a general Citizen Comment for this meeting or (2) if it is intended as testimony for a public hearing, the specific public 
hearing topic for which it is intended. To provide comment by phone during the live meeting, please e-mail or call the City Recorder at Cityrecorder@Sherwoodoregon.gov 
or 503-625-4246 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting start time in order to receive the phone dial-in instructions. Per Council Rules Ch. 2 Section (V)(D)(5), Citizen 
Comments, “Speakers shall identify themselves by their names and by their city of residence.” Anonymous comments will not be accepted into the meeting record. 
 
How to Find out What's on the Council Schedule: City Council meeting materials and agenda are posted to the City web page at www.sherwoodoregon.gov, generally 
by the Thursday prior to a Council meeting. When possible, Council agendas are also posted at the Sherwood Library/City Hall and the Sherwood Post Office.  
 
To Schedule a Presentation to the Council: If you would like to schedule a presentation to the City Council, please submit your name, phone number, the subject of 
your presentation and the date you wish to appear to the City Recorder, 503-625-4246 or Cityrecorder@Sherwoodoregon.gov   
 
ADA Accommodations: If you require an ADA accommodation for this public meeting, please contact the City Recorder’s Office at (503) 625-4246 or 
Cityrecorder@Sherwoodoregon.gov at least 48 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time. Assisted Listening Devices available on site.  

3

mailto:Cityrecorder@Sherwoodoregon.gov
http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/
mailto:Cityrecorder@Sherwoodoregon.gov
mailto:Cityrecorder@Sherwoodoregon.gov


DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
June 18, 2024 
Page 1 of 9 

 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or 

June 18, 2024 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Rosener called the meeting to order at 5:33 pm. 
 
2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Tim Rosener, Council President Kim Young, Councilors Keith Mays, Taylor 

Giles, Renee Brouse, and Doug Scott. Councilor Dan Standke attended via phone. 
 
3. STAFF PRESENT: Interim City Attorney Sebastian Tapia, City Manager Pro Tem Craig Sheldon attended 

during (ORS 192.660(2)(e) only), Assistant City Manager Kristen Switzer attended during (ORS 
192.660(2)(e) only), and Community Development Director Eric Rutledge attended during (ORS 
192.660(2)(e) only). 

 
3. TOPICS: 
 

A. ORS 192.660(2)(i), Performance Evaluation 
B. ORS 192.660(2)(e), Real Property Transactions 

 
4. ADJOURN: 
 

Mayor Rosener adjourned the executive session at 6:09 pm and convened a work session. 
 
WORK SESSION 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Rosener called the meeting to order at 6:12 pm. 
 
2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Tim Rosener, Council President Kim Young, Councilors Keith Mays, Taylor 

Giles, Renee Brouse, and Doug Scott. Councilor Dan Standke attended remotely. 
 
4. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Pro Tem Craig Sheldon, Assistant City Manager Kristen Switzer, City 

Attorney Ryan Adams, Interim City Attorney Sebastian Tapia, Public Works Utility Manager Rich Sattler, 
Community Development Director Eric Rutledge, IT Director Brad Crawford, Finance Director David Bodway, 
HR Director Lydia McEvoy, Records Technician Katie Corgan, and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. 

 
3. TOPICS: 
 

A. City Manager Next Steps 

4



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
June 18, 2024 
Page 2 of 9 

Mayor Rosener recapped that City Manager Pro Tem Craig Sheldon had taken on the role of interim City 
Manager in November/December 2023. He outlined that Council had discussed going out for recruitment for 
the City Manager role in early 2024 and Council had decided to wait until after the budget season since they 
had been pleased with Mr. Sheldon’s performance thus far. Mayor Rosener asked if Council felt that Mr. 
Sheldon had done a good job in his role as the City Manager Pro Tem and did they wish to offer him the role 
permanently. He continued that if the answer was yes, did Council want to utilize a recruitment process for 
finalizing that decision or “do a hiring.” Council President Young stated that she felt Mr. Sheldon had done a 
“fantastic job” and she felt that a process was unnecessary. Councilor Scott stated he was in favor of offering 
the job to Mr. Sheldon without engaging in a recruitment process. He commented that Mr. Sheldon had had 
a “seven-month interview” and he was happy with his performance and spoke on the favorable aspects of 
hiring an in-house candidate. Mayor Rosener asked City Manager Pro Tem Sheldon if he was interested in 
permanently stepping into the role of City Manager. Mr. Sheldon replied that he was interested in taking on 
the role and commented that there were several upcoming city projects he wished to oversee. Councilor 
Mays spoke on his experience as a Councilor with different City Managers and said that the best City 
Managers he had worked with had been internal candidates. He stated that he was excited about the 
prospect of hiring another internal candidate as City Manager. Councilor Brouse stated that she supported 
offering Mr. Sheldon the position and said Mr. Sheldon brought stability and “a type of leadership this city 
needs” and stated she did not want to utilize a recruitment process. Councilor Standke stated he supported 
offering Mr. Sheldon the role of City Manager and that he did not feel it was necessary to engage in a 
recruitment process. Councilor Giles stated he supported offering Mr. Sheldon the position permanently and 
did not feel that a recruitment process was necessary. Interim City Attorney Sebastian Tapia explained that 
available processes included holding an executive session and outlined that doing so came with statutory 
requirements. Council determined that they did not wish to utilize an executive session for the hiring process. 
Mayor Rosener stated that he supported offering Mr. Sheldon the role of City Manager and expressed his 
satisfaction with the work Mr. Sheldon had done as City Manager Pro Tem. He recapped next steps and 
asked that a contract negotiation subcommittee be formed with the final contract coming back for discussion 
at a future work session. Discussion occurred and Council determined that Councilor Brouse and Mayor 
Rosener would serve on the subcommittee. Councilor Mays offered if needed. City Manager Pro Tem 
Sheldon thanked Council and city staff for their teamwork over the past six months. He stated that teamwork 
was very important to him and the city would continue to get work done.  

 
4. ADJOURN: 
 

Mayor Rosener adjourned the work session at 6:23 pm and convened a Community Enhancement Program 
(CEP) meeting. See CEP meeting records. The City Council’s regular meeting started after the CEP meeting. 

 
 
REGULAR SESSION 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Tim Rosener called the meeting to order at 7:02 pm. 

 
2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Tim Rosener, Council President Kim Young, Councilors Keith Mays, Taylor 

Giles, Renee Brouse, and Doug Scott. Councilor Dan Standke attended remotely. 
 
3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Pro Tem Craig Sheldon, Assistant City Manager Kristen Switzer, City 

Attorney Ryan Adams, Interim City Attorney Sebastian Tapia, Community Development Director Eric 
Rutledge, Public Works Utility Manager Rich Sattler, Police Chief Ty Hanlon, IT Director Brad Crawford, 
Finance Director David Bodway, HR Director Lydia McEvoy, City Engineer Jason Waters, and City Recorder 
Sylvia Murphy. 

5



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
June 18, 2024 
Page 3 of 9 

 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 

MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT YOUNG TO APPROVE THE AGENDA. SECONDED BY 
COUNCILOR BROUSE. MOTION PASSED 7:0; ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 
Mayor Rosener addressed the next agenda item. 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
A. Approval of June 4, 2024, City Council Meeting Minutes 
B. Resolution 2024-038, Reappointing Michelle Nedwek to the Sherwood Cultural Arts Commission  
C. Resolution 2024-039, Approving the City Investment Policy and Authorizing Investments  
D. Resolution 2024-040, Certifying the Provision of Certain Municipal Services in Order to Qualify 

the City to Receive State Revenues 
E. Resolution 2024-041, Authorizing the City Manager Pro Tem to execute a construction contract 

for the Downtown Streetscapes Phase 1 Furnishing Repainting Project 
F. Resolution 2024-042, Adopting the City of Sherwood Employee Handbook 2024 
G. Resolution 2024-043, Authorizing City Manager Pro Tem to sign an MOU with American Federation 

of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) Local 1777 regarding Workers 
Compensation  

H. Resolution 2024-044, Authorizing the City Manager Pro Tem to sign an MOU with Sherwood Police 
Officers Association (SPOA) Regarding Workers Compensation 
 

MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT YOUNG TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA. SECONDED 
BY COUNCILOR BROUSE. MOTION PASSED 7:0; ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 
 
Mayor Rosener addressed the next agenda item. 
 

6. CITIZEN COMMENT: 
 
Sherwood resident Jim Claus came forward and stated he was starting the procedure on exhausting 
administrative remedies and reaching finality. He spoke on correspondence with state agencies, the 
Secretary of State’s office, and waste, fraud, and abuse of public money. He referred to Cedar Brook Way 
and spoke on Constitutional Amendments and the Sherwood City Attorney. He referred to Walmart, Langers, 
and Councilor Mays. He spoke on his family’s contributions to the city over the years, property rights, ODOT, 
and the Oregon State Constitution.  
 
Sherwood resident Susan Claus came forward and stated she wished to comment on the agenda item under 
New Business, adopting the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). She referred to Cedar Brook Way 
improvements, Council goals, outside funding, and the URA. She commented that she believed that the URA 
would be funding the Cedar Brook Way improvements, and the project would be completed relatively soon. 
She continued that according to the CIP, the project timeline was now 20 years out and stated she would be 
impacted by this project. She stated that she wanted clarification on what the Cedar Brook Way 
improvements entailed and asked for more information.  

 
Mayor Rosener addressed the next agenda item.  
 

 

6



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
June 18, 2024 
Page 4 of 9 

7. PRESENTATIONS:  
 
A. Patriot Award Presentation 

 
 City Attorney Ryan Adams explained that he would be deploying with the 41st Infantry Brigade Combat Team 
and introduced Col. Peter D. Helzer, commander, 41st Infantry Brigade Combat Team, and representatives 
from ESGR (Employer Support of the Guard and Reserve) Scott Witt and Monica Ocampo. City Attorney 
Adams explained that the ESGR had nominated Sherwood City Council and City Manager Pro Tem Craig 
Sheldon for the Department of Defense’s Patriot Award and thanked Council for their support. Mr. Witt 
reported that Mayor Rosener had been awarded the Patriotic Employer Award and explained that Council 
had also received a statement of support. Mr. Witt explained that the ESGR supported military members and 
their civilian employers via community outreach events and training. He stated that the City of Sherwood had 
done an “exceptional job” and the ESGR wished to recognize the city’s support and presented Mayor 
Rosener and Council with the award. Col. Peter D. Helzer reported that he was responsible for training and 
employing over 2,000 soldiers in Oregon, and 1,300 soldiers in Washington and New Mexico. He provided 
an overview of their activities and stated that working with the community was the most rewarding aspect of 
his job. He provided an overview of their upcoming timeline for training and deployment. He stated that the 
support of employers was crucial to their success and thanked Council for their support. Mayor Rosener 
stated that as a veteran, he understood the commitment it took to serve and the support that was needed 
from one’s family. He stated he appreciated what they did and thanked them for their service. Council 
President Young thanked them for protecting the country. Councilor Giles stated that their work was 
incredibly important and said he looked forward to City Attorney Adams’s return. Councilor Brouse thanked 
them and wished them a safe deployment. Councilor Scott stated that it was “no question” whether to support 
Mr. Adams and stated that he appreciated Mr. Adams’ service and his service to the city. Councilor Mays 
thanked them for their service and wished them a safe deployment. Councilor Standke wished them good 
luck and stated he looked forward to Mr. Adams’ return. Mayor Rosener read aloud a list of the City of 
Sherwood employees who had also served.  
 
Mayor Rosener addressed the next agenda item. 
 

 
8. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
A. Resolution 2024-045, Adopting the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for FY2024-25 
 
City Manager Pro Tem Craig Sheldon provided background information and explained that many funding 
sources required that a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) be adopted before funds could be spent. He stated 
that having a CIP was a precursor to the expenditure of System Development Charges (SDCs) and revenue 
from sources outside the city. He outlined that the CIP did not obligate funds and was a list of projects that 
combined the input from City Council, advisory committees, and staff into one document. He reported that 
an annual revision of the CIP was required to adjust to changing priorities and circumstances. Mr. Sheldon 
explained that the financial impacts of this resolution had been considered within the City Manager’s 
proposed 2024-25 budget, which had been approved by the Budget Committee. Councilor Scott referred to 
the five-year timeline of the CIP list and stated that it was his understanding that the projects listed under the 
current year were more concrete in their timelines than projects listed further out. He continued that the 
projects listed further out were placeholders in order for staff and Council to continue to work towards making 
them a reality, but they were not a promise. City Manager Pro Tem Sheldon replied that was correct and 
explained that staff updated the list as the project timelines came closer. Council President Young 
commented that the CIP list could change depending on Council’s goals. She referred to Susan Claus’ 

7



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
June 18, 2024 
Page 5 of 9 

comments regarding a more detailed CIP list and asked why the CIP document had been reduced in its 
detail. Mr. Sheldon explained that the 1-year and 5-year CIP list was what staff had brought forward in the 
last several years, but there was a much longer 20-year CIP document that staff still maintained. He 
commented that the 20-year CIP document could be presented to Council instead. Council President Young 
asked that the public have access to the 20-year CIP document.  

 
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR MAYS TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2024-045, ADOPTING THE CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) FOR FY2024-25. SECONDED BY COUNCIL PRESIDENT YOUNG.  
 
Councilor Scott stated that the TSP (Transportation System Plan) would be updated soon, and said that 
citizens would be able to provide feedback on the TSP.  
 
MOTION PASSED 7:0; ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 
Mayor Rosener addressed the next agenda item and the City Recorder read aloud the public hearings 
statement. 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
A. Resolution 2024-046, Declaring the City’s Election to Receive State Shared Revenues 

 
Finance Director David Bodway presented the “State Shared Revenue" PowerPoint presentation (see record, 
Exhibit A) and explained that the state shared certain revenue with municipalities that chose to accept it with 
the condition that the municipality hold a public hearing on the use of the funds and the municipality must 
have levied a property tax in the preceding year. He outlined that the city had levied a property tax last year 
and also held a public hearing on May 23rd during the Budget Committee meeting and this hearing served 
as the second public hearing. Mr. Bodway provided an overview of pages 2-3 of the presentation and 
reported that Sherwood had a certified population of 20,868 residents as of December 15, 2023. He outlined 
that property taxes accounted for about 45% of the General Fund; Intergovernmental was 8%; Franchise 
Fees was 15%; Charges for Services was 19%; and Fines, Interest & Other was 13% for a total of $18.8 
million. He reported that the city expected to receive $805,200 in the General Fund and $1.7 million in the 
Street Fund. He stated that money that went into the General Fund was largely unrestricted with the exception 
of the local tax for the marijuana tax. He explained that the marijuana tax funds were used to help support 
police departments. He stated that the money that went into the Street Fund was restricted to street projects. 
Mayor Rosener opened the public hearing and asked for public comment on the proposed resolution. Hearing 
none, Mayor Rosener closed the public hearing and asked for discussion or a motion from Council. 

 
MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT YOUNG TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2024-046, DECLARING THE 
CITY’S ELECTION TO RECEIVE STATE SHARED REVENUES. SECONDED BY COUNCILOR BROUSE. 
MOTION PASSED 7:0; ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 
 
Mayor Rosener addressed the next agenda item. 

 
B. Resolution 2024-047, Adopting a Schedule of Fees as authorized by the city zoning and 

community development code, establishing fees for miscellaneous city services and establishing 
an effective date 
 

8



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
June 18, 2024 
Page 6 of 9 

Finance Director David Bodway explained that this resolution was to adopt a schedule of fees as authorized 
by the city’s zoning and community development code and established fees for miscellaneous city services 
and established an effective date. Mr. Bodway explained that each year during the budget process, Finance 
asked department supervisors to review the fees that they charged. He provided an overview of the changes 
and reported that there would be a 2% increase, as approved in Resolution 2017-008, which was the 
maximum amount allowed since CPI was 3.76%. He continued that there would be a 6.43% increase, as 
previously approved in Resolution 2018-049, for SDC and TDT fees. He reported that other changes included 
miscellaneous new fees and minor changes and provided a brief overview of some of the miscellaneous 
changes. He noted that there were some errors within the fee schedule, including incorrect column headings. 
He noted that on page 233 of the City Council meeting packet under item B, “Sewer SDC” the heading of 
“Reimbursement” should read “Reimbursement Charge” instead. The heading of "Flow Count” should read 
"Improvement Charge” and the final column should have a heading of "Flow Count.” He noted that on page 
180 of the City Council meeting packet several of the fees had not been updated under item J, “Single 
Production Rentals.” He explained that the column should be updated to include a 5% increase, an increase 
to $473 under “Partial day (5 hours or less)” instead of the listed $450. An increase to $630 under “Full day 
(up to 10 hours)” instead of the listed $600, and an increase to $840 under “Extended day (up to 16 hours)” 
instead of the listed $800. Finance Director Bodway explained that with Council’s approval, he would correct 
those errors after this meeting prior to posting the documents on July 1st. Council President Young asked if 
the “non-resident” figures would also be updated, and Assistant City Manager Kristen Switzer replied that 
they would be updated. Mayor Rosener asked if Council should approve the proposed resolution at this 
meeting with the cited adjustments and Finance Director Bodway replied that was correct. He explained that 
the resolution should be approved tonight with the noted adjustments so the fee schedules could go into 
effect on July 1st. Mayor Rosener asked if Council was clear on the noted changes and Council signaled their 
approval. Mayor Rosener opened the public hearing and asked for public comment on the proposed 
resolution. 

Sherwood resident Neil Shannon came forward and asked that Council reconsider the fees cited in Section 
9 – Planning, Item B – Appeals of a Type III or Type IV action. He spoke on the fees for a Type III and Type 
IV action and stated that the fees did not take into consideration the status of the individual in the matter 
when filing the action. He stated that he was involved in a Type III hearing several years ago and stated that 
he felt that there were several issues brought forward that should be reviewed by the Planning Commission. 
He stated that he was unable to appeal the decision due to the cost. He stated that the cost of the appeal 
was significant and burdensome for those who were not developers and that local residents or HOAs were 
those most likely to oppose an application. He asked that an adjustment be made to the fee schedule to 
allow for local residents to appeal a decision for a subdevelopment. He suggested that the fee for the appeal 
by the applicant remain the same but called for a significant reduction to the fee schedule for an appeal by 
the opponent to the subdevelopment. He suggested a $250 fee, the same as a Type I and Type II appeal. 
Mayor Rosener asked for additional questions from Council. Councilor Giles asked if the higher fees were to 
keep staff from being inundated with appeals and asked what the city’s actual costs were for appeal hearings. 
Community Development Director Eric Rutledge explained that a Type III or Type IV appeal would be 
reviewed by an attorney, which added to the cost of the appeal. He continued that the cost also included 
additional staff time to allow staff to prepare for the hearing. Councilor Giles asked what options there were 
to lower that cost. Mr. Rutledge replied that it would really depend on the complexity of the case and reiterated 
that the largest portion of the appeal cost was the cost for legal review. He reported he could review the last 
five years of appeals that came before City Council and LUBA and determine an average appeal cost. 
Councilor Giles asked for a best guess and Mr. Rutledge replied that it would depend on the application type 
and provided an overview of the probable average cost for an appeal based on application type. Councilor 
Giles commented he understood but he wanted to make the process fairer for individuals who wished to file 
an appeal. Community Development Director Rutledge voiced that from a planning and economic 

9



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
June 18, 2024 
Page 7 of 9 

development/housing development standpoint, if the appeal barrier was set too low, it could be used to 
significantly slow down development; and it was important to keep that potential consequence of lowering 
the appeal barrier in mind. Mayor Rosener commented that he felt it was worth looking into the city’s options 
for adjusting the process. Councilor Mays stated that he was not in favor of altering the proposed fee schedule 
and explained that if it were altered, it would “open up the floodgates” and would slow down development. 
He referred to a Type III action and stated that individuals could approach the City Manager or Council within 
the appeal window. Councilor Scott commented that he was sympathetic to the issue but felt lowering the 
fee would result in the city being inundated with appeals. He stated he supported passing the fee schedule 
for this year and said that a review of the process could be done between now and next year. He referred to 
the hearings process and stated that citizen comment was permitted during the hearings. Councilor Standke 
recapped that this topic had been discussed at Planning Commission meetings and stated that he supported 
conducting a review of the process to determine if it could be made more equitable. Councilor Brouse asked 
if it was possible to remove the fee from the fee schedule from voting in order to continue to discuss the topic. 
Council President Young replied that the fee schedule could be updated at any time and suggested that 
Council approve the fee schedule at this meeting and have staff come back at a later date to discuss it. 
Councilor Scott commented that it would be relatively easy to collect the necessary fees to appeal if there 
was a large consensus of one’s neighbors. Councilor Giles stated that he supported the fee schedule if a 
work session could be scheduled to discuss a potential amendment. Mayor Rosener stated that it was 
important to get the fee schedule approved before July 1st and commented he was happy to hold a work 
session to discuss the topic. Mayor Rosener closed the public hearing and asked for a motion from Council. 

 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR MAYS TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2024-047, ADOPTING A SCHEDULE OF 
FEES AS AUTHORIZED BY THE CITY ZONING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE, 
ESTABLISHING FEES FOR MISCELLANEOUS CITY SERVICES AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE AND CORRECTING SCRIVENER’S ERRORS AS NOTED BY STAFF. SECONDED BY COUNCIL 
PRESIDENT YOUNG. MOTION PASSED 6:1; MAYOR ROSENER, COUNCIL PRESIDENT YOUNG, 
COUNCILORS SCOTT, STANDKE, MAYS, AND GILES VOTED IN FAVOR. COUNCILOR BROUSE 
OPPOSED. 

 
Mayor Rosener addressed the next agenda item. 

 
 

C. Resolution 2024-048, Adopting the FY2024-25 budget of the City of Sherwood, making 
appropriations, imposing and categorizing taxes, and authorizing the City Manager to take such 
action necessary to carry out the adopted budget 
 

Finance Director Bodway outlined that the proposed resolution would adopt the 2024-2025 fiscal year budget 
for the City of Sherwood. He recapped that the Budget Committee received the budget message, reviewed 
the proposed budget, and heard public comment at their May 16th meeting. He reported that the Budget 
Committee approved the proposed budget at their May 23rd meeting. Notice of the approved budget had 
been published in accordance with Oregon local budget law and stated that this meeting was the final step 
of the budget process. Mayor Rosener asked for public comment, hearing none, Mayor Rosener closed the 
public hearing and asked for additional questions. Councilor Mays gave his kudos to Finance Director 
Bodway, City Manager Pro Tem Sheldon, the senior leadership team, and Budget Committee for a “great 
budget process.” He stated he appreciated the collaborative approach and how mindful everyone was of 
Council’s goals. Mayor Rosener stated his agreement with Councilor Mays’ comments and gave his kudos 
to the Budget Committee.  

 
MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT YOUNG TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2024-048, ADOPTING THE 

10



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
June 18, 2024 
Page 8 of 9 

FY2024-25 BUDGET OF THE CITY OF SHERWOOD, MAKING APPROPRIATIONS, IMPOSING AND 
CATEGORIZING TAXES, AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO TAKE SUCH ACTION 
NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT THE ADOPTED BUDGET. SECONDED BY COUNCILOR MAYS. MOTION 
PASSED 7:0; ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 
Mayor Rosener addressed the next agenda item.  

 
10. CITY MANAGER REPORT: 

 
City Manager Pro Tem Craig Sheldon reported that the city had held a joint press conference with EPA 
Region 10 representatives on June 18th sharing information on the $5 million EPA grant to clean up the 
tannery site. He reported city offices would be closed on June 19th in observance of the Juneteenth holiday. 
He thanked city staff that had worked the Crusin’ Sherwood event.  
 
Community Development Director Rutledge introduced Sean Conrad, the new Planning Manager and 
provided background. Mr. Conrad stated that he had been doing land use planning for 23 years in cities and 
counties in California, Washington, and Montana. He stated that he preferred to work with municipalities 
similar in size to Sherwood and expressed that he was happy to be here. Council welcomed Mr. Conrad to 
the city.  
 
Police Chief Ty Hanlon reported on new Police Department reserves and stated that the city now had four 
reserve officers. He reported that the official swearing in ceremony would be held on June 26th. City Manager 
Pro Tem Sheldon reported that there would not be a City Council meeting held on July 2nd.  
 
Mayor Rosener addressed the next agenda item. 

 
11. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 
Councilor Giles reported that the Library Advisory Board would not meet in June and provided an overview 
of upcoming library events. He reported that the Sherwood School District had held their budget meeting and 
he congratulated new graduates. 
 
Councilor Brouse reported that the Senior Advisory Board did not meet, and the Housing Advisory Committee 
would meet next week. She thanked city staff who had worked the Cruisin’ Sherwood event.  
 
Councilor Mays reported that the WRWC had met where they heard updates on the regional water project. 
He encouraged any Councilors and city staff interested in receiving a tour of the new water treatment plant 
to reach out to City Manager Pro Tem Sheldon. He reported that the Cultural Arts Commission had met on 
June 17th. He reported that the Art Walk would be held on June 20th. 
 
Councilor Scott requested new microphones for City Council meetings. He stated that the Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Board currently had two openings and reported that they would interview the five 
applicants soon. He thanked HR Director Lydia McEvoy for her work on the new employee manual.  
 
Councilor Standke reported that the Planning Commission did not meet last week but would meet this week 
to hold a work session to discuss annexation policies. He congratulated 503 Uncorked on their 10th 
anniversary. He thanked city staff who had worked the Cruisin’ Sherwood event. 
 
Council President Young reported that KOIN news had recently highlighted city departments and spoke with 

11



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
June 18, 2024 
Page 9 of 9 

Economic Development Manager Bruce Coleman. She reported that she had attended the joint press 
conference with the EPA and provided a recap of the meeting.  
 
Mayor Rosener spoke on the EPA grant and his excitement for the tannery site cleanup. He reported he 
attended the Metro Policy Advisory Council meeting where Community Development Director Eric Rutledge 
and Senior Planner Joy Chang gave a presentation on Sherwood West. He reported he attended the Urban 
Growth Report roundtable meeting. He reported he attended the most recent WCCC meeting. He spoke on 
MSTIP funds the city had applied for and reported that the Board of County Commissioners would soon vote 
on the city’s application.  
 

12. ADJOURN: 
 

Mayor Rosener adjourned the regular session at 8:25 pm. 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
              
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder    Tim Rosener, Mayor 

 

 

 

12



Resolution 2024-049, Staff Report 
July 16, 2024 
Page 1 of 1  
 

City Council Meeting Date: July 16, 2024 
 

 Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council  
 
FROM: Sean Conrad, Planning Manager  
Through: Eric Rutledge, Community Development Director and Craig Sheldon, City Manager 

Pro Tem 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution 2024-049, appointing Jay Walmsley to the Sherwood Planning 

Commission  
 
 
 
Issue:  
Should the Council appoint Jay Walmsley to the Sherwood Planning Commission? 
 
Background:  
A Planning Commission vacancy exists due to a Planning Commissioner moving outside the city 
limits of Sherwood. Jay Walmsley is seeking appointment for the remaining time for position #1, 
a two-year term expiring in June 2026. Dan Standke, Council Liaison to the Planning Commission, 
Planning Commission Chair, Jean Simson, Community Development Director Eric Rutledge, and 
Planning Manager Sean Conrad recommended to Mayor Rosener that Jay Walmsley be 
appointed to the Commission to fill the remaining time for position #1. Mayor Rosener has 
recommended this appointment to Council. In accordance with Council Rules, all such 
appointments are subject to City Council's approval by resolution. 
 
Financial Impacts:  
There are no financial impacts from this proposed action. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully recommends City Council adoption of Resolution 2024-049, appointing Jay 
Walmsley to the Sherwood Planning Commission. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

13



DRAFT 

Resolution 2024-049 
July 16, 2024 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-049 

APPOINTING JAY WALMSLEY TO THE SHERWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
WHEREAS, a Planning Commission vacancy exists in position #1 due to a vacancy;  and 

WHEREAS, the City posted a request for applications on the City website and announced the vacancy 
before both the Planning Commission and the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, Council Liaison Dan Standke, Planning Commission Chair Jean Simson, Community 
Development Director Eric Rutledge, and Planning Manager Sean Conrad recommended to Mayor 
Rosener that Jay Walmsley be appointed to fill said vacancy; and  

WHEREAS, Mayor Tim Rosener has recommended to Council that Jay Walmsley be appointed; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with Council Rules of Procedure, all such appointments are subject to the 
approval of the City Council by resolution.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  The Sherwood City Council hereby appoints Jay Walmsley to fill position #1, a two-year 
partial term on the Planning Commission expiring at the end of June 2026. 

Section 2.  This resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 

Duly passed by the City Council this 16th of July 2024. 

 
        __________________________ 
         Tim Rosener, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
________________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

14



Resolution 2024-050, Staff Report 
July 16, 2024 
Page 1 of 1  
 

City Council Meeting Date: July 16, 2024 
 

 Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council  
 
FROM: Sean Conrad, Planning Manager  
Through: Eric Rutledge, Community Development Director and Craig Sheldon, City Manager 

Pro Tem 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution 2024-050, appointing Joe Tillotson to the Sherwood Planning 

Commission  
 
 
 
Issue:  
Should the Council appoint Joe Tillotson to the Sherwood Planning Commission? 
 
Background:  
A Planning Commission vacancy exists in position #2 due to Commissioner Capko’s term expiring 
in June 2024. Joe Tillotson is seeking appointment for position #2, a four-year term expiring in 
June 2028. Dan Standke, Council Liaison to the Planning Commission, Planning Commission 
Chair, Jean Simson, Community Development Director Eric Rutledge, and Planning Manager 
Sean Conrad recommended to Mayor Rosener that Joe Tillotson be appointed to the Commission 
to fill position #2. Mayor Rosener has recommended this appointment to Council. In accordance 
with Council Rules, all such appointments are subject to City Council's approval by resolution. 
 
Financial Impacts:  
There are no financial impacts from this proposed action. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully recommends City Council adoption of Resolution 2024-050, appointing Joe 
Tillotson to the Sherwood Planning Commission. 
 

15



DRAFT 

Resolution 2024-050 
July 16, 2024 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-050 

APPOINTING JOE TILLOTSON TO THE SHERWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
WHEREAS, a Planning Commission vacancy exists in position #2 due to a vacancy;  and 

WHEREAS, the City posted a request for applications on the City website and announced the vacancy 
before both the Planning Commission and the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, Council Liaison Dan Standke, Planning Commission Chair Jean Simson, Community 
Development Director Eric Rutledge, and Planning Manager Sean Conrad recommended to Mayor 
Rosener that Joe Tillotson be appointed to fill said vacancy; and  

WHEREAS, Mayor Tim Rosener has recommended to Council that Joe Tillotson be appointed; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with Council Rules of Procedure, all such appointments are subject to the 
approval of the City Council by resolution.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   The Sherwood City Council hereby appoints Joe Tillotson to fill position #2, a four-year term 
on the Planning Commission expiring at the end of June 2028. 

Section 2.  This resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 

Duly passed by the City Council this 16th of July 2024. 

 
        __________________________ 
         Tim Rosener, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
________________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

16



Resolution 2024-051, Staff Report 
July 16, 2024 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: July 16, 2024 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Kristen Switzer, Assistant City Manager 
Through: Craig Sheldon, City Manager Pro Tem 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2024-051, Reappointing Steve Munsterman to the Sherwood Parks and 

Recreation Advisory Board  
 
 
Issue: 
Shall the City Council reappoint Steve Munsterman to the Sherwood Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Board? 
 
Background: 
Steve Munsterman held position #9 on the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board and his term expired in 
June 2024 and he is seeking reappointment. 
 
Chair David Schierman, Council Liaison Doug Scott, and Staff Liaison Kristen Switzer recommended to 
Mayor Rosener that Steve Munsterman be reappointed to the Board to fill position #9 which expires in 
June 2027. The Mayor has recommended this reappointment to City Council. In accordance with City 
Council Rules of Procedure, all such appointments are subject to the approval of City Council by resolution. 
 
Financial Impacts: 
There are no additional financial impacts as a result of approval of this resolution. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully recommends City Council approval of Resolution 2024-051, Reappointing Steve 
Munsterman to the Sherwood Parks and Recreation Advisory Board. 
 
 

17



DRAFT 

Resolution 2024-051 
July 16, 2024 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2024-051 

 
REAPPOINTING STEVE MUNSTERMAN TO THE SHERWOOD PARKS AND RECREATION 

ADVISORY BOARD 
 
WHEREAS, a vacancy exists within position #9 on the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board; and 
 
WHEREAS, Steve Munsterman’s term expired on June 30, 2024 and he has requested reappointment; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended to City Council that Steve Munsterman be reappointed; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Council Rules of Procedure, all such appointments are subject to the 
approval of the City Council by resolution. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Sherwood City Council hereby reappoints Steve Munsterman to position #9 of the 

Sherwood Parks and Recreation Advisory Board for a term expiring at the end of June 2027. 
 
Section 2. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption.  
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 16th of July 2024. 
 
 
              
        Tim Rosener, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 
 
 
 
 
 

18



Resolution 2024-052, Staff Report 
July 16, 2024 
Page 1 of 1  
 

City Council Meeting Date: July 16, 2024 
 

 Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council  
 
FROM: Kristen Switzer, Assistant City Manager 
Through: Craig Sheldon, City Manager Pro Tem 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution 2024-052, Appointing James Booker to the Sherwood Parks & 

Recreation Advisory Board  
 
 
 
Issue:  
Should the Council appoint James Booker to the Sherwood Parks & Recreation Advisory Board? 
 
Background:  
A vacancy exists on the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board, position #4, due to term expiration 
in June 2024. The City advertised the vacancy and received 6 applications. James Booker 
submitted an application for consideration of appointment and was interviewed by the interview 
panel. The interview panel consisted of Doug Scott, City Council Liaison, David Scheirman, Chair 
and Kristen Switzer, Staff Liaison. The panel unanimously recommended appointment of James 
Booker to fill position #4, which will expire in June 2027. The Mayor has recommended this 
appointment to Council. In accordance with City Council Rules of Procedure, all such 
appointments are subject to the approval of City Council by resolution. 
 
Financial Impacts:  
There are no financial impacts from this proposed action. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully recommends City Council adoption of Resolution 2024-052, Appointing James 
Booker to the Sherwood Parks & Recreation Advisory Board. 
  

19



DRAFT 

Resolution 2024-052 
July 16, 2024 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-052 

APPOINTING JAMES BOOKER TO THE SHERWOOD PARKS & RECREATION 
ADVISORY BOARD 

 
WHEREAS, a vacancy exists, position #4 on the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board due to term 
expiration in June 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the City advertised the vacancy on the City website, The Archer, and social media; and 

WHEREAS, James Booker applied to be appointed and was interviewed by Doug Scott, City Council 
Liaison, David Scheirman, Chair and Kristen Switzer, Staff Liaison; and 

WHEREAS, the interview panel considered all of the applicants and recommended to the Mayor that 
James Booker be appointed to fill the vacancy; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended to Council that James Booker be appointed; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with Council Rules of Procedure, all such appointments are subject to the 
approval of the City Council by resolution.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  The Sherwood City Council hereby appoints James Booker to position #4 on the Sherwood 
Parks & Recreation Advisory Board for a term expiring at the end of June 2027. 

Section 2.  This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 

Duly passed by the City Council this 16th of July 2024.  

 
        __________________________ 
        Tim Rosener, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
________________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 
 
  
  

20



Resolution 2024-053, Staff Report 
July 16, 2024 
Page 1 of 1  
 

City Council Meeting Date: July 16, 2024 
 

 Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council  
 
FROM: Kristen Switzer, Assistant City Manager 
Through: Craig Sheldon, City Manager Pro Tem 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution 2024-053, Appointing Tara Khodadadian to the Sherwood Parks 

& Recreation Advisory Board  
 
 
 
Issue:  
Should the Council appoint Tara Khodadadian to the Sherwood Parks & Recreation Advisory 
Board? 
 
Background:  
A vacancy exists on the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board, position #1, due to term expiration 
in June 2024. The City advertised the vacancy and received 6 applications. Tara Khodadadian 
submitted an application for consideration of appointment and was interviewed by the interview 
panel. The interview panel consisted of Doug Scott, City Council Liaison, David Scheirman, Chair 
and Kristen Switzer, Staff Liaison. The panel unanimously recommended appointment of Tara 
Khodadadian to fill position #1, which will expire in June 2027. The Mayor has recommended this 
appointment to Council. In accordance with City Council Rules of Procedure, all such 
appointments are subject to the approval of City Council by resolution. 
 
Financial Impacts:  
There are no financial impacts from this proposed action. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully recommends City Council adoption of Resolution 2024-053, Appointing Tara 
Khodadadian to the Sherwood Parks & Recreation Advisory Board. 

21



DRAFT 

Resolution 2024-053 
July 16, 2024 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-053 

APPOINTING TARA KHODADADIAN TO THE SHERWOOD PARKS & RECREATION 
ADVISORY BOARD 

 
WHEREAS, a vacancy exists, position #1 on the Sherwood Parks & Recreation Advisory Board due to 
term expiration in June 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the City advertised the vacancy on the City website, The Archer, and social media; and 

WHEREAS, Tara Khodadadian applied to be appointed and was interviewed by Doug Scott, City Council 
Liaison, David Scheirman, Chair and Kristen Switzer, Staff Liaison; and 

WHEREAS, the interview panel considered all of the applicants and recommended to the Mayor that 
Tara Khodadadian be appointed to fill the vacancy; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended to Council that Tara Khodadadian be appointed; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with Council Rules of Procedure, all such appointments are subject to the 
approval of the City Council by resolution.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Sherwood City Council hereby appoints Tara Khodadadian to position #1 on the 
Sherwood Parks & Recreation Advisory Board for a term expiring at the end of June 2027. 

Section 2.  This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 

Duly passed by the City Council this 16th of July 2024.  

 
        __________________________ 
        Tim Rosener, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
________________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 
 
  
  
 
  

22



Resolution 2024-055, Staff Report 
July 16, 2024 
Page 1 of 1  
 

City Council Meeting Date: July 16, 2024 
 

 Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council  
 
FROM: Kristen Switzer, Assistant City Manager 
Through: Craig Sheldon, City Manager Pro Tem 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution 2024-055, Appointing Barbara Leitzinger to the Sherwood Parks & 

Recreation Advisory Board  
 
 
 
Issue:  
Should the Council appoint Barbara Leitzinger to the Sherwood Parks & Recreation Advisory Board? 
 
Background:  
A vacancy exists on the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board, position #5, due to a midterm vacancy. The 
City advertised the vacancy and received 6 applications. Barbara Leitzinger submitted an application for 
consideration of appointment and was interviewed by the interview panel. The interview panel consisted 
of Doug Scott, City Council Liaison, David Scheirman, Chair and Kristen Switzer, Staff Liaison. The panel 
unanimously recommended appointment of Barbara Leitzinger to fill position #5, which will expire in June 
2026. The Mayor has recommended this appointment to Council. In accordance with City Council Rules 
of Procedure, all such appointments are subject to the approval of City Council by resolution. 
 
Financial Impacts:  
There are no financial impacts from this proposed action. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully recommends City Council adoption of Resolution 2024-055, Appointing Barbara 
Leitzinger to the Sherwood Parks & Recreation Advisory Board. 

23



DRAFT 

Resolution 2024-055 
July 16, 2024 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-055 

APPOINTING BARBARA LEITZINGER TO THE SHERWOOD PARKS & RECREATION 
ADVISORY BOARD 

 
WHEREAS, a vacancy exists, position #5 on the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board due to a midterm 
vacancy; and 

WHEREAS, the City advertised the vacancy on the City website, The Archer, and social media, and 

WHEREAS, Barbara Leitzinger applied to be appointed and was interviewed by Doug Scott, City Council 
Liaison, David Scheirman, Chair and Kristen Switzer, Staff Liaison; and 

WHEREAS, the interview panel considered all of the applicants and recommended to the Mayor that 
Barbara Leitzinger be appointed to fill the vacancy; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended to Council that Barbara Leitzinger be appointed; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with Council Rules of Procedure, all such appointments are subject to the 
approval of the City Council by resolution.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Sherwood City Council hereby appoints Barbara Leitzinger to position #5 on the 
Sherwood Parks & Recreation Advisory Board for a term expiring at the end of June 2026. 

Section 2.  This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 

Duly passed by the City Council this 16th of July 2024.  

 
        __________________________ 
        Tim Rosener, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
________________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 
 
  
  
 
  

24



Resolution 2024-054, Staff Report 
July 16, 2024 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: July 16, 2024 
 

Agenda Item: New Business 
 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Sebastian Tapia, Interim City Attorney 
Through: Craig Sheldon, City Manager Pro Tem 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2024-054, Approving Ballot Title and Explanatory Statement and 

Submitting to the Voters a Proposed Charter Amendment regarding Council 
Compensation for Expenses Incurred while Conducting the City’s Business   

 
 
Issue: 
Shall the City Council approve the ballot title and explanatory statement for, and submit to, the voters at 
the November 2024 election, a proposed charter amendment regarding the City Mayor and City 
Councilors’ official compensation package? 
 
Background: 
The Sherwood City Council met in public work sessions on June 4, 2024 to discuss a possible 
amendment to the City Charter as recommended by the Charter Review Committee. Staff subsequently 
prepared resolutions, ballot titles, and explanatory statements for the proposed amendment, for further 
consideration and possible approval by Council. 
 
The attached resolution, ballot title, and explanatory statement pertain to a proposed charter amendment 
regarding the mayor and city council’s official compensation package. If it is approved by Council, the 
amendment would be submitted to the voters at the November 2024 election. If it is then approved by 
voters, this measure would amend Section 37 of the City Charter by removing the sentence, “The mayor 
and councilors shall not be compensated but may be reimbursed for actual and reasonable expenses.”   
The following sentences will be added in its place, “The mayor and councilors may be compensated for 
expenses incurred while conducting the City’s business, using the same standard that applies to city 
employees.  This will be considered their official compensation package.” 
 
Financial Impacts: 
The direct financial impact of approving this resolution is the cost relating to publishing the ballot title and 
explanatory statement in a newspaper as required by City Code, estimated at approximately $500-$700 
per ballot measure.  
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully recommends Council review and consider adopting Resolution 2024-054, Approving 
Ballot Title and Explanatory Statement and Submitting to the Voters a Proposed Charter Amendment 
regarding Council Compensation for Expenses Incurred while Conducting the City’s Business. 

25



DRAFT 

Resolution 2024-054 
July 16, 2024 
Page 1 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (1 pg) and 2 (1 pg) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2024-054 

 
APPROVING BALLOT TITLE AND EXPLANATORY STATEMENT AND SUBMITTING TO THE 

VOTERS A PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENT REGARDING  
MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMPENSATION 

 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood Charter Review Committee convened as required by Section 1 of the 
Sherwood City Charter, on May 15, 2024 and recommended an amendment to the Charter to provide an 
official compensation package for the mayor and councilors when they incur expenses while conducting 
the City’s business; 
 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood City Council met in a public work session on June 4, 2024 to discuss this 
recommended amendment to the City Charter; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council further considered said amendments during a public meeting on July 16, 2024 
and has determined to submit to the voters of Sherwood a ballot measure proposing to amend the City 
Charter with regard to Mayor and Council compensation; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. An election is called for the City of Sherwood, Washington County, Oregon for the 

purpose of submitting to City voters an amendment to the City’s home rule charter 
regarding Mayor and Council compensation. 

 
Section 2. Tuesday, November 5, 2024 is designated as the date for holding the election for voting 

on the measure. 
 
Section 3. The election will be conducted by the Washington County Elections Department. 
 
Section 4. The precincts for this election will include all of the territory within the corporate limits of 

the City of Sherwood. 
 
Section 5. The Ballot Title and Explanatory Statement attached as Exhibits 1 and 2, respectively, are 

hereby approved and certified. 
 
Section 6. The City Recorder will publish the Ballot Title as required by state law. The City of 

Sherwood authorizes the City Recorder or her designee to act on behalf of the City and to 
take such further action as is necessary to carry out the intent and purposes set forth 
herein, in compliance with the applicable provisions of law. 

/ / / 
 
/ / / 
 
/ / / 
 

26



DRAFT 

Resolution 2024-054 
July 16, 2024 
Page 2 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (1 pg) and 2 (1 pg) 

Section 7. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 16th of July 2024. 
 
 
         ______________________ 
         Tim Rosener, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

27



Resolution 2024-054, EXH 1 
July 16, 2024, Page 1 of 1

BALLOT TITLE FOR INITIATIVE TO AMEND THE CITY CHARTER REGARDING COUNCIL’S COMPENSATION 
FOR EXPENSES INCURRED WHILE CONDUCTING THE CITY’S BUSINESS 

Caption:  
Amends Charter to compensate Council for City business expenses 

Question:  
Shall Council be compensated for expenses incurred while conducting the City’s business? 

Summary:  
This proposed Charter amendment would permit the mayor and city councilors to be compensated for 
expenses incurred while conducting the City’s business, using the same standard that applies to city 
employees.  The Sherwood City Charter currently states, “The mayor and councilors shall not be 
compensated but may be reimbursed for actual and reasonable expenses.”  The Charter would be 
amended to state, “The mayor and councilors may be compensated for expenses incurred while 
conducting the City’s business, using the same standard that applies to city employees.  This will be 
considered their official compensation package.” 

This measure leaves certain terms undefined, which City Council may define in an implementing 
ordinance. 

28



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

The proposed charter amendment would establish an official compensation package for the mayor 
and city councilors.   

Sherwood’s Charter states, “The mayor and councilors shall not be compensated but may be 
reimbursed for actual and reasonable expenses.” Reimbursement of expenses that are currently 
authorized is limited only to those expenses personally paid while conducting the public body’s 
business.    

Oregon ethics laws state that public officials may accept any financial benefit that is identified by 
the public body they serve as part of the official compensation package of the public official.  The 
phrase official compensation package includes the direct payment of a public official’s expenses 
by the public body, in accordance with the public body’s policies.   

This amendment to the City’s Charter would make direct payment of the mayor and councilors’ 
expenses incurred while conducting the City’s business their official compensation package.  This 
change would apply the same standards the City uses to pay city employees for similar expenses. 

Resolution 2024-054, EXH 2 
July 16, 2024, Page 1 of 1

29



Ordinance  2024-002, Staff Report 
July 5, 2024 
Page 1 of 3, with attached PC recommendation (74 pgs.) 

City Council Meeting Date: July 16, 2024 
 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing (First Reading) 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Joy L. Chang, Senior Planner 
Through: Sean Conrad, Planning Manager, Eric Rutledge, Community Development Director,  

Craig Sheldon, City Manager Pro Tem, and Sabastian Tapia, Interim City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance 2024-002, Amending sections of the Sherwood Zoning and Community 

Development Code, and adopting Chapters 3.40 and 5.36 of the Sherwood Municipal 
Code for Climate-Friendly and Equitable Communities rules (First Reading) 

 
 
Issue: 
Shall the City Council amend sections of the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code 
(SZCDC) and adopt Chapters 3.40 and 5.36 to implement Climate-Friendly and Equitable Communities 
rules?  
 
Background:  
On March 10, 2020, former Governor Kate Brown issued Executive Order 20-04, directing state agencies 
to reduce climate pollution. In July 2022, the Oregon Land Conservation and Development Commission 
(LCDC) adopted the Climate-Friendly and Equitable Communities (CFEC) rules to help meet state goals 
to reduce climate pollution, especially from transportation. The rules apply to urban metropolitan areas 
throughout Oregon. The City of Sherwood is proposing to adopt new CFEC regulations as mandated by 
the state. The proposed amendments include the following: 
 

Reduction of Parking Mandates for Development Types (OAR 660-012-0430) 
• Require no more than one parking space per unit in residential developments 
• No parking requirements for residential care/training/treatment facilities 
• No parking requirements for childcare, single-room occupancy housing, residential units smaller 

than 750 square feet, affordable housing, publicly supported housing, emergency and transitional 
shelters, and domestic violence shelters. 

 
Parking Reform Near Transit Corridors (OAR 660-012-0440) 
• Tri-Met Line 94, no parking requirements for lots or parcels within one-half mile of the transit 

corridor 
 

Parking Reform in Climate Friendly Areas (OAR 660-012-0435) 
• In the Sherwood Town Center Area, no parking requirements within the town center and on 

parcels of land within one-quarter mile distance of the Sherwood Town Center Area. 
 
Electric Vehicle Charging (EV) (OAR 660-012-0410) 
• New multi-family residential buildings with five or more residential dwelling units, and new mixed-

use buildings with five or more residential dwelling units, will be required to install EV conduits to 
accommodate 40% of all vehicle parking spaces. 

• Non-Residential Development under private ownership will be required to install EV conduits at 
no less than 20% of the vehicle parking spaces in the garage or parking area for the building.  

 
 

30



Ordinance  2024-002, Staff Report 
July 5, 2024 
Page 2 of 3, with attached PC recommendation (74 pgs.) 

Parking Regulation Improvements (OAR 660-012-0405) 
• Preferential placement of carpool/vanpool parking 
• Allow redevelopment of any portion of a parking lot for bike or transit uses 
• Allow and encourage redevelopment of underutilized parking for other uses 
• Allow and facilitate shared parking 
• New parking lots more than ½ acre in size must install 40% tree canopy or solar panels, 

solar/wind fee-in lieu or green energy 
• Adopt parking maximums in locations such as downtowns, regional or community center, and 

transit-oriented development 
 
Reducing the Burden of Parking Mandates (OAR 660-012-0425) 
• Garages and carports may not be required for residential developments 
• Garage parking spaces shall count towards off-street parking mandates 
• Provision of shared parking shall be allowed to meet parking mandates 
• Required parking maybe provided off-site, within 2,000 feet pedestrian travel of a site 
• Reduce parking mandates if providing solar panels or wind power capacity, car- sharing 

parking space, EV parking spaces, units that are fully accessible to people with mobility 
disabilities. 

 
Fair Parking Policies (OAR 660-012-0445(1)(a)(B and D) 
• Adopting Fair Parking Policies through unbundling parking spaces serving leased 

commercial developments 
• A new 10% tax on the revenue from new commercial parking lots 

 
The Sherwood Planning Commission held its first public hearing on April 9, 2024, took public testimony, 
considered the application (LU 2024-001 PA) and continued the hearing to May 14, 2024. One public 
testimony was received in opposition of the CFEC amendments. The Planning Commission continued the 
hearing to May 14th to consider additional amendments requested by Oregon Department of Land 
Conservation and Development (DLCD).  
 
On May 14, 2024, the Planning Commission held its second public hearing and consider the proposed 
amendments. With minor modifications to staff’s analysis and findings, the Commission voted to close the 
public hearing. After considering the application materials, the proposed amendments, and the amended 
findings in the staff report, the Planning Commission voted in favor (four in favor and one abstained) of 
recommending the proposed text amendments to the City Council. 
 
Litigation: 
The City of Sherwood and 12 other jurisdictions including Tualatin, Hillsboro, Happy Valley, and Oregon 
City have sued over the new rules. At issue is whether the LCDC exercised authority it did not have when 
codifying and mandating the rules. On March 6, 2024, the Oregon Court of Appeals affirmed the overall 
validity of the 89 rules adopted by LCDC.  The City and co-Petitioners are seeking review of this decision 
by the Oregon Supreme Court. If successful, the CFEC rules could be found invalid.    
 
Financial Impacts: 
There is no immediate financial impact to the City.  However, when a commercial parking lot is built within 
the City of Sherwood, a new 10% tax on the revenue from the new commercial parking lot will be collected. 
The remainder of the proposed amendments are for parking reform that will not financially impact the City. 
 
Recommendation: 

31



Ordinance  2024-002, Staff Report 
July 5, 2024 
Page 3 of 3, with attached PC recommendation (74 pgs.) 

Staff respectfully recommends City Council hold the first hearing on Ordinance 2024-002, amending 
sections of the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code and adopting Chapter 3.40 and 5.36 
for Climate-Friendly and Equitable Communities rules. If needed, a second hearing on this Ordinance has 
been scheduled for August 6, 2024. 
 
Attachment 

1. Planning Commission Recommendation to Council  
2. Ordinance with Exhibit 1   

32



LU 2024-001 PA CFEC                                                                                                                                                     Page 1 of 18 

 

  

CITY OF SHERWOOD 
 
DATE: July 5, 2024 
  
Planning Commission Recommendation to the City Council 
Climate Friendly & Equitable Communities (CFEC) 
  

File No: LU 2024-001- PA 

 
Recommendation of the Planning Commission 
 
The Sherwood Planning Commission held its first public hearing on April 9, 2024, took public 
testimony, considered the application (LU 2024-001 PA) and continued the hearing to May 14, 
2024. One public testimony was received in opposition of the CFEC amendments. The Planning 
Commission continued the hearing to May 14th to consider additional amendments requested by 
Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD).  
 
On May 14, 2024, the Planning Commission held its second public hearing and consider the 
proposed amendments. With minor modifications to staff’s analysis and findings, the Commission 
voted to close the public hearing. After considering the application materials, the proposed 
amendments, and the amended findings in the staff report, the Planning Commission voted in 
favor (four in favor and one abstained) of recommending the proposed text amendments to the 
City Council.     
 
 

    
 
 
Joy L. Chang 
Senior Planner 
  
Proposal: On March 10, 2020, former Governor Kate Brown issued Executive Order 20-04, 
directing state agencies to reduce climate pollution. In July 2022, the Oregon Land 
Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC) adopted the Climate-Friendly and 
Equitable Communities (CFEC) rules to help meet state goals to reduce climate pollution, 
especially from transportation. The rules apply to urban metropolitan areas throughout Oregon. 
The City of Sherwood is proposing to adopt new CFEC regulations as mandated by the state. 
The proposed amendments include the following: 
 

Reduction of Parking Mandates for Development Types (OAR 660-012-0430) 

• Require no more than one parking space per unit in residential developments 

• No parking requirements for residential care/training/treatment facilities 

• No parking requirements for childcare, single-room occupancy housing, residential units 
smaller than 750 square feet, affordable housing, publicly supported housing, 
emergency and transitional shelters, and domestic violence shelters. 

 
Parking Reform Near Transit Corridors (OAR 660-012-0440) 

• Tri-Met Line 94, no parking requirements for lots or parcels within one-half mile of the 
transit corridor 

 
Parking Reform in Climate Friendly Areas (OAR 660-012-0435) 

• In the Sherwood Town Center Area, no parking requirements within the town center and 
on parcels of land within one-quarter mile distance of the Sherwood Town Center Area. 

33



LU 2024-001 PA CFEC                                                                                                                                                     Page 2 of 18 

 

  

 
Electric Vehicle Charging (EV) (OAR 660-012-0410) 

• New multi-family residential buildings with five or more residential dwelling units, and 
new mixed-use buildings with five or more residential dwelling units, will be required to 
install EV conduits to accommodate 40% of all vehicle parking spaces. 

• Non-Residential Development under private ownership will be required to install EV 
conduits at no less than 20% of the vehicle parking spaces in the garage or parking area 
for the building.  

 
Parking Regulation Improvements (OAR 660-012-0405) 

• Preferential placement of carpool/vanpool parking 

• Allow redevelopment of any portion of a parking lot for bike or transit uses 

• Allow and encourage redevelopment of underutilized parking for other uses 

• Allow and facilitate shared parking 

• New parking lots more than ½ acre in size must install 40% tree canopy or solar panels, 
solar/wind fee-in lieu or green energy 

• Adopt parking maximums in locations such as downtowns, regional or community 
center, and transit-oriented development 

 
Reducing the Burden of Parking Mandates (OAR 660-012-0425) 

• Garages and carports may not be required for residential developments 

• Garage parking spaces shall count towards off-street parking mandates 

• Provision of shared parking shall be allowed to meet parking mandates 

• Required parking maybe provided off-site, within 2,000 feet pedestrian travel of a site 

• Reduce parking mandates if providing solar panels or wind power capacity, car- 
sharing parking space, EV parking spaces, units that are fully accessible to people 
with mobility disabilities. 

 
Fair Parking Policies (OAR 660-012-0445(1)(a)(B and D) 

• Adopting Fair Parking Policies through unbundling parking spaces serving leased 
commercial developments 

• A new 10% tax on the revenue from new commercial parking lots 
 
 
A. Applicant: This is a city-initiated text amendment.  
 
B. Location: City Wide 
 
C. Review Type: The proposed text amendment requires a Type V review, which involves public 

hearings before the Planning Commission and City Council. The Planning Commission is 
scheduled to consider the matter on April 9, 2024. At the close of this hearing, the Planning 
Commission will forward a recommendation to the City Council, who will consider the proposal 
and make the final recommendation whether to approve, modify, or deny the proposed 
language. The City Council public hearings are tentatively scheduled for May 21, 2024 and 
June 4, 2024. Any appeal of the City Council's final decision relating to this matter will be 
considered by the Oregon Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA).  

 
D. Public Notice and Hearing: Notice of the April 9, 2024, Planning Commission hearing and 

tentative May 21, 2024, City Council hearing on the proposed amendment were published in 
The Times on March 21 and April 4, 2024. Notice was also posted in five public locations 
around town and on the website on March 20, 2024. Notice to the Oregon Department of Land 
Conservation and Development (DLCD) was submitted on March 5, 2024, and notice to 

34



LU 2024-001 PA CFEC                                                                                                                                                     Page 3 of 18 

 

  

agencies was sent via email on March 20, 2024. A courtesy email notice was also sent to the 
CFEC email subscription listing on March 20, 2024. 

  
E. Review Criteria: The required findings for Plan Amendments are identified in Section 

16.80.030 of the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code (SZCDC). 
 
F. Background: As previously stated, on March 10, 2020, former Governor Kate Brown issued 

Executive Order 20-04, directing state agencies to reduce climate pollution. In July 2022, the 
Oregon Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC) adopted the Climate-
Friendly and Equitable Communities (CFEC) rules to help meet state goals to reduce climate 
pollution, especially from transportation. The Transportation Planning Rule (Oregon 
Administrative Rules 660-012), which requires local jurisdictions to balance land use and 
transportation planning, was significantly amendment (rules regarding parking).  

 
 The rules apply to urban metropolitan areas throughout Oregon. Some of the rules have been 

directly effective since January 1, 2023; others since March 31, 2023. Some rules required 
local action by June 30, 2023. DLCD approved and granted the City of Sherwood an 
alternative date of September 14, 2024, for implementation.   

 
Amendments are made to Sherwood Municipal Code, where majority of the proposed 
amendments are made to Title 16 (Zoning and Community Development Code). Title 3 
(Revenue and Finance) is also amended by adding a new chapter, Chapter 3.40 Commercial 
Parking Lot Local Tax. Finally, Title 5 (Business Licenses and Regulations) is amended by 
adding a new chapter, Chapter 5.36 Unbundled Parking for Commercial Uses.   See Exhibits 
A and B. 
 
Lawsuit The City of Sherwood and 12 other jurisdictions including Tualatin, Hillsboro, Happy 
Valley, and Oregon City have sued over the new rules. At issue is whether the LCDC 
exercised authority it did not have when codifying and mandating the rules.   
 
On March 6, 2024, the Oregon Court of Appeals affirmed the overall validity of the 89 rules 
adopted by DLCD. The court ruled the DLCD has the authority to adopt these rules, except 
for one subsection within one rule. The court also affirmed the DLCD followed the correct 
procedures to adopt the rules, except for one subsection within one rule.  
 
It is staff’s understanding that the City of Sherwood along with other city jurisdictions will 
appeal the Oregon Court of Appeals ruling to the Oregon Supreme Court in May. 
 
If the Oregon Supreme Court overturns the Oregon Court of Appeals ruling, the proposed 
CFEC amendments will be remanded. Staff will include language in the proposed ordinance 
that would state the following: 
 

This ordinance number 2024-xxx shall be automatically repealed with immediate effect 
upon any of the following occurrences: 

a. A finding by a court of competent jurisdiction invalidating Executive Order 
number 20-04; 

b. Passage of a law that repeals or otherwise invalidates Executive Order number  
20-04; or 

c. Retraction of Executive Order number 20-04 by the governor of the state of 
Oregon. 

 
 

 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

35



LU 2024-001 PA CFEC                                                                                                                                                     Page 4 of 18 

 

  

 
As of this writing, one public comment was received from Phyllis Nasta (Exhibit C).  Ms. Nasta 
critiques the mandates aimed at reducing parking and promoting transit use, arguing that while 
the intentions may be good, the approach is flawed. She highlights various challenges people 
face in their daily lives, such as childcare responsibilities, physical limitations, and weather 
conditions, which make limiting parking impractical and unfair. Instead of restricting parking, she 
suggests focusing on promoting electric vehicles and public transit. She also criticizes the 
potential consequences of limited parking, such as double parking and cluttered streets, and 
argue that such policies encroach on individual freedom and represent government overreach. 
Ms. Nasta also provided public testimony at the April 9, 2024 public hearing. 
 
As previously mentioned, the proposed amendments are mandated by the State. Additional 
comments from the community are welcomed up to the close of the public hearing.   
 
 
 

III. AGENCY COMMENTS 
 
Notice to DLCD was sent on March 5, 2024, and an e-notice to Metro and agency partners was 
sent on March 20, 2024. 
 
Staff received an email correspondence from DLCD, Ryan Marquardt, Land Use & Transportation 
Planner with the Planning Services Division of DLCD, dated April 2, 2024.  He requested that 
additional amendments to the City’s proposed CFEC regulations are required (Exhibit D).  City 
staff met with DLCD staff to determine which amendments needed to the addressed. The 
proposed amendments have been updated accordingly.  
 
One additional agency comment was received from Tri-Met, Michelle Wyffels, Senior Planner, 
Service Planning & Transit Development (Exhibit E) dated April 25, 2024.  She states that 
parking reform near transit corridors will create larger demand for on-street parking. She 
requested that bus zones be installed to restrict curb access in bus stop areas, so buses can 
pull up to the curb to board and unload riders using mobility devises.  
 
Per City Engineering and Public Works reviewed the request and stated that bus zone no 
parking requirement is currently not implemented throughout the city.  The city will be updating 
the Transportation System Plan (TSP) starting in 2025.  Through the TSP updated, under the 
Transit umbrella, staff will consider creating bus zones that may lead to bus zone with no 
parking signs.   
 

 
IV. REQUIRED FINDINGS FOR PLAN TEXT AMENDMENT 

 
The applicable Plan Text Amendment review criteria are SZCDC §16.80.030.A and §16.80.030.C. 

 

SZCDC 16.80.030 - Review Criteria 

A. Text Amendment: An amendment to the text of the Comprehensive Plan or the Zoning 

and Community Development Code must be based upon a need for such an amendment 

as identified by the Council or the Commission. Such an amendment must be consistent 

with the intent of the adopted Sherwood Comprehensive Plan, and with all other provisions 

of the Plan, the Transportation System Plan, and this Code, and with any applicable State 

or City statutes and regulations, including this Section. 

36



LU 2024-001 PA CFEC                                                                                                                                                     Page 5 of 18 

 

  

 

General Finding: The state mandated Climate Friendly and Equitable Communities (CFEC) rules 

were not identified by City Council, or the Planning Commission as required by Section 

16.80.030.A. The rules are mandated by the state and the city has implemented the least 

impactful standards of all the CFEC alternatives. For example, the City chose not to implement 

the alternative that would have removed minimum parking standards citywide. While parking 

reform is required by the executive order, the City is implementing standards that are most aligned 

with community needs and desires.  

 

Even though City Council or the Commission did not identify CFEC regulations as a need, the 

proposed amendments are still consistent with the intent of the adopted Sherwood 

Comprehensive Plan and with all other provision of the Plan, TSP and the Community 

Development Code as reflected throughout this report.  

 

Community Need 

The CFEC regulations addresses various community needs by promoting sustainability and well-

being. By reducing greenhouse gas emissions and promoting renewable energy sources, the 

proposed amendments will contribute to a healthier environment and cleaner air. The CFEC 

regulations also promote equitable access to transportation options and clean energy for all 

residents, regardless of socioeconomic status.  

 

The proposal seeks to amend chapters of Title 16, Sherwood Zoning and Community 

Development Code (SZCDC), and adding new chapters to Title 3 (Revenue and Finance) and 

Title 5 (Business Licenses and Regulations), to implement the CFEC regulations.  

 

These text amendments do not include changes to the goals and policies within the Sherwood 

2040 Comprehensive Plan; the 2040 Comprehensive Plan, Coordinated and Connected 

Infrastructure, states the following: 
 

Goal 5 Work with partner agencies to coordinate service delivery including but 
not limited to stormwater, water, electric, natural gas, broadband, and waste 
management. 
 
POLICY 5.4 Collaborate with governmental and private agencies engaged in climate 
change and energy conservation efforts and seek ways to expand its role and 
influence in achieving more efficient use of energy resources by:  
• Developing and implementing an Energy Conservation Plan. 
• Ensuring responsive development code and standards that reflect emerging trends 
for addressing energy and climate change challenges and opportunities. 

 

FINDING: The proposed amendments address climate change challenges and provides 

opportunities that can meet the needs of the Sherwood community while implementing the 

mandated legislation by the approved alternative deadline of September 14, 2024.  
 

37



LU 2024-001 PA CFEC                                                                                                                                                     Page 6 of 18 

 

  

 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan  

The adopted 2040 Comprehensive Plan, Coordinated and Connected Infrastructure and 

Governance and Growth Management, has specific goals and policies that are applicable to the 

proposed standards as discussed below: 

 

Coordinated and Connected Infrastructure 

 

Goal 1 Plan and implement a transportation system that is forward-looking, responsive 

and innovative to maximize capacity and ensure safety, efficiency and retention of 

Sherwood’s livability and small-town character. 

 

POLICY 1.7 Promote the development of new vehicle technology, such as electric charging 

stations, in existing development, new development, and redevelopment. 

 

Goal 5 Work with partner agencies to coordinate service delivery including but not 

limited to stormwater, water, electric, natural gas, broadband, and waste management. 

 

POLICY 5.4 Collaborate with governmental and private agencies engaged in climate change 

and energy conservation efforts and seek ways to expand its role and influence in achieving 

more efficient use of energy resources by:  

• Developing and implementing an Energy Conservation Plan. 

• Ensuring responsive development code and standards that reflect emerging trends for 

addressing energy and climate change challenges and opportunities. 

 

Governance and Growth Management 

 

Goal 7 Encourage land use patterns that locate land use activities in close proximity, 

reduce or shorten vehicle trips and encourage energy conservation through 

sustainable site planning, landscaping and construction practices. 

 

POLICY 7.5 Advance resource efficiency in the built environment through the integration of 

energy-conserving features and innovative construction methods in new development, 

redevelopment and retrofits.  

 

POLICY 7.6 Advance adaptive reuse when designing buildings and sites to respond to 

changing economic, environmental, and energy needs and conditions while remaining 

compatible with adjacent development and uses. 

 

The proposed CFEC amendments are consistent with the 2040 Comprehensive Plan by 

implementing the mandated state regulations (collaboration with the DLCD). The CFEC 

amendments address energy and climate change challenges and provides opportunities by 

reducing or removing parking standards. The provisions provide options for green energy (solar 

panels or wind power) for reducing parking standards.  The amendments also promote clean 

vehicle technology by requiring conduits for electric charging stations in multi-family, mixed-use, 

and private commercial developments.  

 

38



LU 2024-001 PA CFEC                                                                                                                                                     Page 7 of 18 

 

  

FINDING: Based on the above discussion, the proposed text amendments are consistent with 

the Sherwood 2040 Comprehensive Plan by reducing and/or eliminating parking regulations while 

promoting green energy sources.  

 

 

Consistency with the City’s Transportation System Plan  

The proposed CFEC text amendments are not inconsistent with the City's Transportation System 

Plan. The proposal would not present any impacts to the existing City transportation system, the 

Transportation System Plan, or how the City analyzes future transportation impacts. At the time 

of land use application submittal and review, transportation impacts are analyzed and addressed.  

 

FINDING: The proposed text amendments are consistent with the City’s Transportation System 

Plan.  

 

 

Consistency with other City Planning Documents  

The proposed text amendments impact only the Title 3, Title 5, and Title 16 of the Municipal Code 

and do not impact any other City Planning documents. Therefore, the proposed text amendments 

are consistent with other City Planning documents.   

 

FINDING: As noted above, the proposed text amendments is consistent with other City Planning 

documents since amendments are only to Title 3, Title 5, and Title 16. 

 

 

Consistency with Oregon Statewide Planning Goals 

 

Goal 1: Citizen Involvement 

It is the purpose of this Goal to develop a citizen involvement program that ensures the 

opportunity for citizens to be involved in all phases of the planning process. 

 

Response: There have been several public engagement activities that allowed citizen 
involvement.  In-Person Public Open House, two in-person Open Houses last February that 
showcased the CFEC regulations. Both commercial and community members attended the 
open houses and provided input on the proposed CFEC amendments.    

 

In addition to the above public engagement efforts, the Planning Commission, acting as the 

Advisory Committee for this project, have been working diligently on the implementation of the 

CFEC regulations. Since August 8, 2023, there has been three Planning Commission work 

sessions on CFEC regulations with opportunity for public involvement. Furthermore, Sherwood 

City Council held one work session briefing on CFEC regulations also with the opportunity for 

public involvement. 

 

The City of Sherwood’s legislative amendment and hearing process provides numerous 

opportunities for citizens to be involved in all phases of the planning process. The amendments 

have been developed with the opportunity for public involvement and have been noticed in 

accordance with Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code Chapter 16.72, 

Procedures for Processing Development Permits. 

39



LU 2024-001 PA CFEC                                                                                                                                                     Page 8 of 18 

 

  

 

FINDING: The Public Open Houses, Planning Commission and City Council’s work sessions on 

the proposed amendments and the City’s development code legislative process ensure the 

opportunity for public engagement.  

 

Goal 2: Land Use Planning 

It is the purpose of this Goal to establish a land use planning process and policy framework 

as a basis for all decisions and actions related to the use of land and to assure an adequate 

factual base for such decisions and actions. 

 

Response: The development of the proposed amendments has followed the City’s established 

land use planning process and included public meetings, public outreach through information on 

the city’s website, and opportunities for public comment. As stated above, the proposed CFEC 

amendments help meet state goals to reduce climate pollution, especially from transportation by 

reducing or eliminating parking standards. The state requires the local jurisdiction to implement 

CFEC regulations. 

 

FINDING: As discussed above, the proposed text amendments are consistent with Goal 2 and 

addresses climate friendly regulations as required by the state. 

 

Goal 3: Agricultural Lands 

The purpose of this Goal is to identify farmland, designate it as such on the comprehensive plan 

map, and zone it exclusive farm use (EFU).   

 

FINDING: This statewide land use goal is not applicable to the City of Sherwood.  

 

Goal 4: Forest Lands 

This Goal requires counties to identify forest land, designate it as such on the comprehensive 

plan map, and zone it consistently with state rules. 

 

FINDING: This statewide land use goal is not applicable to the City of Sherwood.  

 

Goal 5: Natural Resources, Scenic and Historic Areas, and Open Spaces 

It is the purpose of this Goal to protect natural resources and conserve scenic and historic areas 

and open spaces. 

 

FINDING: The proposed text amendments are not applicable to goals and policies in the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan pertaining to the protection of natural resources and conservation of scenic 

and historic areas and open spaces.   

 

Goal 6: Air, Water and Land Resources Quality 

This Goal instructs local governments to consider the protection of air, water, and land resources 

from pollution and pollutants when developing comprehensive plans.  

 

FINDING: The proposed text amendments are not applicable to goals and policies in the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan pertaining to the protection of air, water, and land resources from pollution 

and pollutants.  

40



LU 2024-001 PA CFEC                                                                                                                                                     Page 9 of 18 

 

  

 

Goal 7: Natural Hazards:  

This Goal requires local comprehensive plans to address Oregon’s natural hazards.  

 

FINDING: The proposed text amendments are not applicable to identified natural hazards within 

the Sherwood community.  

 

 

Goal 8: Recreational Needs 

It is the purpose of this Goal to satisfy the recreational needs of the citizens of the state and 

visitors and, where appropriate, to provide for the siting of necessary recreational facilities. 

 

FINDING: The proposed text amendments are not applicable to recreational needs within the 

Sherwood community.  

 

Goal 9: Economic Development  

The purpose of Goal 9 planning is to make sure cities and counties have enough land available 

to realize economic growth and development opportunities. 

 

FINDING: The proposed text amendments would allow redevelopment of underutilized parking 

lots and creating the opportunity for additional development that support a better balance of jobs 

to housing within the City. Therefore, the proposed amendments meet the intent of Goal 9, 

Economic Development.  

 

Goal 10: Housing 

The purpose of this Goal is to make sure that a community has adequate housing supply for the 

twenty-year planning period through a range of densities to choose from and serves people at a 

variety of income levels. 

 

Response: The City has an approved 2019-2039 Housing Needs Analysis (HNA), Ordinance 

2020-010, that meets the requirements of State Land Use Goal 10, Housing and its Administrative 

Rule 660-007.  

 

The City's adopted HNA "demonstrates how the existing city zones provides for the needed 

housing types outline in ORS 197.303. The forecasted growth rate in the HNA 2019-2039 is 1.1% 

based on Metro's forecast. The HNA includes a Buildable Lands Inventory (BLl) for housing within 

Urban Growth Boundary. The BLI demonstrates that current land use designation provides an 

adequate short- and long-term land supply for housing development for meeting existing needs 

and 65% projected growth over the next 2O-years. However, Sherwood has a deficit of land for 

608 dwelling units."  

 

The proposed text amendments will reduce and/or remove minimum off-street vehicle parking 

requirements throughout the city, which will make more housing developments physically and 

financially feasible.  The amendments will also allow the development community to choose to 

provide less or no off-street parking (Climate Friendly Area and frequent transit corridor), allowing 

for more flexibility of housing location, type, and density.  The proposed amendments will not 

reduce the city’s housing capacity of the Building Lands Inventory.     

41



LU 2024-001 PA CFEC                                                                                                                                                     Page 10 of 18 

 

  

 

FINDING: The proposed amendments would not decrease the supply of needed housing within 

Sherwood. Furthermore, the proposed amendments will allow for flexibility with the development 

community by the reduction and/or elimination of off-street parking standards. Therefore, the 

proposed amendments meet the intent of Goal 10, Housing.  

 

 

 

Goal 11: Public Facilities and Services 

It is the purpose of this Goal to plan and develop a timely, orderly, and efficient arrangement of 

public facilities and services to serve as a framework for urban and rural development. 

 

FINDING: The proposed amendments are consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and, 

therefore, this goal.  

 

Goal 12: Transportation  

This Goal requires cities, counties, and the state to create a transportation system plan that 

considers all relevant modes of transportation: mass transit, air, water, rail, highway, bicycle and 

pedestrian.  

 

FINDING: The City has an adopted Transportation System Plan (TSP), and the proposed 

amendments are applicable relative to parking regulations which are addressed later in this report 

under the Transportation Planning Rule (TPR). Based on the findings under the TPR, the 

proposed amendments are consistent with the TSP and therefore, this goal.    

 

Goal 13: Energy  

This Goal requires local governments to consider the effects of its comprehensive planning 

decision on energy consumption. 

 

FINDING: The proposed amendments are consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and, 

therefore, this goal.  

 

Goal 14: Urbanization 

The purpose of this goal is to ensure land inside a UGB, is considered urbanizable. A city must 

plan to include a twenty year supply of land for housing, employment, industry, open space and 

recreational needs. A UGB should also provide plans for transition from urban to rural land uses 

to avoid conflicts and encourage efficient use of the land to provide more livable, walkable, and 

densely built communities.  

 

FINDING: The proposed amendments are consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and, 

therefore, this goal.  

 

The following State Land Use Goals are not applicable to this proposal:  

Goal 15: Willamette River Greenway, 

Goal 16: Estuarine Resources, 

Goal 17: Coastal Shorelands, 

Goal 18: Beaches and Dunes; and  

42



LU 2024-001 PA CFEC                                                                                                                                                     Page 11 of 18 

 

  

Goal 19: Ocean Resources 

 

Metro's Regional Framework Plan 

 

The Functional Framework Plan Six Outcomes are statements adopted by the Metro Council that 

synthesize the 2040 Growth Concept and regional policies. 

 

1. People live, work, and play in vibrant communities where their everyday needs are easily 

accessible.  

2. Current and future residents benefit from the region’s sustained economic competitiveness 

and prosperity.  

3. People have safe and reliable transportation choices that enhance their quality of life. 

4. The region is a leader in minimizing contributions to global warming.  

5. Current and future generations enjoy clean air, clean water, and healthy ecosystems. 

6. The benefits and burdens of growth and change are distributed equitably. 

 

Response: The proposed amendments are consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan; 

therefore, the amendment is consistent with the 2040 Growth Concept and regional policies.  

 

SZCDC Review Criteria 16.80.030.C – Transportation Planning Rule Consistency 

1. The applicant shall demonstrate consistency with the Transportation Planning 
Rule, specifically by addressing whether the proposed amendment creates a 
significant effect on the transportation system pursuant to OAR 660-012-0060. If 
required, a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) shall be prepared pursuant to 
Section 16.106.080. 

The proposed amendments will not create a significant effect on the City’s transportation 

system.  Title 16 (SZCDC), Title 3 (Revenue and Finance), and Title 5 (Business Licenses and 

Regulations) are amended to address the CFEC parking regulations. The applicable 

Transportation Planning Rule OAR are addressed below. 

 

Oregon Administrative Rules: Climate Friendly and Equitable Communities Rules 
 
OAR 660-012-0405 Parking Regulation Improvements 
 
(1) Cities and counties shall adopt land use regulations as provided in this section: 

(a) Designated employee parking areas in new developments with more than 50 
parking spaces shall provide preferential parking for carpools and vanpools; 

(b) Property owners shall be allowed to redevelop any portion of existing off-street 
parking areas for bicycle-oriented and transit-oriented facilities, including 
bicycle parking, bus stops and pullouts, bus shelters, park and ride stations, 
and similar facilities; and 

(c) In applying subsections (a) and (b), land use regulations must allow property 
owners to go below existing mandated minimum parking supply, access for 
emergency vehicles must be retained, and adequate parking for truck loading 
should be considered. 

 

43



LU 2024-001 PA CFEC                                                                                                                                                     Page 12 of 18 

 

  

(2) Cities and counties shall adopt policies for on-street parking and land use 
regulations for off-street parking that allow and encourage the conversion of 
existing underused parking areas to other uses. 

 
(3) Cities and counties shall adopt policies and land use regulations that allow and 

facilitate shared parking. 
 
(4) Cities and counties shall adopt land use regulations for any new development that 

includes more than one-half acre of new off-street surface parking on a lot or 
parcel as provided below. The new surface parking area shall be measured based 
on the perimeter of all new off-street parking spaces, maneuvering lanes, and 
maneuvering areas, including driveways and drive aisles. 

 
(a) Developments not required to comply with OAR 330-135-0010 must provide a 

climate mitigation action. Climate mitigation actions shall include at least one 
of the following. Cities and counties are not required to offer all these options: 
(A) Installation of solar panels with a generation capacity of at least 0.5 

kilowatt per new off-street parking space. Panels may be located anywhere 
on the property. The change to this paragraph sets $1,500 as a floor, 
allowing cities and counties to index it for inflation, and clarifies it just 
applies to off-street parking spaces. 

(B) Payment of at least $1,500 per new off-street parking space into a city or 
county fund dedicated to equitable solar or wind energy development or a 
fund at the Oregon Department of Energy designated for such purpose; 

(C) Tree canopy covering at least 40 percent of the new parking lot area at 
maturity but no more than 15 years after planting; or 

(D) A mixture of actions under paragraphs (A) through (C) the city or county 
deems to meet the purpose of this section. 

(b) Developments must provide tree canopy. Developments shall provide either 
trees along driveways or a minimum of 30 percent tree canopy coverage over 
new parking areas. Developments are not required to provide trees along drive 
aisles. The tree spacing and species planted must be designed to maintain a 
continuous canopy except when interrupted by driveways, drive aisles, and 
other site design considerations. Developments providing 40 percent tree 
canopy to comply with paragraph (a)(C) comply with this subsection. 

(c) Developments must provide pedestrian connections throughout the parking 
lot, connecting at minimum the following, except where not practical due to 
site-specific conditions: 
(A) building entrances; 
(B) existing or planned pedestrian facilities in the adjacent public rights-of-

way; 
(C) transit stops; and 
(D) accessible parking spaces. 

(d) Development of a tree canopy plan under this section shall be done in 
coordination with the local electric utility, including pre-design, design, 
building and maintenance phases. 

(e) In providing trees under subsections (a) and (b), the following standards shall 
be met. Trees must be planted and maintained to maximize their root health 
and chances for survival, including having ample high-quality soil, space for 
root growth, and reliable irrigation according to the needs of the species. 
Trees should be planted in continuous trenches where possible. The city or 
county shall have minimum standards for tree planting no lower than the 2021 
American National Standards Institute A300 standards. 

 

44



LU 2024-001 PA CFEC                                                                                                                                                     Page 13 of 18 

 

  

(5) Cities and counties shall establish off-street parking maximums in appropriate 
locations, such as downtowns, designated regional or community centers, and 
transit-oriented developments. 

 
Identified below are proposed amendments to Title 16 (SZCDC) that meets the 
requirements of OAR 660-012-0405 Parking Regulation Improvements: 

• Preferential placement of carpool/vanpool parking 
• Allow redevelopment of any portion of a parking lot for bike or transit uses 
• Allow and encourage redevelopment of underutilized parking for other uses 
• Allow and facilitate shared parking 
• New parking lots more than ½ acre in size must install 40% tree canopy or solar 

panels, solar/wind fee-in lieu or green energy 
• Adopt parking maximums in locations such as downtowns, regional or 

community center, and transit-oriented development 
 
FINDING: As noted above and attached as Exhibit A and B, the proposed amendments in 
Title 16 (SZCDC) meet the requirements of OAR 660-012-0405 Parking Regulation 
Improvements. These standards are met. 
 
 
OAR 660-012-0410 Electric Vehicle Charging 
 
(1) This rule applies to cities within a metropolitan area. 
(2) Cities shall ensure new development supports electric vehicle charging pursuant 

to amendments to the state building code adopted pursuant to ORS 455.417. 
(3) As authorized in ORS 455.417(4), for new multifamily residential buildings with five 

or more residential dwelling units, and new mixed-use buildings consisting of 
privately owned commercial space and five or more residential dwelling units, 
cities shall require the provision of electrical service capacity, as defined in ORS 
455.417, to serve 40 percent of all vehicle parking spaces. 

 
FINDING: The proposed amendments in Title 16 (SZCDC) Section 16.90.020.D.6 require 
electric vehicle charging infrastructure with new all-development or mixed-use buildings with 
five or more units to provide sufficient electrical service capacity as defined in ORS 455.417 
to accommodate no less than 40 percent of vehicle parking spaces serving residential uses 
on site. Furthermore, ORS 455.417 requires private non-commercial development to provide 
sufficient electrical service capacity of at least 20 percent of vehicle parking spaces. 
 
The proposed text amendments comply with OAR 660-12-0410 and ORS 455.417. This 
standard is met. 
 

 
OAR 660-012-0425 Reducing the Burden of Parking Mandates 
 
(1) This rule applies to cities and counties that: 

(a) Are within a metropolitan area; and 
(b) Have not adopted land use regulations without parking mandates as provided in 
OAR 660-012-0420. 

 
(2) Cities and counties shall adopt and enforce land use regulations as provided in this 
section: 

(a) Garages and carports may not be required for residential developments; 
(b) Garage parking spaces shall count towards off-street parking mandates; 
(c) Provision of shared parking shall be allowed to meet parking mandates; 

45



LU 2024-001 PA CFEC                                                                                                                                                     Page 14 of 18 

 

  

(d) Required parking spaces may be provided off-site, within 2,000 feet pedestrian 
travel of a site. If any non-loading parking is provided on site, all required 
parking for people with disabilities shall be on site. If all parking is off-site, 
parking for people with disabilities must be located within the shortest possible 
distance of an accessible entrance via an accessible path and no greater than 
200 feet from that entrance; 

(e) Parking mandates shall be reduced by one off-street parking space for each 
three kilowatts of capacity in solar panels or wind power that will be provided in 
a development; 

(f) Parking mandates shall be reduced by one off-street parking space for each 
dedicated car-sharing parking space in a development. Dedicated car-sharing 
parking spaces shall count as spaces for parking mandates; 

(g) Parking mandates shall be reduced by two off-street parking spaces for every 
electric vehicle charging station provided in a development. Parking spaces that 
include electric vehicle charging while an automobile is parked shall count 
towards parking mandates; and 

(h) Parking mandates shall be reduced by one off-street parking space for every two 
units in a development above minimum requirements that are fully accessible 
to people with mobility disabilities. 

 
(3) Any reductions under section (2) shall be cumulative and not capped. 
 
Identified below are proposed amendments to Title 16 (SZCDC) that meets the requirements 
of OAR 660-012-0425 Reducing the Burden of Parking Mandates: 

• Garages and carports may not be required for residential developments 

• Garage parking spaces shall count towards off-street parking 

• Provision of shared parking shall be allowed to meet parking 

• Required parking maybe provided off-site, within 2,000 feet pedestrian travel of a site 

• Reduce parking mandates if providing solar panels or wind power capacity, car- 
sharing parking space, EV parking spaces, units that are fully accessible to 
people with mobility disabilities. 

 
FINDING: As noted above and attached as Exhibit A and B, the proposed amendments in 
Title 16 (SZCDC) meet the requirements of OAR 660-012-0425 Reducing the Burden of 
Parking Mandates. These standards are met. 
 
 
OAR 660-012-0430 Reduction of Parking Mandates for Development Types 
 
(1) This rule applies to cities and counties that: 

(a) Are within a metropolitan area; and 
(b) Have not adopted land use regulations without parking mandates as provided 
in OAR 660-012-0420. 

 
(2) Cities and counties may not require more than one parking space per unit in 
residential developments with more than one dwelling unit on a single legally-
established property. 
 
(3) Cities and counties may not enforce parking mandates for the following 
development or use types: 

(a) Facilities and homes designed to serve people with psychosocial, physical, 
intellectual or developmental disabilities, including but not limited to a: residential 
care facility, residential training facility, residential treatment facility, residential 

46



LU 2024-001 PA CFEC                                                                                                                                                     Page 15 of 18 

 

  

training home, residential treatment home, and conversion facility as defined in 
ORS 443.400; 
(b) Child care facility as defined in ORS 329A.250; 
(c) Single-room occupancy housing; 
(d) Residential units smaller than 750 square feet; 
(e) Affordable housing as defined in OAR 660-039-0010; 
(f) Publicly supported housing as defined in ORS 456.250; 
(g) Emergency and transitional shelters for people experiencing homelessness; and 
(h) Domestic violence shelters. 

 
Identified below are proposed amendments to Title 16 (SZCDC) that meets the requirements 
of OAR 660-012-0430 Reduction of Parking Mandates for Development Types: 

• Require no more than one parking space per unit in residential developments 

• No parking requirements for residential care/training/treatment facilities 

• No parking requirements for childcare, single-room occupancy housing, residential 
units smaller than 750 square feet, affordable housing, publicly supported housing, 
emergency and transitional shelters, and domestic violence shelters. 

 
FINDING: As noted above and attached in Exhibit A and B, the proposed amendments in Title 
16 (SZCDC) meet the requirements of OAR 660-012-0430 Reduction of Parking Mandates 
for Development Types. These standards are met. 
 
 
OAR 660-012-0435 Parking Reform in Climate Friendly Areas  
 
(1) This rule applies to cities and counties that: 

(a) Are within a metropolitan area; and 
(b) Have not adopted land use regulations without parking mandates as provided 
in OAR 660-012-0420. 

 
(2) Cities and counties shall adopt land use regulations addressing parking mandates 

in climate-friendly areas as provided in OAR 660-012-0310. Cities and counties in 
Metro shall adopt land use regulations addressing parking mandates in Metro 
Region 2040 centers. In each such area, cities and counties shall either: 
 
(a) Remove all parking mandates within the area and on parcels in its jurisdiction 
that include land within one-quarter mile distance of those areas; or 
 
(b) Manage parking by: 

(A) Adopting a parking benefit district with paid on-street parking and some 
revenues dedicated to public improvements in the area; 

(B) Adopting land use regulations requiring no more than one-half off-street 
parking space per dwelling unit in the area that is not a townhouse or 
rowhouse; and 

(C) Adopting land use regulations without parking mandates for commercial 
developments. 

 

FINDING: The Metro Regional 2040 center for Sherwood is the Sherwood Town 
Center Area. Parking mandates within the area and on parcels within one-quarter 
mile distance of the area has been removed. The impacted properties are reflected in 
the proposed Map titled “City of Sherwood – CFEC Parking Delineated Area”. Therefore, 
this standard is met.   
 

47



LU 2024-001 PA CFEC                                                                                                                                                     Page 16 of 18 

 

  

 
OAR 660-012-0440 Parking Reform Near Transit Corridors 
 
(1) This rule applies to cities and counties that: 

(a) Are within a metropolitan area; and 
(b) Have not adopted land use regulations without parking mandates as provided 
in OAR 660-012-0420. 

 
(2) Cities and counties may not enforce parking mandates for developments on a lot 

or parcel that includes lands within three-quarters mile of rail transit stops. 
 
(3) Cities and counties may not enforce parking mandates for developments on a lot 

or parcel that includes lands within one-half mile of frequent transit corridors, 
including: 
(a) Priority transit corridors designated under OAR 660-012-0710; 
(b) Corridors with transit service arriving with a scheduled frequency of at least 

four times an hour during peak service; and 
(c) If a community has no corridor qualifying under subsection (b), corridors with 

the most frequent transit service in the community if the scheduled frequency 
is at least once per hour during peak service. 

 
(4) Cities and counties may use either walking distance or straight-line distance in 

measuring distances in this rule. 
 
(5) In determining the extent of lands subject to subsection (3)(b) or (c), a city or 

county shall either: 
(a) Evaluate current service frequencies on the date a land use application is 

submitted, provided the application remains valid for review pursuant to ORS 
215.427 or ORS 227.178, or 

(b) Adopt a map designating these lands based on service frequency on the date 
development codes implementing this rule are adopted. The city or county 
must update the map at least once per year from the date of adoption if 
services frequencies change and additional lands become subject to 
subsection (3)(b) or (c). The city or county must use subsection (5)(a) if 
additional lands are subject to subsections (3)(b) or (c) and the adopted map is 
more than one year old. 

 
FINDING: The City of Sherwood does not have any rail transit stops.  However, Tri-Met  
Line 94 is defined as a frequent service route under OAR 660-012-0440(3)(c).  No parking is 
required for lots or parcels within one-half mile of this transit corridor. The city is utilizing 
walking distance in measuring distance in this rule. The impacted properties are reflected in 
the proposed Map titled “City of Sherwood – CFEC Parking Delineated Area”. Therefore, 
this standard is met.   
 
 
OAR 660-012-0445 Parking Management Alternative Approaches 
 
(1) In lieu of adopting land use regulations without parking mandates under OAR 660-

012-0420, cities and counties shall select and implement either a fair parking policy 
approach as provided in subsection (a) or a reduced regulation parking 
management approach as provided in subsection (b). 

 
(a) A fair parking policy approach shall include at least two of the following five 

provisions, including at least one provision from paragraphs (A) through (C): 

48



LU 2024-001 PA CFEC                                                                                                                                                     Page 17 of 18 

 

  

(A) A requirement that parking spaces for each residential unit in multi-unit 
housing developments be unbundled parking upon lease creation, lease 
renewal, or sale. Cities and counties may exempt townhouse and rowhouse 
development from this requirement; 

(B) A requirement that parking spaces serving leased commercial developments 
be unbundled parking upon lease creation or renewal; 

 
(C) A requirement for employers of 50 or more employees who provide free or 

subsidized parking to their employees at the workplace provide a flexible 
commute benefit of $50 per month or the fair market value of that parking, 
whichever is greater, to those employees eligible for that free or subsidized 
parking who regularly commute via other modes instead of using that 
parking; 

(D) A tax on the revenue from commercial parking lots collecting no less than 
10 percent of income, with revenues dedicated to improving transportation 
alternatives to drive-alone travel; and 

(E) A reduction of parking mandates for new multi-unit housing development to 
no higher than one-half spaces per unit, including visitor parking. 

*** 
 
FINDINGS: The City has chosen to utilize the provisions of OAR 660-012-0445(1)(a)(B)  
adopting Fair Parking Policies through unbundling parking spaces serving leased 
commercial developments and OAR 660-012-0445(1)(a)(D), a new 10% tax on the 
revenue from new commercial parking lots within the City of Sherwood jurisdictional 
boundary.  
 
To implement OAR 660-012-0445(1)(a)(B) - unbundling parking spaces serving leased 
commercial developments, staff proposed amendments to Title 5 – Business Licenses 
and Regulations by creating Chapter 5.36 Unbundled Parking for Commercial Leases.  
Off-street parking accessory to rented or leased commercial use spaces will not be 
required in any new rental or lease agreement. However, if parking is desired by the 
tenant, the fee for parking shall be listed as a separate line item within the lease or shall 
be subject to a separate rental or lease agreement. The minimum unbundled parking 
rate is no less than $50 per space per month. Sherwood is a suburban community with 
no true parking space rate comparable.  
 
Proposed amendments to Title 3 – Revenue and Finance, creates Chapter 3.40 
Commercial Parking Lot Local Tax to implement OAR 660-012-0445(1)(a)(D). The 
proposed amendments create a new 10% tax on the revenue from new commercial 
parking lots within the City of Sherwood jurisdictional boundary. Currently, the city does 
not have a commercial parking lot, but once constructed the 10% tax revenue will be 
enforced.  
 
Based on the above, these standards are met.  

 

OVERALL FINDING: As discussed above, the proposed amendments are consistent with the 

Transportation Planning Rule and, therefore meet the City’s Transportation Systems Plan.   

 

 

V. RECOMMENDATION 

 

49



LU 2024-001 PA CFEC                                                                                                                                                     Page 18 of 18 

 

  

As proposed, the draft amendments to the Title 3 (Revenue and Finance), Title 5 (Business 

Licenses and Regulations), and Title 16 (Zoning and Community Development Code,) supports 

and meets the intent of City’s Comprehensive Plan, and all applicable state and regional criteria.   

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION ALTERNATIVES  

1. Approve the findings in this staff report and recommend approval to City Council. 

2. Modify the findings and approve the staff report as modified in compliance with all 

applicable criteria and recommend approval to City Council. 

3. Modify the findings and deny the proposed amendments based on the Commission’s 

findings, and recommend denial of the proposal to City Council; or 

4. Continue the Public Hearing to a date certain if more information is needed.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the above findings and applicable code criteria, staff recommends that the Planning 

Commission forward a recommendation of approval of the proposed text amendments to Title 3, 

Title 5, and Title 16 of the Municipal Code, Case File LU 2024-001 PA, to the Sherwood City 

Council.  

 

VI. EXHIBITS 

A. Proposed Code Amendments (Track Changes and Commentary) 

B. Proposed Code Amendments (Clean Version) 

C. Testimony from Phyllis Nasta dated March 20, 2024 

D. DLDC Comments of April 2, 2024 

E. Tri-Met Comments of April 25, 2024 

 

 

50



 

 

Title 16  
ZONING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE 

 
Proposed Amendments  
This document presents proposed code amendments. Underlined formatting indicates added text, while 
strikethrough formatting shows what text is deleted.  
 

BLUE UNDERLINED = NEW TEXT TO BE ADOPTED  

BLUE STRIKETHROUGH = TEXT TO BE DELETED  
 

 
 
The proposed amendments are organized by code chapter. Only those sections of the code that are proposed to 
be amended are included in the document. 
 

Commentary 
A discussion of the purpose of the proposed amendments and the direction provided to date from 
City staff and the Planning Commission have been added to this draft of amendments. 
 
Furthermore, Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) requested additional and 
clarifying CFEC amendments as of April 2, 2024.   DLCD requested amendments have been 
incorporated.    
  

Exhibit A

51



 

 

Chapter 16.90 SITE PLANNING Commentary 

Multi-family developments are reviewed through the Site Plan Review process under Chapter 16.90.   
 
OAR 660-012-0410 New Electric Vehicle Charging regulations - New multi-family and multi-use 
development applications require 40% of spaces to have conduit (pipes) to serve electric vehicle 
charging. Furthermore, OAR 660-012-0410(2) requires 20% Electric Vehicle service capacity for 
Non-Residential Development under private ownership.  
 
The Commercial Design Review Matrix provides points based on design criteria. One set of criteria 
relates to parking and loading areas, specifically number of parking spaces. Per OAR 660-12-0440 
(parking reform near transit corridors) no parking mandates are allowed within ½ mile of a qualified 
“frequent service” route under OAR 660-12-0440.  Tri-Met’s Line 94 qualifies as a frequent transit 
service. Footnote 7 on the Design Review Matrix was amended to add provisions for Climate 
Friendly and Equitable Communities frequent transit corridor.  
 
 
  

Exhibit A

52



 

 

Chapter 16.90 SITE PLANNING

***

16.90.020 Site Plan Review 

A. Site Plan Review Required  

Site Plan review is required prior to any substantial change to a site or use that is not subject to Residential 
Design Checklist or Residential Design Review, does not meet the criteria of a minor or major modification per 
16.90.030, issuance of building permits for a new building or structure, or for the substantial alteration of an 
existing structure or use. Exemptions noted below.  

Site Plan Review is required for the following development:  

1. Multi-dwelling  

2. Commercial  

3. Industrial  

4. Mixed-use  

For the purposes of Section 16.90.020, the terms "substantial change" and "substantial alteration" mean any 
development activity as defined by this Code that generally requires a building permit and may exhibit one or 
more of the following characteristics:  

1. The activity alters the exterior appearance of a structure, building or property and is not considered a 
modification.  

2. The activity involves changes in the use of a structure, building, or property from residential to 
commercial or industrial and is not considered a modification.  

3. The activity involves non-conforming uses as defined in Chapter 16.48.  

4. The activity constitutes a change in a City approved plan, per Section 16.90.020 and is not considered a 
modification.  

5. The activity is subject to site plan review by other requirements of this Code.  

6. The activity increases the size of the building by more than 100% (i.e. the building more than doubles in 
size), regardless of whether it would be considered a major or minor modification.  

B. Exemption to Site Plan Requirement  

1. Single Family detached and middle housing developments are exempt from Site Plan Review but are 
required to complete either a Residential Design Checklist or Residential Design Review per Chapter 
16.89, unless otherwise noted.  

2. Manufactured homes located on individual residential lots per Section 16.46.010, and including 
manufactured home parks.  

C. Reserved  

D. Required Findings  

No site plan approval will be granted unless each of the following is found:  

1. The proposed development meets applicable zoning district standards and design standards in Division 
II, and all provisions of Divisions V, VI, VIII and IX.  

Exhibit A

53



 

 

2. The proposed development can be adequately served by services conforming to the Community 
Development Plan, including but not limited to water, sanitary facilities, storm water, solid waste, 
parks and open space, public safety, electric power, and communications.  

3. Covenants, agreements, and other specific documents are adequate, in the City's determination, to 
assure an acceptable method of ownership, management, and maintenance of structures, landscaping, 
and other on-site features.  

4. The proposed development preserves significant natural features to the maximum extent feasible, 
including but not limited to natural drainage ways, wetlands, trees, vegetation (including but not 
limited to environmentally sensitive lands), scenic views, and topographical features, and conforms to 
the applicable provisions of Division VIII of this Code and Chapter 5 of the Community Development 
Code.  

5. For developments that are likely to generate more than 400 average daily trips (ADTs), or at the 
discretion of the City Engineer, the applicant must provide adequate information, such as a traffic 
impact analysis (TIA) or traffic counts, to demonstrate the level of impact to the surrounding 
transportation system. The developer is required to mitigate for impacts attributable to the project, 
pursuant to TIA requirements in Section 16.106.080 and rough proportionality requirements in Section 
16.106.090. The determination of impact or effect and the scope of the impact study must be 
coordinated with the provider of the affected transportation facility.  

6. Electric Vehicle Conduits 

a. For proposed multi-family residential or mixed-use developments - proposed multi-family residential 
buildings with five or more residential dwelling units and proposed mixed-use buildings consisting of 
privately owned commercial space and five or more residential dwelling units, shall provide 
sufficient electrical service capacity, as defined in ORS 455.417, to accommodate no less than 40 
percent of all vehicle parking spaces. Dwelling units in townhouses are not included for purposes of 
determining the applicability of this regulation. 

b. For proposed Non-Residential Development under private ownership – Each building for a proposed 
non-residential development, under private ownership, shall provide electrical service capacity at no 
less than 20 percent of the vehicle parking spaces in the garage or parking area for the building. 
Fractional numbers derived from a calculation of the vehicle parking spaces must be rounded up to 
the nearest whole number. 

7. The proposed commercial, Multi-Family dwelling, institutional or mixed-use development is oriented to 
the pedestrian and bicycle, and to existing and planned transit facilities. Urban design standards 
include the following:  

a. Primary, front entrances are located and oriented to the street, and have significant articulation 
and treatment, via facades, porticos, arcades, porches, portal, forecourt, or stoop to identify the 
entrance for pedestrians. Additional entrance/exit points for buildings, such as a postern, are 
allowed from secondary streets or parking areas.  

b. Buildings are located adjacent to and flush to the street, subject to landscape corridor and 
setback standards of the underlying zone.  

c. The architecture of buildings are oriented to the pedestrian and designed for the long term and 
be adaptable to other uses. Aluminum, vinyl, and T-111 siding are prohibited. Street facing 
elevations have windows, transparent fenestration, and divisions to break up the mass of any 
window. Roll up and sliding doors are acceptable. Awnings that provide a minimum 3 feet of 
shelter from rain are required unless other architectural elements are provided for similar 
protection, such as an arcade.  

d. Multi-family development requires a minimum of 15 percent of the area of the primary building 
elevation adjacent to a public right-of-way to include windows and entrance doors, and for the 

Exhibit A

54



 

 

side building elevation, adjacent to a public right-of-way or public accessway, a minimum of 10 
percent glazing of area is required.  

e. As an alternative to the standards in Section 16.90.020.D.6.a—d, the following Commercial 
Design Review Matrix may be applied to any commercial, multi-family, institutional or mixed use 
development (this matrix may not be utilized for developments within the Old Town Overlay). A 
development must propose a minimum of 60 percent of the total possible points to be eligible 
for exemption from the standards in Section 16.90.020.D.6.a—d. In addition, a development 
proposing between 15,001 and 40,000 square feet of floor area, parking or seating capacity and 
proposing a minimum of 80 percent of the total possible points from the matrix below may be 
reviewed as a Type II administrative review, per the standards of Section 16.72.010.A.2.  

*** 

COMMERCIAL DESIGN REVIEW MATRIX 

Design Criteria  Possible Points  
  
0  1  2  3  4  

Parking and Loading Areas (13 Total Points Possible; Minimum 7 Points Required)  
Location of 
Parking  

Greater than 
50 percent of 
required 
parking is 
located 
between any 
building and a 
public street  

25—50 
percent of 
required 
parking is 
located 
between any 
building and a 
public street  

Less than 25 
percent of 
required 
parking is 
located 
between any 
building and a 
public street  

No parking is 
located between 
any building and 
a public street  

—  

Loading Areas  Visible from 
public street 
and not 
screened  

Visible from 
public street 
and screened  

Not visible 
from public 
street  

—  —  

Vegetation  At least one 
"landscaped" 
island every 
13—15 
parking spaces 
in a row  

At least one 
"landscaped" 
island every 
10—12 
parking spaces 
in a row  

At least one 
"landscaped" 
island every 
8—9 parking 
spaces in a 
row  

At least one 
"landscaped" 
island every 6—7 
parking spaces in 
a row  

—  

Number of  
Parking  
Spaces7 

>120%  101—120%  100%  <100% (i.e. joint 
use or multiple 
reduction) (1 
bonus)  

—  

Parking 
Surface  

Impervious  Some pervious 
paving (10—
25%)  

Partially 
pervious 
paving (26—
50%)  

Mostly pervious 
paving (>50%)  

—  

Exhibit A

55



 

 

Landscaping (24 Total Point Possible, Minimum 14 Points Required)  

  7Percent of minimum required. For development projects in the Climate Friendly and Equitable 
Communities frequent transit corridor, no parking is required therefore points are based on the 
percentage of stalls provided relative to the underlying parking standards.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A

56



 

 

Chapter 16.94 OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING Commentary 

OAR 660-012-0430 reduced mandates for specific developments.  City cannot mandate more than 
one (1) space per unit for residential developments with more than one (1) unit (e.g. multi-family 
units). There are also no parking requirements for small units, affordable units, childcare, facilities 
for people with disabilities, and shelters. Currently, the Community Development Code (CDC) does 
not require parking for the following uses: Boarding House, Day Care, and Nursing homes.  Staff 
would consider these types of uses similar to specialized facilities and shelters.  Furthermore, the 
CDC does not require parking for Accessory Dwelling Units; City’s smallest housing units. 
 
OAR 660-12-0440 (parking reform near transit corridors) no parking mandates allowed ½ mile of a 
qualified “frequent service” route under OAR 660-12-0440.  Tri-Met’s Line 94 qualifies as a 
frequent transit service. Impacted properties are reflected on the map that will be adopted as part 
of the proposed amendments. 
 
OAR 660-0435 (Climate Friendly Areas) no parking mandates within the Sherwood Town Center 
area and on parcels within one-quarter mile distance of the Sherwood Town Center. Impacted 
properties are reflected on the map that will be adopted as part of the proposed amendments. 
 
OAR 660-012-0405 Parking Regulation Improvements  
• Preferential placement of carpool/vanpool parking 
• Allow redevelopment of any portion of a parking lot for bike or transit uses 
• Allow and encourage redevelopment of underutilized parking for other uses 
• Allow and facilitate shared parking 
• New parking lots more than ½ acre in size must install 40% tree canopy or solar panels, solar/wind 

fee-in lieu or green energy 
• Adopt parking maximums in locations such as downtowns, regional or community center, and 

transit-oriented development 
 
OAR 660-012-0425 Reducing the Burden of Parking Mandates  
• Garages and carports may not be required for residential developments 
• Garage parking spaces shall count towards off-street parking mandates 
• Provision of shared parking shall be allowed to meet parking mandates 
• Required parking maybe provided off-site, within 2,000 feet pedestrian travel of a site 
• Reduce parking mandates if providing solar panels or wind power capacity, car-sharing parking 

space, EV parking spaces, units that are fully accessible to people with mobility disabilities. 
 
OAR 660-012-0445 (1)(a)(B) Fair Pricing – Unbundled Parking 
 Require unbundled parking for parking spaces serving leased commercial development. 
  

Exhibit A

57



 

 

Chapter 16.94 - OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING  

16.94.010 General Requirements 

A. Off-Street Parking Required  

No site shall be used for the parking of vehicles until plans are approved providing for off-street parking and 
loading space as required by this Code. Any change in uses or structures that reduces the current off-street parking 
and loading spaces provided on site, or that increases the need for off-street parking or loading requirements shall 
be unlawful and a violation of this Code, unless additional off-street parking or loading areas are provided in 
accordance with Section 16.94.020, or unless a variance from the minimum or maximum parking standards is 
approved in accordance with Chapter 16.84 Variances.  

B. Deferral of Improvements  

Off-street parking and loading spaces shall be completed prior to the issuance of occupancy permits, unless 
the City determines that weather conditions, lack of available surfacing materials, or other circumstances beyond 
the control of the applicant make completion impossible. In such circumstances, security equal to one hundred 
twenty five (125) percent of the cost of the parking and loading area is provided the City. "Security" may consist of 
a performance bond payable to the City, cash, certified check, or other assurance of completion approved by the 
City. If the installation of the parking or loading area is not completed within one (1) year, the security may be used 
by the City to complete the installation.  

C. Options for Reducing the Required Parking Spaces  

1. Two (2) or more uses or, structures on multiple parcels of land may utilize jointly the same parking and 
loading spaces when the peak hours of operation do not substantially overlap, provided that 
satisfactory evidence is presented to the City, in the form of deeds, leases, or contracts, clearly 
establishing the joint use.  

a. Within residential, commercial, institutional and public, or industrial zones, shared parking may 
be provided on lots that are within two thousand (2,000) five hundred (500) feet of the property 
line of the use to be served.  

b. Shared parking is allowed if the application can show that the combined peak use is available by a 
parking study that demonstrates:  

(1) There is a sufficient number of parking spaces to accommodate the requirements of the 
individual businesses; or  

(2) That the peak hours of operation of such establishments do not overlap, and  

(3) That an exclusive permanent easement over a delineated area has been granted for 
parking space use.  

2. Mixed use projects are developments where a variety of uses occupies a development project or 
complex. For example, an eating establishment, professional office building and movie theater are all 
components of a mixed use site. It does not include a secondary use within a primary use such as an 
administrative office associated with a retail establishment. In mixed-use projects, the required 
minimum vehicle parking shall be determined using the following formula:  

a. Primary use: i.e. that with the largest proportion of total floor area within the development at 
one hundred (100) percent of the minimum vehicle parking required for that use.  

b. Secondary Use: i.e. that with the second largest percentage of total floor area within the 
development, at ninety (90) percent of the vehicle parking required for that use.  

c. Subsequent use or uses, at eighty (80) percent of the vehicle parking required for that use.  

Exhibit A

58



 

 

 

3. Parking reduction is allowed with development that provides solar panels or wind power capacity, car-
sharing parking spaces, electric-vehicle parking spaces, and housing units that are fully accessible to 
people with mobility disabilities as defined in Section 16.94.020.B(6). 

D. Prohibited Uses  

Required parking, loading and maneuvering areas shall not be used for long-term storage or sale of vehicles 
or other materials, and shall not be rented, leased or assigned to any person or organization not using or 
occupying the building or use served.  

E. Location  

1. Residential off-street parking spaces:  

a. Shall be located on the same lot or development as the residential use.  

a. Garages and carports are not required for residential developments. 

b. If garages and carports are proposed, the garage and carport parking space(s) shall count as off-
street parking. 

c. Residential off-street parking spaces can be shared per Section 16.94.010.C.1.a. 

d. If all proposed parking is off-site, off-site parking for people with disabilities must be located 
within the shortest possible distance of an accessible entrance via an accessible path and no 
greater than 200 feet from that entrance. 

 

b. Shall not include garages or enclosed buildings with the exception of a parking structure in Multi-
Family dwelling developments where three (3) or more spaces are not individually enclosed. 
(Example: Underground or multi-level parking structures).  

2. For other non-residential uses, required off-street parking spaces may include adjacent on-street 
parking spaces, nearby public parking and shared parking located within five hundred (500) 2,000 feet 
of the use. The distance from the parking, area to the use shall be measured from the nearest parking 
space to a building entrance, following a sidewalk or other pedestrian route. The right to use private 
off-site parking must be evidenced by a recorded deed, lease, easement, or similar written notarized 
letter or instrument.  

3. Vehicle parking is allowed only on improved parking shoulders that meet City standards for public 
streets, within garages, carports and other structures, or on driveways or parking lots that have been 
developed in conformance with this code. Specific locations and types of spaces (car pool, compact, 
etc.) for parking shall be indicated on submitted plans and located to the side or rear of buildings 
where feasible.  

a. All Any new development with forty (40) more than fifty (50) employees or more shall include 
preferential spaces for carpool/vanpool designation. Carpool and vanpool parking spaces shall be 
located closer to the main employee entrance than all other parking spaces with the exception of 
ADA parking spaces. Carpool/vanpool spaces shall be clearly marked as reserved for 
carpool/vanpool only.  

b. Existing development may redevelop portions of designated parking areas for multi-modal 
facilities (transit shelters, park and ride, and bicycle parking), subject to meeting all other 
applicable standards, including minimum space standards.  

c. In applying subsections a and b above, access for emergency vehicles must be retained and 
adequate parking for truck loading should be considered.  

Exhibit A

59



 

 

4. Any new development that includes more than one-half acre of new off-street surface parking on a lot 
or parcel shall provide one of the provisions below.  The new surface parking area shall be measured 
based on the perimeter of all new off-street spaces, maneuvering lanes, and maneuvering areas, 
including driveways and drive aisles. 

a. Installation of solar panels with a generation capacity of at least 0.5 kilowatt per new parking 
space. Panels may be located anywhere on the property. In lieu of installing solar panels on site, 
the developer may pay $1,500 per new parking space in the development into a city fund dedicated 
to equitable solar or wind energy development or a fund at the Oregon Department of Energy 
designated for such purpose; or 

b.  Actions to comply with Green Energy Technology per OAR 330-135-0010; or 

c.  Tree canopy covering at least 40 percent of the new parking lot area at maturity but no more than 
15 years after planting.  

5.  Any new development that includes more than one-half acre of new surface parking on a lot or parcel 
shall provide either trees along driveways or a minimum of 30 percent tree canopy coverage over 
parking areas. Developments are not required to provide trees along drive aisles. The tree spacing and 
species planted must be designed to maintain a continuous canopy, except when interrupted by 
driveways, drive aisles, and other site design considerations; and 

6. Provisions under subsections 4 and 5 above, the following shall apply: 

a. Development of a tree canopy plan shall be done in coordination with the local electric utility, 
including pre-design, design, building, and maintenance phases.  

b. Trees must be planted and maintained to maximize their root health and chances for survival, 
including having ample high-quality soil, space for root growth, and reliable irrigation according to the 
needs of the species. Trees should be planted in continuous trenches where possible. The minimum 
standards for planting and tree care no lower than the current American National Standards Institute 
A300 standards. 

7.     Conversion and redevelopment of underutilized parking areas for other uses is allowed. 

The City may allow the development of underused parking areas for uses permitted in the applicable 
zone. Underutilized shall mean any portion of the parking area that remains mostly vacant throughout 
most of the year (excluding special events or peak periods). A study shall accompany any request for 
site plan review Land Use applications. The study shall demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the City, that 
the elimination of the existing parking will have no detrimental effects, that cannot be mitigated by 
the applicant, on the property or sounding properties. This includes, but is not limited to, the 
possibility that the elimination of parking areas may shift the need for parking onto neighboring 
properties or cause any other negative impacts to surrounding properties. 

8.  Any new development that includes more than one-half acre of new off-street surface parking on a lot 
or parcel shall meet pedestrian walkway standards per Section 16.96.020 or 16.96.030. 

 

F. Marking  

All parking, loading or maneuvering areas shall be clearly marked and painted. All interior drives and access 
aisles shall be clearly marked and signed to show the direction of flow and maintain vehicular and pedestrian 
safety.  

G. Surface and Drainage  

Exhibit A

60



 

 

1. All parking and loading areas shall be improved with a permanent hard surface such as asphalt, 
concrete or a durable pervious surface. Use of pervious paving material is encouraged and preferred 
where appropriate considering soils, location, anticipated vehicle usage and other pertinent factors.  

2. Parking and loading areas shall include storm water drainage facilities approved by the City Engineer or 
Building Official.  

H. Repairs  

Parking and loading areas shall be kept clean and in good repair. Breaks in paved surfaces shall be repaired. 
Broken or splintered wheel stops shall be replaced. Painted parking space boundaries and directional symbols shall 
be maintained in a readable condition.  

I. Parking and Loading Plan  

An off-street parking and loading plan, drawn to scale, shall accompany requests for building permits or site 
plan approvals. A parking and loading plan is not required for all residential housing types, except for Multi-family, 
on residential lots in a recorded subdivision. The plan shall show but not be limited to:  

1. Delineation of individual parking and loading spaces and dimensions.  

2. Circulation areas necessary to serve parking and loading spaces.  

3. Location of accesses to streets, alleys and properties to be served, and any curb cuts.  

4. Landscaping as required by Chapter 16.92.  

5. Grading and drainage facilities.  

6. Signing and bumper guard specifications.  

7. Bicycle parking facilities as specified in Section 16.94.020.C.  

8. Parking lots more than one (1) acre in size shall provide street-like features including curbs, sidewalks, 
and street trees or planting strips.  

J. Parking Districts  

The City may establish a parking district (i.e., permits or signage) in residential areas in order to protect 
residential areas from spillover parking generated by adjacent commercial, employment or mixed-use areas, or 
other uses that generate a high demand for parking. The district request shall be made to the City Manager, who 
will forward a recommendation to the City Council for a decision.  

K. Structured parking and on-street parking are exempt from the parking space maximums in Section 
16.94.020.A.  

L. Commercial Uses 

Parking spaces for rented or leased commercial uses shall be unbundled per Title 5.36.    

 

(Ord. No. 2021-010 , § 2, 12-7-2021; Ord. No. 2014-012, § 3, 7-17-2014; Ord. No. 2012-008, § 2, 7-17-2012; Ord. 
No. 2010-015, § 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. 2006-021; 2000-2001, § 3; Ord. 2000-2001, § 3; Ord. 86-851, § 3) 

16.94.020 Off-Street Parking Standards 

A. Generally  

Where square feet are specified, the area measured shall be the gross building floor area primary to the 
functioning of the proposed use. Where employees are specified, persons counted shall be those working on the 
premises, including proprietors, during the largest shift at peak season. Fractional space requirements shall be 
counted as a whole space. The Review Authority may determine alternate off - street parking and loading 

Exhibit A

61



 

 

requirements for a use not specifically listed in this Section based upon the requirements of comparable uses. Per 
OAR 660-012-0440 Parking Reform Near Transit Corridors no off-street parking is required for developments on a 
lot or parcel that includes lands within one-half (1/2) mile of a frequent transit corridor. Per OAR 660-012-0435 
Climate Friendly Areas, no off-street parking is required within the Sherwood Town Center and one-quarter mile of 
the area (see CFEC Parking Delineated Area Map). 

 

Table 1: Minimum and Maximum Parking Standards for lots or parcels not within the CFEC Parking Delineated 
Area 

(Metro spaces are based on 1 per 1,000 sq ft of gross leasable area; ADU standards are per OAR Division 46  

 Minimum Parking 
Standard  

Maximum Permitted 
Parking Zone A1  

Maximum Permitted 
Parking Zone B2  

Accessory Dwelling Unit  None  None  None  
Single-Family detached 
and manufactured home 
on lot3  

1 per dwelling unit  None  None  

Duplex  1 space per dwelling unit 
(total of 2 per duplex)  

None  None  

Triplex     
 • Lot area less than 
3,000 SF  

1 space total  None  None  

 • Lot area equal to or 
greater than 3,000 SF and 
less than 5,000 SF  

2 spaces total  None  None  

 • Lot area equal to or 
greater than 5,000 SF  

3 spaces total  None  None  

Quadplex     
 • Lot area less than 
3,000 SF  

1 space total  None  None  

 • Lot area equal to or 
greater than 3,000 SF and 
less than 5,000 SF  

2 spaces total  None  None  

 • Lot area equal to or 
greater than 5,000 SF and 
less than 7,000 SF  

3 spaces total  None  None  

 • Lot area equal to or 
greater than 7,000 SF  

4 spaces total  None  None  

Townhome  1 space per unit  None  None  
Cottage Cluster  1 space per unit  None  None  
Multi-Family dwelling4  1 per unit under 500 sf  

1.25 per 1 bdr  
1.5 per 2 bdr  
1.75 per 3 bdr  

None  None  

Hotel or motel  1 per room  None  None  
Boarding house  None  None  None  
General retail or personal 
service  

4.1 (244 sf)  5.1  6.2  

Vehicle sales, nursery  4.1  5.1  6.2  
Furniture/appliance store  4.1  5.1  6.2  
Tennis racquetball court  1.0  1.3  1.5  

Exhibit A

62



 

 

Golf course  None  None  None  
Sports club/recreation 
facility  

4.3 (233 sf)  5.4  6.5  

General office  2.7 (370 sf)  3.4  4.1  
Bank with drive-thru  4.3 (233 sf)  5.4  6.5  
Eating or drinking 
establishment  

15.3 (65 sf)  19.1  23.0  

Fast food drive-thru  9.9 (101 sf)  12.4  14.9  
Movie theater  0.3 per seat  0.4  0.5  
Day care Child Care 
Facility as defined in ORS 
329A.250 

None  None  None  

Elementary and junior 
high  

None  None  None  

High school and college  0.2 per student + teacher  0.3  0.3  
Places of worship  0.5 per seat  0.6  0.8  
Nursing home  None  None  None  
Library  None  None  None  
Single-room occupancy 
housing 

None None None 

Residential units smaller 
than 750 square feet 

None None None 

Affordable Units as 
defined in OAR 660-039-
0010 

None None None 

Facilities for people with 
disabilities as defined in 
ORS 443.400 

None None None 

Public supported housing 
as defined in ORS 456.250 

None None None 

Domestic Violence, 
Emergency and 
Transitional Shelters 

None None None 

Industrial  1.6  None  None  
Warehouse (gross square 
feet; parking ratios apply 
to warehouses 150,000 
gsf or greater)  

0.3  0.4  0.5  

 
1  Parking Zone A reflects the maximum number of permitted vehicle parking spaces allowed for each listed land 
use. Parking Zone A areas include those parcels that are located within one-quarter (¼) mile walking distance of 
bus transit stops, one-half (½) mile walking distance of light rail station platforms, or both, or that have a greater 
than twenty-minute peak hour transit service.  
2  Parking Zone B reflects the maximum number of permitted vehicle parking spaces allowed for each listed land 
use. Parking Zone B areas include those parcels that are located at a distance greater than one-quarter (¼) mile 
walking distance of bus transit stops, one-half (½) mile walking distance of light rail station platforms, or both.  
3  If the street on which the house has direct access does not permit on-street parking or is less than twenty-eight 
(28) feet wide, two (2) off-street parking spaces are required per single-family-detached dwelling (includes a 

Exhibit A

63



 

 

manufactured home on an individual lot) if the abutting street is twenty-eight (28) feet or wider, one (1) standard 
(9 ft. × 20 ft.) parking space is required.  
4  Visitor parking in residential developments: Multi-Family dwelling units with more than ten (10) required 
parking spaces shall provide an additional fifteen (15) percent of the required number of parking spaces for the use 
of guests of the residents of the development. The spaces shall be centrally located or distributed throughout the 
development. Required bicycle parking facilities shall also be centrally located within or evenly distributed 
throughout the development.  

B. Dimensional and General Configuration Standards  

1. Dimensions For the purpose of this Chapter, a "parking space" means a stall nine (9) feet in width and 
twenty (20) feet in length. Up to twenty five (25) percent of required parking spaces may have a 
minimum dimension of eight (8) feet in width and eighteen (18) feet in length so long as they are 
signed as compact car stalls.  

2. Layout  

Parking space configuration, stall and access aisle size shall be of sufficient width for all vehicle turning 
and maneuvering. Groups of more than four (4) parking spaces shall be served by a driveway so as to 
minimize backing movements or other maneuvering within a street, other than an alley. All parking 
areas shall meet the minimum standards shown in the following table and diagram.  

 
Table 2: Minimum Parking Dimension Requirements 
One-Way Driving Aisle (Dimensions in Feet)  

 A  B  C  D  E  F  G  H  J  
45º  8.0  16.5  13.0  11.3  46.0  3.0  2.5  51.0  

9.0  18.5  12.0  12.7  49.0  3.0  2.5  54.0  
60º  8.0  17.0  18.0  9.2  52.0  3.0  2.5  57.0  

9.0  19.5  16.0  10.4  55.0  3.0  2.5  60.0  
75º  8.0  16.5  26.0  8.3  59.0  3.0  3.0  65.0  

9.0  19.0  23.0  9.3  61.0  3.0  3.0  67.0  
90º  8.0  18.0  26.0  8.0  56.0  3.0  3.0  62.0  

9.0  20.0  24.0  9.0  58.0  3.0  3.0  64.0  

 

Exhibit A

64



 

 

Table 3: Two-Way Driving Aisle 
(Dimensions in Feet)  

 A  B  C  D  E  F  G  H  J  
45º  8.0  16.5  24.0  11.3  57.0  3.0  2.5  62.0  

9.0  18.5  24.0  12.7  61.0  3.0  2.5  66.0  
60º  8.0  17.0  24.0  9.2  58.0  3.0  2.5  63.0  

9.0  19.5  24.0  10.4  63.0  3.0  2.5  68.0  
75º  8.0  16.5  26.0  8.3  59.0  3.0  3.0  65.0  

9.0  19.0  24.0  9.3  62.0  3.0  3.0  68.0  
90º  8.0  18.0  26.0  8.0  56.0  3.0  3.0  62.0  

9.0  20.0  24.0  9.0  58.0  3.0  3.0  64.0  
 

3. Wheel Stops  

a. Parking spaces along the boundaries of a parking lot or adjacent to interior landscaped areas or 
sidewalks shall be provided with a wheel stop at least four (4) inches high, located three (3) feet 
back from the front of the parking stall as shown in the above diagram.  

b. Wheel stops adjacent to landscaping, bio-swales or water quality facilities shall be designed to 
allow storm water runoff.  

c. The paved portion of the parking stall length may be reduced by three (3) feet if replaced with 
three (3) feet of low lying landscape or hardscape in lieu of a wheel stop; however, a curb is still 
required. In other words, the traditional three-foot vehicle overhang from a wheel stop may be 
low-lying landscaping rather than an impervious surface.  

4. Service Drives  

Service drives shall be clearly and permanently marked and defined through use of rails, fences, walls, 
or other barriers or markers, and shall have minimum vision clearance area formed by the intersection 
of the driveway center line, the street right-of-way line, and a straight line joining said lines through 
points fifteen (15) feet from their intersection.  

5. Credit for On-Street Parking  

a. On-Street Parking Credit. Except for residential uses, the amount of off-street parking required 
shall be reduced by one (1) off-street parking space for every on-street parking space adjacent to 
the development. On-street parking shall follow the established configuration of existing on-
street parking, except that angled parking may be allowed for some streets, where permitted by 
City standards.  

b. The following constitutes an on-street parking space:  

(1) Parallel parking, each twenty-four (24) feet of uninterrupted curb;  

(2) Forty-five (45)/sixty (60) degree diagonal, each with ten (10) feet of curb;  

(3) Ninety (90) degree (perpendicular) parking, each with eight (8) feet of curb;  

(4) Curb space must be connected to the lot which contains the use;  

(5) Parking spaces that would not obstruct a required clear vision area, nor any other parking 
that violates any law or street standard; and;  

(6) On-street parking spaces credited for a specific use may not be used exclusively by that 
use, but shall be available for general public use at all times. No signs or actions limiting 
general public use of on-street spaces is permitted.  

Exhibit A

65



 

 

6. Reduction in Required Parking Spaces  

a. Developments utilizing Engineered storm water bio-swales or those adjacent to environmentally 
constrained or sensitive areas may reduce the amount of required parking spaces by ten (10) 
percent when twenty-five (25) through forty-nine (49) parking spaces are required, fifteen (15) 
percent when fifty (50) and seventy-four (74) parking spaces are required and twenty (20) percent 
when more than seventy-five (75) parking spaces are required, provided the area that would have 
been used for parking is maintained as a habitat area or is generally adjacent to an environmentally 
sensitive or constrained area.  

b. Solar Panels or Wind Power - developments utilizing solar panels or wind power may reduce the 
amount of required parking spaces by one (1) parking space when three kilowatts of capacity in 
solar panels or wind power is proposed to be provided in a development. 

c.  Car-Sharing – developments utilizing car-sharing parking may reduce the amount of required 
parking spaces by one (1) off-street parking space for each dedicated car-sharing parking space in a 
development. Dedicated car-sharing parking spaces shall count as spaces for parking mandates. 

d. Electric Vehicle Charging Station – developments that provide electric vehicle charging station may 
reduce the amount of required parking spaces by two (2) off-street parking spaces for every electric 
vehicle charging station provided in a development. Parking spaces that include electric vehicle 
charging while an automobile is parked shall count towards parking mandates. 

e. Fully Accessible Parking – developments utilizing this provision may reduce one (1) off-street 
parking space for every two units in a development above minimum requirements that are fully 
accessible to people with mobility disabilities. 

f. Any reductions under Section 16.94.020.B.6 (a-e) above, shall be cumulative and not capped. 

 

7. Parking Location and Shared Parking  

Owners of off-street parking facilities may post a sign indicating that all parking on the site is available 
only for residents, customers and/or employees, as applicable.  

C. Bicycle Parking Facilities  

1. General Provisions  

a. Applicability. Bicycle parking spaces shall be provided for new development, changes of use, and 
major renovations, defined as construction valued at twenty-five (25) percent or more of the 
assessed value of the existing structure.  

b. Types of Spaces. Bicycle parking facilities shall be provided in terms of short-term bicycle parking 
and long-term bicycle parking. Short-term bicycle parking is intended to encourage customers 
and other visitors to use bicycles by providing a convenient and readily accessible place to park 
bicycles. Long-term bicycle parking provides employees, students, residents, commuters, and 
others who generally stay at a site for at least several hours a weather-protected place to park 
bicycles.  

c. Minimum Number of Spaces. The required total minimum number of bicycle parking spaces for 
each use category is shown in Table 4, Minimum Required Bicycle Parking Spaces.  

d. Minimum Number of Long-term Spaces. If a development is required to provide eight (8) or more 
required bicycle parking spaces in Table 4, at least twenty-five (25) percent shall be provided as 
long-term bicycle with a minimum of one (1) long-term bicycle parking space.  

e. Multiple Uses. When there are two or more primary uses on a site, the required bicycle parking 
for the site is the sum of the required bicycle parking for the individual primary uses.  

Exhibit A

66



 

 

2. Location and Design.  

a. General Provisions  

(1) Each space must be at least two (2) feet by six (6) feet in area, be accessible without 
moving another bicycle, and provide enough space between the rack and any obstructions 
to use the space properly.  

(2) There must be an aisle at least five (5) feet wide behind all required bicycle parking to allow 
room for bicycle maneuvering. Where the bicycle parking is adjacent to a sidewalk, the 
maneuvering area may extend into the right-of-way.  

(3) Lighting. Bicycle parking shall be at least as well lit as vehicle parking for security.  

(4) Reserved Areas. Areas set aside for bicycle parking shall be clearly marked and reserved for 
bicycle parking only.  

(5) Bicycle parking in the Old Town Overlay District can be located on the sidewalk within the 
right-of-way. A standard inverted "U shaped" or staple design is appropriate. Alternative, 
creative designs are strongly encouraged.  

(6) Hazards. Bicycle parking shall not impede or create a hazard to pedestrians. Parking areas 
shall be located so as to not conflict with vision clearance standards.  

b. Short-term Bicycle Parking  

(1) Provide lockers or racks that meet the standards of this section.  

(2) Locate inside or outside the building within thirty (30) feet of the main entrance to the 
building or at least as close as the nearest vehicle parking space, whichever is closer.  

c. Long-term Bicycle Parking  

(1) Provide racks, storage rooms, or lockers in areas that are secure or monitored (e.g., visible 
to employees or customers or monitored by security guards).  

(2) Locate the outside bicycle parking spaces within one hundred (100) feet of the entrance 
that will be accessed by the intended users.  

(3) All of the spaces shall be covered.  

d. Covered Parking (Weather Protection)  

(1) When required, covered bicycle parking shall be provided in one (1) of the following ways: 
inside buildings, under roof overhangs or awnings, in bicycle lockers, or within or under 
other structures.  

(2) Where required covered bicycle parking is not within a building or locker, the cover must 
be permanent and designed to protect the bicycle from rainfall and provide seven-foot 
minimum overhead clearance.  

(3) Where required bicycle parking is provided in lockers, the lockers shall be securely 
anchored.  

Table 4: Minimum Required Bicycle Parking Spaces 

Use Categories  Minimum Required Spaces  
Residential Categories 
Household living  Multi-dwelling — 2 or 1 per 10 auto spaces.  

All other residential structure types — None  
Group living  1 per 20 auto spaces  
Commercial Categories 

Exhibit A

67



 

 

Retail sales/service office  2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces, whichever is greater  
Drive-up vehicle servicing  None  
Vehicle repair  None  
Commercial parking facilities, commercial, outdoor 
recreation, major event entertainment  

4 or 1 per 20 auto spaces, whichever is greater  

Self-service storage  None  
Industrial Categories 
Industrial  2 or 1 per 40 spaces, whichever is greater  
Public and Institutional Categories 
Park and ride facilities  2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces  
Community service essential service providers parks 
and open areas  

2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces, whichever is greater  

Schools  High schools — 4 per classroom  
 Middle schools — 2 per classroom  
 Grade schools — 2 per 4th & 5th grade classroom  
Colleges, medical centers, religious institutions, 
daycare uses  

2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces whichever is greater  

 

(Ord. No. 2022-004 , § 2, 6-13-2022; Ord. No. 2021-010 , § 2, 12-7-2021; Ord. No. 2018-007, § 2, 10-2-2018; Ord. 
No. 2015-003, § 2, 3-17-2015; Ord. No. 2014-012, § 3, 7-17-2014; Ord. No. 2012-008, § 2, 7-17-2012; Ord. No. 
2010-015, § 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. 2006-021; 2005-009 § 8; Ord. 2000-2001 § 3; Ord. 86-851 § 3) 

16.94.030 Off-Street Loading Standards 

A. Minimum Standards  

1. A driveway designed for continuous forward flow of passenger vehicles for the purpose of loading and 
unloading passengers shall be located on the site of any school, or other public meeting place, which is 
designed to accommodate more than twenty five (25) persons at one time.  

2. The minimum loading area for non-residential uses shall not be less than ten (10) feet in width by 
twenty-five (25) feet in length and shall have an unobstructed height of fourteen (14) feet.  

3. Multiple uses on the same parcel or adjacent parcels may utilize the same loading area if it is shown in 
the development application that the uses will not have substantially overlapping delivery times.  

4. The following additional minimum loading space is required for buildings in excess of twenty thousand 
(20,000) square feet of gross floor area:  

a. Twenty thousand (20,000) to fifty (50,000) sq. ft. - five hundred (500) sq. ft.  

b. Fifty (50,000) sq. ft. or more - seven hundred fifty (750) sq. ft.  

B. Separation of Areas  

Any area to be used for the maneuvering of delivery vehicles and the unloading or loading of materials shall 
be separated from designated off-street parking areas and designed to prevent the encroachment of delivery 
vehicles onto off-street parking areas or public streets. Off-street parking areas used to fulfill the requirements of 
this Chapter shall not be used for loading and unloading operations.  

C. Exceptions and Adjustments.  

The review authority, through Site Plan Review, may approve loading areas within a street right-of-way in the 
Old Town Overlay District when all of the following conditions are met:  

1. Short in duration (i.e., less than one (1) hour);  

Exhibit A

68



 

 

2. Infrequent (less than three (3) operations occur daily between 5:00 a.m. and 12:00 a.m. or all 
operations occur between 12:00 a.m. and 5:00 a.m. at a location that is not adjacent to a residential 
zone);  

3. Does not unreasonably obstruct traffic; [or] Does not obstruct traffic during peak traffic hours;  

4. Does not obstruct a primary emergency response route; and  

5. Is acceptable to the applicable roadway authority.  

(Ord. No. 2014-012, § 3, 7-17-2014; Ord. No. 2012-008, § 2, 7-17-2012; Ord. No. 2010-015, § 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. 
No. 2009-005, § 2, 6-2-2009; Ord. 86-851, § 3) 

  

Exhibit A

69



 

 

Chapter 16.140 - PARKS, TREES, AND OPEN SPACES Commentary 

OAR 660-012-0405 Parking Regulation Improvements   
 Development standards for new surface parking lots more than ½ acre in size 

Exhibit A

70



 

 

Chapter 16.140 - PARKS, TREES AND OPEN SPACES 

16.140.010 Purpose  
This Chapter is intended to assure the provision of a system of public and private recreation and open space 

areas and facilities consistent with this Code and applicable portions of the City's adopted Comprehensive Plan. 
The standards of this section do not supersede the open space requirements of a Planned Unit Development, 
found in Chapter 16.40 - Planned Unit Development (PUD).  

(Ord. No. 2023-002 , § 2, 3-7-2023; Ord. No. 2011-009, § 2, 7-19-2011; Ord. 2006-021; 91-922, § 3) 

 
***

16.140.070 Trees on Property Subject to Certain Land Use Applications 

A. Generally  

The purpose of this Section is to establish processes and standards which will minimize cutting or destruction 
of trees and woodlands within the City. This Section is intended to help protect the scenic beauty of the City; to 
retain a livable environment through the beneficial effect of trees on air pollution, heat and glare, sound, water 
quality, and surface water and erosion control; to encourage the retention and planting of tree species native to 
the Willamette Valley and Western Oregon; to provide an attractive visual contrast to the urban environment, and 
to sustain a wide variety and distribution of viable trees and woodlands in the community over time.  

*** 

 

D. Retention requirements  

1. Trees may be considered for removal to accommodate the development including buildings, 
parking, walkways, grading etc., provided the development satisfies of D.2 or D.3, below.  

2. Required Tree Canopy - All Residential Developments subject to Type II—IV land use review.  

Each net development site shall provide a variety of trees to achieve a minimum total tree canopy of 
40 percent. The canopy percentage is based on the expected mature canopy of each tree by using the 
equation πr2 to calculate the expected square footage of canopy for each tree. The expected mature 
canopy is counted for each tree regardless of an overlap of multiple tree canopies.  

The canopy requirement can be achieved by retaining existing trees or planting new trees. Required 
street trees can be used toward the total on site canopy required to meet this standard. The expected 
mature canopy spread of the new trees will be counted toward the needed canopy cover. A certified 
arborist or other qualified professional shall provide the estimated tree canopy of the proposed trees 
to the planning department for review.  

3. Required Tree Canopy - Non-Residential and Multi-Family Dwelling Developments  

a.    Each net development site shall provide a variety of trees to achieve a minimum total tree canopy 
of 30 percent. The canopy percentage is based on the expected mature canopy of each tree by 
using the equation πr2 to calculate the expected square footage of each tree. The expected mature 
canopy is counted for each tree even if there is an overlap of multiple tree canopies.  

b.    The canopy requirement can be achieved by retaining existing trees or planting new trees. 
Required landscaping trees can be used toward the total on site canopy required to meet this 
standard. The expected mature canopy spread of the new trees will be counted toward the 
required canopy cover. A certified arborist or other qualified professional shall provide an 

Exhibit A

71



 

 

estimated tree canopy for all proposed trees to the planning department for review as a part of the 
land use review process.  

c.    Development standards for new surface parking lots more than half (½) acre in size, see Section 
16.94 Parking and Loading.  

 

  Residential  
(single family  
detached and  
middle housing  
developments)  
subject to  
Residential  
Design  
Checklist  
or Type I review  

Residential  
(single family  
detached and  
middle housing  
developments)  
subject to Type  
II—IV review  

Old Town & Infill  
developments  

Commercial,  
Industrial,  
Institutional  
Public and  
Multi-Family  
dwelling  

Canopy 
Requirement  

N/A  40%  N/A  30%  

Counted Toward the Canopy Requirement  

Street trees 
included in canopy 
requirement  

N/A  Yes  N/A  No  

Landscaping 
requirements 
included in canopy 
requirement  

N/A  N/A  N/A  Yes  

Existing trees onsite  N/A  Yes x2  N/A  Yes x2  

Planting new trees 
onsite  

N/A  Yes  N/A  Yes  

Mature Canopy in Square Feet Equation πr 2 or (3.14159*radius 2) (This is the calculation to measure the 
square footage of a circle.  
   
The Mature Canopy is given in diameter. In gardening and horticulture reference books, therefore to get the 
radius you must divide the diameter in half.  

Canopy Calculation Example: Pin Oak  
Mature canopy = 35'  
 
(3.14159* 17.52 ) = 962 square feet  

 

Exhibit A

72



 

 

 

*** 
 
 

 

Exhibit A

73



City of Sherwood 
CFEC Parking Delineated Area

¯

Legend

0 0.5 10.25
Miles

Per Oregon Administrative Rules: 660-012-0440 & 660-012-0435

CFEC Parking Mandates 

TriMet Route (Line 94)

Sherwood Town Center Plan Area 

Sherwood City Limits

Sherwood Taxlots

Exhibit A

74

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Langer Farms Parkway 

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Pacific Highway

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Willamette  

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Sherwood Boulevard

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Tualatin Sherwood Boulevard   



Proposed Amendments to Title 3 – REVENUE AND FINANCE, new Chapter 3.40 COMMERCIAL PARKING LOT LOCAL 
TAX to implement the Climate Friendly & Equitable Communities statutes. 

 
Title 3 – REVENUE AND FINANCE  

Chapter 3.40 COMMERCIAL PARKING LOT LOCAL TAX 
 
 

NEW = UNDERLINED  Page 1 of 3 
DELETED = STRIKETHROUGH   

Chapter 3.40 COMMERCIAL PARKING LOT LOCAL TAX 

3.40.010 Purpose 

A. The purpose of this chapter is to impose a tax on commercial parking lots in the City of 
Sherwood.  

B. The commercial parking lot tax imposed by this chapter follows OAR 660-012-
0445(1)(a)(D). 

3.40.020 Definitions.  

The definitions contained in Chapter 3.40 of the Sherwood Municipal Code shall be fully 
applicable to this chapter except as may be expressly stated to the contrary herein. The 
following additional definitions shall apply throughout this chapter:  

A. "Commercial parking business" means the ownership, lease, operation, or 
management of a commercial parking lot in which fees are charged for the act or 
privilege of parking motor vehicles.  

B. "Commercial parking lot" means a standalone, covered, or uncovered area used for 
the purpose of parking motor vehicles for a fee. Parking associated with a retail or 
personal service use in the same development.  

C. "Parking tax" means the commercial parking tax imposed by this chapter.  

D. "City Manager" means the City Manager of the City of Sherwood, or his or her 
designee.

3.40.030 Parking tax imposed 

A. Pursuant to OAR 660-012-0445(1)(a)(D), there is imposed on every person a tax for the act 
or privilege of parking a motor vehicle in a commercial parking lot within the City that is 
operated by a commercial parking business. The privilege of parking includes the right to 
park, whether or not the right is exercised.  

B. The amount of the parking tax shall be equal to the parking fee multiplied by the parking 
tax rate. Effective July 1, 2024, the parking tax rate is imposed at ten percent (0.10).  

3.40.040 Measure of Tax: Parking Fee. 

A. The measure of the parking tax is the parking fee. Parking fee means the fee paid or due 
for the act or privilege of parking a motor vehicle in a commercial parking lot.  

Exhibit A

75



 

NEW = UNDERLINED  Page 2 of 3 
DELETED = STRIKETHROUGH   

 

B. It shall be conclusively presumed that the posted parking prices do not include the parking 
tax unless all the following conditions are met:  

1. The fee is advertised as including the tax or that the commercial parking business is 
paying the tax;  

2. The words "tax included" are stated immediately following the advertised or posted 
prices in print size at least half as large as the advertised or posted prices print size; 
and  

3. All advertised or posted parking prices and the words "tax included" are stated in the 
same medium, whether oral or visual, and if oral, in substantially the same inflection 
and volume. If these conditions are satisfied, then price lists, reader boards, and other 
price information mediums need not show separately the parking fee and the actual 
amount of commercial parking tax being collected.  

3.40.050 Exemptions from the Parking Tax. 

The following are exempt from the parking tax:  

A. General retail and commercial service parking lots associated with a development 
that has received land use approval.  

B. Mini-warehousing or self-storage 

3.40.060 Collection and Remittance Of Tax. 

A commercial parking business or person acting on its behalf shall collect the amount of 
the parking tax from the person paying the parking fee at the time payment is made. The 
parking tax shall be stated separately from the parking fee on all instruments evidencing the 
parking fee. The presumption is not overcome by any oral or written agreement between the 
parties.  

The person receiving payment of the parking fee shall remit the parking tax to the City 
Manager quarterly (April 15th, July 15th, October 15th, and January 15th). The parking tax shall be 
deemed held in trust by the person required to collect the same until remitted to the City 
Manager. Any person who fails to collect the parking tax, or who collects the parking tax but 
fails to remit the parking tax to the City Manager, shall be liable to the City for the amount of 
such tax. The commercial parking business or person acting on its behalf who fails to remit the 
full amount of the tax imposed and due by this chapter prior to delinquency shall pay a late 
payment penalty of ten percent of the amount of the portion of the tax that is unpaid as of the 
delinquency date, which penalty is owed in addition to the amount of the tax due. 

Such person shall, unless the remittance is made as required in this section, be guilty of a 
violation of this chapter whether such failure be the result of the person's own act or the result 
of acts or conditions beyond its control.  

Exhibit A

76



 

NEW = UNDERLINED  Page 3 of 3 
DELETED = STRIKETHROUGH   

 

3.40.070 Use Of Revenues. 

The proceeds of the tax imposed herein shall be used for transportation alternatives to 
drive-alone travel including active transportation options in accordance with OAR 660-012-
0445(1)(a)(D). To the extent permitted by applicable law the City may issue bonds, notes, or 
other evidence of indebtedness payable wholly or in part from the parking tax and may pledge 
and may apply such tax to the payment of principal of, interest on, and premium (if any) on 
such bonds, notes, or other evidence of indebtedness and to the payment of costs associated 
with them.  

3.40.080 Receipts To Transportation Fund. 

All receipts from the parking tax shall be placed in and segregated within the 
Transportation Fund. These receipts may be temporarily deposited or invested in such manner 
as may be lawful for the investment of City money and interest and other earnings shall be 
deposited in the Transportation Fund.  

 

Exhibit A

77



Proposed Amendments to Title 5 - BUSINESS LICENSES AND REGULATIONS, new Chapter 5.36 UNBUNDLED 
PARKING FOR COMMERCIAL LEASES to implement the Climate Friendly & Equitable Communities statutes. 
 

Title 5 – BUSINESS LICENSES AND REGULATIONS 
Chapter 5.36 UNBUNDLED PARKING FOR COMMERCIAL LEASES 

 
 

NEW = UNDERLINED  
DELETED = STRIKETHROUGH  Page 1 of 1 

Chapter 5.36 UNBUNDLED PARKING FOR COMMERCIAL LEASES 

 

5.36.010 Parking for rented or leased commercial uses. 

A. Parking for commercial uses 
 
1. Unless commercial uses are listed as exempt in subsection 5.36.010.A.2, off-street parking 

accessory to rented or leased commercial use spaces shall not be required in any new rental 
or lease agreement. If parking is desired by the tenant, the fee for parking shall be listed as a 
separate line item within the lease or shall be subject to a separate rental or lease agreement.  

 
2. Exempt uses include: 

a. Hotel and motels 
b. Motor vehicle sales and services 
c. Truck and bus yards 
d. Mini-warehousing or self/auto storage 
e. Vehicle fueling stations or car wash facilities 
 

3. Market Rates for Comparable Local Off-Street Parking - the minimum unbundled parking 
rates shall be no less than $50 per space per month. 

 
 

Exhibit A

78



Title 16  
ZONING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE 

 
The proposed amendments are organized by code chapter. Only those sections of the code that are proposed to 
be amended are included in the document. 
 
  

Exhibit B

79



Chapter 16.90 SITE PLANNING

***

16.90.020 Site Plan Review 

A. Site Plan Review Required  

Site Plan review is required prior to any substantial change to a site or use that is not subject to Residential 
Design Checklist or Residential Design Review, does not meet the criteria of a minor or major modification per 
16.90.030, issuance of building permits for a new building or structure, or for the substantial alteration of an 
existing structure or use. Exemptions noted below.  

Site Plan Review is required for the following development:  

1. Multi-dwelling  

2. Commercial  

3. Industrial  

4. Mixed-use  

For the purposes of Section 16.90.020, the terms "substantial change" and "substantial alteration" mean any 
development activity as defined by this Code that generally requires a building permit and may exhibit one or 
more of the following characteristics:  

1. The activity alters the exterior appearance of a structure, building or property and is not considered a 
modification.  

2. The activity involves changes in the use of a structure, building, or property from residential to 
commercial or industrial and is not considered a modification.  

3. The activity involves non-conforming uses as defined in Chapter 16.48.  

4. The activity constitutes a change in a City approved plan, per Section 16.90.020 and is not considered a 
modification.  

5. The activity is subject to site plan review by other requirements of this Code.  

6. The activity increases the size of the building by more than 100% (i.e. the building more than doubles in 
size), regardless of whether it would be considered a major or minor modification.  

B. Exemption to Site Plan Requirement  

1. Single Family detached and middle housing developments are exempt from Site Plan Review but are 
required to complete either a Residential Design Checklist or Residential Design Review per Chapter 
16.89, unless otherwise noted.  

2. Manufactured homes located on individual residential lots per Section 16.46.010, and including 
manufactured home parks.  

C. Reserved  

D. Required Findings  

No site plan approval will be granted unless each of the following is found:  

1. The proposed development meets applicable zoning district standards and design standards in Division 
II, and all provisions of Divisions V, VI, VIII and IX.  

Exhibit B

80



 

 

2. The proposed development can be adequately served by services conforming to the Community 
Development Plan, including but not limited to water, sanitary facilities, storm water, solid waste, 
parks and open space, public safety, electric power, and communications.  

3. Covenants, agreements, and other specific documents are adequate, in the City's determination, to 
assure an acceptable method of ownership, management, and maintenance of structures, landscaping, 
and other on-site features.  

4. The proposed development preserves significant natural features to the maximum extent feasible, 
including but not limited to natural drainage ways, wetlands, trees, vegetation (including but not 
limited to environmentally sensitive lands), scenic views, and topographical features, and conforms to 
the applicable provisions of Division VIII of this Code and Chapter 5 of the Community Development 
Code.  

5. For developments that are likely to generate more than 400 average daily trips (ADTs), or at the 
discretion of the City Engineer, the applicant must provide adequate information, such as a traffic 
impact analysis (TIA) or traffic counts, to demonstrate the level of impact to the surrounding 
transportation system. The developer is required to mitigate for impacts attributable to the project, 
pursuant to TIA requirements in Section 16.106.080 and rough proportionality requirements in Section 
16.106.090. The determination of impact or effect and the scope of the impact study must be 
coordinated with the provider of the affected transportation facility.  

6. Electric Vehicle Conduits 

a. For proposed multi-family residential or mixed-use developments - proposed multi-family residential 
buildings with five or more residential dwelling units and proposed mixed-use buildings consisting of 
privately owned commercial space and five or more residential dwelling units, shall provide 
sufficient electrical service capacity, as defined in ORS 455.417, to accommodate no less than 40 
percent of all vehicle parking spaces. Dwelling units in townhouses are not included for purposes of 
determining the applicability of this regulation. 

b. For proposed Non-Residential Development under private ownership – Each building for a proposed 
non-residential development, under private ownership, shall provide electrical service capacity at no 
less than 20 percent of the vehicle parking spaces in the garage or parking area for the building. 
Fractional numbers derived from a calculation of the vehicle parking spaces must be rounded up to 
the nearest whole number. 

7. The proposed commercial, Multi-Family dwelling, institutional or mixed-use development is oriented to 
the pedestrian and bicycle, and to existing and planned transit facilities. Urban design standards 
include the following:  

a. Primary, front entrances are located and oriented to the street, and have significant articulation 
and treatment, via facades, porticos, arcades, porches, portal, forecourt, or stoop to identify the 
entrance for pedestrians. Additional entrance/exit points for buildings, such as a postern, are 
allowed from secondary streets or parking areas.  

b. Buildings are located adjacent to and flush to the street, subject to landscape corridor and 
setback standards of the underlying zone.  

c. The architecture of buildings are oriented to the pedestrian and designed for the long term and 
be adaptable to other uses. Aluminum, vinyl, and T-111 siding are prohibited. Street facing 
elevations have windows, transparent fenestration, and divisions to break up the mass of any 
window. Roll up and sliding doors are acceptable. Awnings that provide a minimum 3 feet of 
shelter from rain are required unless other architectural elements are provided for similar 
protection, such as an arcade.  

d. Multi-family development requires a minimum of 15 percent of the area of the primary building 
elevation adjacent to a public right-of-way to include windows and entrance doors, and for the 

Exhibit B

81



 

 

side building elevation, adjacent to a public right-of-way or public accessway, a minimum of 10 
percent glazing of area is required.  

e. As an alternative to the standards in Section 16.90.020.D.6.a—d, the following Commercial 
Design Review Matrix may be applied to any commercial, multi-family, institutional or mixed use 
development (this matrix may not be utilized for developments within the Old Town Overlay). A 
development must propose a minimum of 60 percent of the total possible points to be eligible 
for exemption from the standards in Section 16.90.020.D.6.a—d. In addition, a development 
proposing between 15,001 and 40,000 square feet of floor area, parking or seating capacity and 
proposing a minimum of 80 percent of the total possible points from the matrix below may be 
reviewed as a Type II administrative review, per the standards of Section 16.72.010.A.2.  

*** 

COMMERCIAL DESIGN REVIEW MATRIX 

Design Criteria  Possible Points  
  
0  1  2  3  4  

Parking and Loading Areas (13 Total Points Possible; Minimum 7 Points Required)  
Location of 
Parking  

Greater than 
50 percent of 
required 
parking is 
located 
between any 
building and a 
public street  

25—50 
percent of 
required 
parking is 
located 
between any 
building and a 
public street  

Less than 25 
percent of 
required 
parking is 
located 
between any 
building and a 
public street  

No parking is 
located between 
any building and 
a public street  

—  

Loading Areas  Visible from 
public street 
and not 
screened  

Visible from 
public street 
and screened  

Not visible 
from public 
street  

—  —  

Vegetation  At least one 
"landscaped" 
island every 
13—15 
parking spaces 
in a row  

At least one 
"landscaped" 
island every 
10—12 
parking spaces 
in a row  

At least one 
"landscaped" 
island every 
8—9 parking 
spaces in a 
row  

At least one 
"landscaped" 
island every 6—7 
parking spaces in 
a row  

—  

Number of  
Parking  
Spaces7 

>120%  101—120%  100%  <100% (i.e. joint 
use or multiple 
reduction) (1 
bonus)  

—  

Parking 
Surface  

Impervious  Some pervious 
paving (10—
25%)  

Partially 
pervious 
paving (26—
50%)  

Mostly pervious 
paving (>50%)  

—  

Exhibit B

82



 

 

Landscaping (24 Total Point Possible, Minimum 14 Points Required)  

  7Percent of minimum required. For development projects in the Climate Friendly and Equitable 
Communities frequent transit corridor, no parking is required therefore points are based on the 
percentage of stalls provided relative to the underlying parking standards.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit B

83



 

 

Chapter 16.94 - OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING  

16.94.010 General Requirements 

A. Off-Street Parking Required  

No site shall be used for the parking of vehicles until plans are approved providing for off-street parking and 
loading space as required by this Code. Any change in uses or structures that reduces the current off-street parking 
and loading spaces provided on site, or that increases the need for off-street parking or loading requirements shall 
be unlawful and a violation of this Code, unless additional off-street parking or loading areas are provided in 
accordance with Section 16.94.020, or unless a variance from the minimum or maximum parking standards is 
approved in accordance with Chapter 16.84 Variances.  

B. Deferral of Improvements  

Off-street parking and loading spaces shall be completed prior to the issuance of occupancy permits, unless 
the City determines that weather conditions, lack of available surfacing materials, or other circumstances beyond 
the control of the applicant make completion impossible. In such circumstances, security equal to one hundred 
twenty five (125) percent of the cost of the parking and loading area is provided the City. "Security" may consist of 
a performance bond payable to the City, cash, certified check, or other assurance of completion approved by the 
City. If the installation of the parking or loading area is not completed within one (1) year, the security may be used 
by the City to complete the installation.  

C. Options for Reducing the Required Parking Spaces  

1. Two (2) or more uses or, structures on multiple parcels of land may utilize jointly the same parking and 
loading spaces when the peak hours of operation do not substantially overlap, provided that 
satisfactory evidence is presented to the City, in the form of deeds, leases, or contracts, clearly 
establishing the joint use.  

a. Within residential, commercial, institutional and public, or industrial zones, shared parking may 
be provided on lots that are within two thousand (2,000) feet of the property line of the use to 
be served.  

b. Shared parking is allowed if the application can show that the combined peak use is available by a 
parking study that demonstrates:  

(1) There is a sufficient number of parking spaces to accommodate the requirements of the 
individual businesses; or  

(2) That the peak hours of operation of such establishments do not overlap, and  

(3) That an exclusive permanent easement over a delineated area has been granted for 
parking space use.  

2. Mixed use projects are developments where a variety of uses occupies a development project or 
complex. For example, an eating establishment, professional office building and movie theater are all 
components of a mixed use site. It does not include a secondary use within a primary use such as an 
administrative office associated with a retail establishment. In mixed-use projects, the required 
minimum vehicle parking shall be determined using the following formula:  

a. Primary use: i.e. that with the largest proportion of total floor area within the development at 
one hundred (100) percent of the minimum vehicle parking required for that use.  

b. Secondary Use: i.e. that with the second largest percentage of total floor area within the 
development, at ninety (90) percent of the vehicle parking required for that use.  

c. Subsequent use or uses, at eighty (80) percent of the vehicle parking required for that use.  

Exhibit B

84



 

 

 

3. Parking reduction is allowed with development that provides solar panels or wind power capacity, car-
sharing parking spaces, electric-vehicle parking spaces, and housing units that are fully accessible to 
people with mobility disabilities as defined in Section 16.94.020.B(6). 

D. Prohibited Uses  

Required parking, loading and maneuvering areas shall not be used for long-term storage or sale of vehicles 
or other materials, and shall not be rented, leased or assigned to any person or organization not using or 
occupying the building or use served.  

E. Location  

1. Residential off-street parking spaces:  

 

a. Garages and carports are not required for residential developments. 

b. If garages and carports are proposed, the garage and carport parking space(s) shall count as off-
street parking. 

c. Residential off-street parking spaces can be shared per Section 16.94.010.C.1.a. 

d. If all proposed parking is off-site, off-site parking for people with disabilities must be located 
within the shortest possible distance of an accessible entrance via an accessible path and no 
greater than 200 feet from that entrance. 

  

2. For other non-residential uses, required off-street parking spaces may include adjacent on-street 
parking spaces, nearby public parking and shared parking located within 2,000 feet of the use. The 
distance from the parking, area to the use shall be measured from the nearest parking space to a 
building entrance, following a sidewalk or other pedestrian route. The right to use private off-site 
parking must be evidenced by a recorded deed, lease, easement, or similar written notarized letter or 
instrument.  

3. Vehicle parking is allowed only on improved parking shoulders that meet City standards for public 
streets, within garages, carports and other structures, or on driveways or parking lots that have been 
developed in conformance with this code. Specific locations and types of spaces (car pool, compact, 
etc.) for parking shall be indicated on submitted plans and located to the side or rear of buildings 
where feasible.  

a. Any new development with more than fifty (50) employees shall include preferential spaces for 
carpool/vanpool designation. Carpool and vanpool parking spaces shall be located closer to the 
main employee entrance than all other parking spaces with the exception of ADA parking spaces. 
Carpool/vanpool spaces shall be clearly marked as reserved for carpool/vanpool only.  

b. Existing development may redevelop portions of designated parking areas for multi-modal 
facilities (transit shelters, park and ride, and bicycle parking), subject to meeting all other 
applicable standards, including minimum space standards.  

c. In applying subsections a and b above, access for emergency vehicles must be retained and 
adequate parking for truck loading should be considered.  

4. Any new development that includes more than one-half acre of new off-street surface parking on a lot 
or parcel shall provide one of the provisions below.  The new surface parking area shall be measured 
based on the perimeter of all new off-street spaces, maneuvering lanes, and maneuvering areas, 
including driveways and drive aisles. 

Exhibit B

85



 

 

a. Installation of solar panels with a generation capacity of at least 0.5 kilowatt per new parking 
space. Panels may be located anywhere on the property. In lieu of installing solar panels on site, 
the developer may pay $1,500 per new parking space in the development into a city fund dedicated 
to equitable solar or wind energy development or a fund at the Oregon Department of Energy 
designated for such purpose; or 

b.  Actions to comply with Green Energy Technology per OAR 330-135-0010; or 

c.  Tree canopy covering at least 40 percent of the new parking lot area at maturity but no more than 
15 years after planting.  

5.  Any new development that includes more than one-half acre of new surface parking on a lot or parcel 
shall provide either trees along driveways or a minimum of 30 percent tree canopy coverage over 
parking areas. Developments are not required to provide trees along drive aisles. The tree spacing and 
species planted must be designed to maintain a continuous canopy, except when interrupted by 
driveways, drive aisles, and other site design considerations; and 

6. Provisions under subsections 4 and 5 above, the following shall apply: 

a. Development of a tree canopy plan shall be done in coordination with the local electric utility, 
including pre-design, design, building, and maintenance phases.  

b. Trees must be planted and maintained to maximize their root health and chances for survival, 
including having ample high-quality soil, space for root growth, and reliable irrigation according to the 
needs of the species. Trees should be planted in continuous trenches where possible. The minimum 
standards for planting and tree care no lower than the current American National Standards Institute 
A300 standards. 

7.     Conversion and redevelopment of underutilized parking areas for other uses is allowed. 

The City may allow the development of underused parking areas for uses permitted in the applicable 
zone. Underutilized shall mean any portion of the parking area that remains mostly vacant throughout 
most of the year (excluding special events or peak periods). A study shall accompany any request for 
site plan review Land Use applications. The study shall demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the City, that 
the elimination of the existing parking will have no detrimental effects, that cannot be mitigated by 
the applicant, on the property or sounding properties. This includes, but is not limited to, the 
possibility that the elimination of parking areas may shift the need for parking onto neighboring 
properties or cause any other negative impacts to surrounding properties. 

8.  Any new development that includes more than one-half acre of new off-street surface parking on a lot 
or parcel shall meet pedestrian walkway standards per Section 16.96.020 or 16.96.030. 

 

F. Marking  

All parking, loading or maneuvering areas shall be clearly marked and painted. All interior drives and access 
aisles shall be clearly marked and signed to show the direction of flow and maintain vehicular and pedestrian 
safety.  

G. Surface and Drainage  

1. All parking and loading areas shall be improved with a permanent hard surface such as asphalt, 
concrete or a durable pervious surface. Use of pervious paving material is encouraged and preferred 
where appropriate considering soils, location, anticipated vehicle usage and other pertinent factors.  

2. Parking and loading areas shall include storm water drainage facilities approved by the City Engineer or 
Building Official.  

H. Repairs  

Exhibit B

86



 

 

Parking and loading areas shall be kept clean and in good repair. Breaks in paved surfaces shall be repaired. 
Broken or splintered wheel stops shall be replaced. Painted parking space boundaries and directional symbols shall 
be maintained in a readable condition.  

I. Parking and Loading Plan  

An off-street parking and loading plan, drawn to scale, shall accompany requests for building permits or site 
plan approvals. A parking and loading plan is not required for all residential housing types, except for Multi-family, 
on residential lots in a recorded subdivision. The plan shall show but not be limited to:  

1. Delineation of individual parking and loading spaces and dimensions.  

2. Circulation areas necessary to serve parking and loading spaces.  

3. Location of accesses to streets, alleys and properties to be served, and any curb cuts.  

4. Landscaping as required by Chapter 16.92.  

5. Grading and drainage facilities.  

6. Signing and bumper guard specifications.  

7. Bicycle parking facilities as specified in Section 16.94.020.C.  

8. Parking lots more than one (1) acre in size shall provide street-like features including curbs, sidewalks, 
and street trees or planting strips.  

J. Parking Districts  

The City may establish a parking district (i.e., permits or signage) in residential areas in order to protect 
residential areas from spillover parking generated by adjacent commercial, employment or mixed-use areas, or 
other uses that generate a high demand for parking. The district request shall be made to the City Manager, who 
will forward a recommendation to the City Council for a decision.  

K. Structured parking and on-street parking are exempt from the parking space maximums in Section 
16.94.020.A.  

L. Commercial Uses 

Parking spaces for rented or leased commercial uses shall be unbundled per Title 5.36.    

 

(Ord. No. 2021-010 , § 2, 12-7-2021; Ord. No. 2014-012, § 3, 7-17-2014; Ord. No. 2012-008, § 2, 7-17-2012; Ord. 
No. 2010-015, § 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. 2006-021; 2000-2001, § 3; Ord. 2000-2001, § 3; Ord. 86-851, § 3) 

16.94.020 Off-Street Parking Standards 

A. Generally  

Where square feet are specified, the area measured shall be the gross building floor area primary to the 
functioning of the proposed use. Where employees are specified, persons counted shall be those working on the 
premises, including proprietors, during the largest shift at peak season. Fractional space requirements shall be 
counted as a whole space. The Review Authority may determine alternate off - street parking and loading 
requirements for a use not specifically listed in this Section based upon the requirements of comparable uses. Per 
OAR 660-012-0440 Parking Reform Near Transit Corridors no off-street parking is required for developments on a 
lot or parcel that includes lands within one-half (1/2) mile of a frequent transit corridor. Per OAR 660-012-0435 
Climate Friendly Areas, no off-street parking is required within the Sherwood Town Center and one-quarter mile of 
the area (see CFEC Parking Delineated Area Map). 

 

Exhibit B

87



 

 

Table 1: Parking Standards for lots or parcels not within the CFEC Parking Delineated Area 
(Metro spaces are based on 1 per 1,000 sq ft of gross leasable area; ADU standards are per OAR Division 46 

 Minimum Parking 
Standard  

Maximum Permitted 
Parking Zone A1  

Maximum Permitted 
Parking Zone B2  

Accessory Dwelling Unit  None  None  None  
Single-Family detached 
and manufactured home 
on lot3  

1 per dwelling unit  None  None  

Duplex  1 space per dwelling unit 
(total of 2 per duplex)  

None  None  

Triplex     
 • Lot area less than 
3,000 SF  

1 space total  None  None  

 • Lot area equal to or 
greater than 3,000 SF and 
less than 5,000 SF  

2 spaces total  None  None  

 • Lot area equal to or 
greater than 5,000 SF  

3 spaces total  None  None  

Quadplex     
 • Lot area less than 
3,000 SF  

1 space total  None  None  

 • Lot area equal to or 
greater than 3,000 SF and 
less than 5,000 SF  

2 spaces total  None  None  

 • Lot area equal to or 
greater than 5,000 SF and 
less than 7,000 SF  

3 spaces total  None  None  

 • Lot area equal to or 
greater than 7,000 SF  

4 spaces total  None  None  

Townhome  1 space per unit  None  None  
Cottage Cluster  1 space per unit  None  None  
Multi-Family dwelling4  1 per unit  None  None  
Hotel or motel  1 per room  None  None  
Boarding house  None  None  None  
General retail or personal 
service  

4.1 (244 sf)  5.1  6.2  

Vehicle sales, nursery  4.1  5.1  6.2  
Furniture/appliance store  4.1  5.1  6.2  
Tennis racquetball court  1.0  1.3  1.5  
Golf course  None  None  None  
Sports club/recreation 
facility  

4.3 (233 sf)  5.4  6.5  

General office  2.7 (370 sf)  3.4  4.1  
Bank with drive-thru  4.3 (233 sf)  5.4  6.5  
Eating or drinking 
establishment  

15.3 (65 sf)  19.1  23.0  

Fast food drive-thru  9.9 (101 sf)  12.4  14.9  
Movie theater  0.3 per seat  0.4  0.5  
Child Care Facility as 
defined in ORS 329A.250 

None  None  None  

Exhibit B

88



 

 

Elementary and junior 
high  

None  None  None  

High school and college  0.2 per student + teacher  0.3  0.3  
Places of worship  0.5 per seat  0.6  0.8  
Nursing home  None  None  None  
Library  None  None  None  
Single-room occupancy 
housing 

None None None 

Residential units smaller 
than 750 square feet 

None None None 

Affordable Units as 
defined in OAR 660-039-
0010 

None None None 

Facilities for people with 
disabilities as defined in 
ORS 443.400 

None None None 

Public supported housing 
as defined in ORS 456.250 

None None None 

Domestic Violence, 
Emergency and 
Transitional Shelters 

None None None 

Industrial  1.6  None  None  
Warehouse (gross square 
feet; parking ratios apply 
to warehouses 150,000 
gsf or greater)  

0.3  0.4  0.5  

 
1  Parking Zone A reflects the maximum number of permitted vehicle parking spaces allowed for each listed land 
use. Parking Zone A areas include those parcels that are located within one-quarter (¼) mile walking distance of 
bus transit stops, one-half (½) mile walking distance of light rail station platforms, or both, or that have a greater 
than twenty-minute peak hour transit service.  
2  Parking Zone B reflects the maximum number of permitted vehicle parking spaces allowed for each listed land 
use. Parking Zone B areas include those parcels that are located at a distance greater than one-quarter (¼) mile 
walking distance of bus transit stops, one-half (½) mile walking distance of light rail station platforms, or both.  
3  If the street on which the house has direct access does not permit on-street parking or is less than twenty-eight 
(28) feet wide, two (2) off-street parking spaces are required per single-family-detached dwelling (includes a 
manufactured home on an individual lot) if the abutting street is twenty-eight (28) feet or wider, one (1) standard 
(9 ft. × 20 ft.) parking space is required.  
4  Visitor parking in residential developments: Multi-Family dwelling units with more than ten (10) required 
parking spaces shall provide an additional fifteen (15) percent of the required number of parking spaces for the use 
of guests of the residents of the development. The spaces shall be centrally located or distributed throughout the 
development. Required bicycle parking facilities shall also be centrally located within or evenly distributed 
throughout the development.  

B. Dimensional and General Configuration Standards  

1. Dimensions For the purpose of this Chapter, a "parking space" means a stall nine (9) feet in width and 
twenty (20) feet in length. Up to twenty five (25) percent of required parking spaces may have a 
minimum dimension of eight (8) feet in width and eighteen (18) feet in length so long as they are 
signed as compact car stalls.  

Exhibit B

89



 

 

2. Layout  

Parking space configuration, stall and access aisle size shall be of sufficient width for all vehicle turning 
and maneuvering. Groups of more than four (4) parking spaces shall be served by a driveway so as to 
minimize backing movements or other maneuvering within a street, other than an alley. All parking 
areas shall meet the minimum standards shown in the following table and diagram.  

 
Table 2: Minimum Parking Dimension Requirements 
One-Way Driving Aisle (Dimensions in Feet)  

 A  B  C  D  E  F  G  H  J  
45º  8.0  16.5  13.0  11.3  46.0  3.0  2.5  51.0  

9.0  18.5  12.0  12.7  49.0  3.0  2.5  54.0  
60º  8.0  17.0  18.0  9.2  52.0  3.0  2.5  57.0  

9.0  19.5  16.0  10.4  55.0  3.0  2.5  60.0  
75º  8.0  16.5  26.0  8.3  59.0  3.0  3.0  65.0  

9.0  19.0  23.0  9.3  61.0  3.0  3.0  67.0  
90º  8.0  18.0  26.0  8.0  56.0  3.0  3.0  62.0  

9.0  20.0  24.0  9.0  58.0  3.0  3.0  64.0  
 

Table 3: Two-Way Driving Aisle 
(Dimensions in Feet)  

 A  B  C  D  E  F  G  H  J  
45º  8.0  16.5  24.0  11.3  57.0  3.0  2.5  62.0  

9.0  18.5  24.0  12.7  61.0  3.0  2.5  66.0  
60º  8.0  17.0  24.0  9.2  58.0  3.0  2.5  63.0  

9.0  19.5  24.0  10.4  63.0  3.0  2.5  68.0  
75º  8.0  16.5  26.0  8.3  59.0  3.0  3.0  65.0  

9.0  19.0  24.0  9.3  62.0  3.0  3.0  68.0  
90º  8.0  18.0  26.0  8.0  56.0  3.0  3.0  62.0  

9.0  20.0  24.0  9.0  58.0  3.0  3.0  64.0  
 

Exhibit B

90



 

 

3. Wheel Stops  

a. Parking spaces along the boundaries of a parking lot or adjacent to interior landscaped areas or 
sidewalks shall be provided with a wheel stop at least four (4) inches high, located three (3) feet 
back from the front of the parking stall as shown in the above diagram.  

b. Wheel stops adjacent to landscaping, bio-swales or water quality facilities shall be designed to 
allow storm water runoff.  

c. The paved portion of the parking stall length may be reduced by three (3) feet if replaced with 
three (3) feet of low lying landscape or hardscape in lieu of a wheel stop; however, a curb is still 
required. In other words, the traditional three-foot vehicle overhang from a wheel stop may be 
low-lying landscaping rather than an impervious surface.  

4. Service Drives  

Service drives shall be clearly and permanently marked and defined through use of rails, fences, walls, 
or other barriers or markers, and shall have minimum vision clearance area formed by the intersection 
of the driveway center line, the street right-of-way line, and a straight line joining said lines through 
points fifteen (15) feet from their intersection.  

5. Credit for On-Street Parking  

a. On-Street Parking Credit. Except for residential uses, the amount of off-street parking required 
shall be reduced by one (1) off-street parking space for every on-street parking space adjacent to 
the development. On-street parking shall follow the established configuration of existing on-
street parking, except that angled parking may be allowed for some streets, where permitted by 
City standards.  

b. The following constitutes an on-street parking space:  

(1) Parallel parking, each twenty-four (24) feet of uninterrupted curb;  

(2) Forty-five (45)/sixty (60) degree diagonal, each with ten (10) feet of curb;  

(3) Ninety (90) degree (perpendicular) parking, each with eight (8) feet of curb;  

(4) Curb space must be connected to the lot which contains the use;  

(5) Parking spaces that would not obstruct a required clear vision area, nor any other parking 
that violates any law or street standard; and;  

(6) On-street parking spaces credited for a specific use may not be used exclusively by that 
use, but shall be available for general public use at all times. No signs or actions limiting 
general public use of on-street spaces is permitted.  

6. Reduction in Required Parking Spaces  

a. Developments utilizing Engineered storm water bio-swales or those adjacent to environmentally 
constrained or sensitive areas may reduce the amount of required parking spaces by ten (10) 
percent when twenty-five (25) through forty-nine (49) parking spaces are required, fifteen (15) 
percent when fifty (50) and seventy-four (74) parking spaces are required and twenty (20) percent 
when more than seventy-five (75) parking spaces are required, provided the area that would have 
been used for parking is maintained as a habitat area or is generally adjacent to an environmentally 
sensitive or constrained area.  

b. Solar Panels or Wind Power - developments utilizing solar panels or wind power may reduce the 
amount of required parking spaces by one (1) parking space when three kilowatts of capacity in 
solar panels or wind power is proposed to be provided in a development. 

Exhibit B

91



 

 

c.  Car-Sharing – developments utilizing car-sharing parking may reduce the amount of required 
parking spaces by one (1) off-street parking space for each dedicated car-sharing parking space in a 
development. Dedicated car-sharing parking spaces shall count as spaces for parking mandates. 

d. Electric Vehicle Charging Station – developments that provide electric vehicle charging station may 
reduce the amount of required parking spaces by two (2) off-street parking spaces for every electric 
vehicle charging station provided in a development. Parking spaces that include electric vehicle 
charging while an automobile is parked shall count towards parking mandates. 

e. Fully Accessible Parking – developments utilizing this provision may reduce one (1) off-street 
parking space for every two units in a development above minimum requirements that are fully 
accessible to people with mobility disabilities. 

f. Any reductions under Section 16.94.020.B.6 (a-e) above, shall be cumulative and not capped. 

 

7. Parking Location and Shared Parking  

Owners of off-street parking facilities may post a sign indicating that all parking on the site is available 
only for residents, customers and/or employees, as applicable.  

C. Bicycle Parking Facilities  

1. General Provisions  

a. Applicability. Bicycle parking spaces shall be provided for new development, changes of use, and 
major renovations, defined as construction valued at twenty-five (25) percent or more of the 
assessed value of the existing structure.  

b. Types of Spaces. Bicycle parking facilities shall be provided in terms of short-term bicycle parking 
and long-term bicycle parking. Short-term bicycle parking is intended to encourage customers 
and other visitors to use bicycles by providing a convenient and readily accessible place to park 
bicycles. Long-term bicycle parking provides employees, students, residents, commuters, and 
others who generally stay at a site for at least several hours a weather-protected place to park 
bicycles.  

c. Minimum Number of Spaces. The required total minimum number of bicycle parking spaces for 
each use category is shown in Table 4, Minimum Required Bicycle Parking Spaces.  

d. Minimum Number of Long-term Spaces. If a development is required to provide eight (8) or more 
required bicycle parking spaces in Table 4, at least twenty-five (25) percent shall be provided as 
long-term bicycle with a minimum of one (1) long-term bicycle parking space.  

e. Multiple Uses. When there are two or more primary uses on a site, the required bicycle parking 
for the site is the sum of the required bicycle parking for the individual primary uses.  

2. Location and Design.  

a. General Provisions  

(1) Each space must be at least two (2) feet by six (6) feet in area, be accessible without 
moving another bicycle, and provide enough space between the rack and any obstructions 
to use the space properly.  

(2) There must be an aisle at least five (5) feet wide behind all required bicycle parking to allow 
room for bicycle maneuvering. Where the bicycle parking is adjacent to a sidewalk, the 
maneuvering area may extend into the right-of-way.  

(3) Lighting. Bicycle parking shall be at least as well lit as vehicle parking for security.  

Exhibit B

92



 

 

(4) Reserved Areas. Areas set aside for bicycle parking shall be clearly marked and reserved for 
bicycle parking only.  

(5) Bicycle parking in the Old Town Overlay District can be located on the sidewalk within the 
right-of-way. A standard inverted "U shaped" or staple design is appropriate. Alternative, 
creative designs are strongly encouraged.  

(6) Hazards. Bicycle parking shall not impede or create a hazard to pedestrians. Parking areas 
shall be located so as to not conflict with vision clearance standards.  

b. Short-term Bicycle Parking  

(1) Provide lockers or racks that meet the standards of this section.  

(2) Locate inside or outside the building within thirty (30) feet of the main entrance to the 
building or at least as close as the nearest vehicle parking space, whichever is closer.  

c. Long-term Bicycle Parking  

(1) Provide racks, storage rooms, or lockers in areas that are secure or monitored (e.g., visible 
to employees or customers or monitored by security guards).  

(2) Locate the outside bicycle parking spaces within one hundred (100) feet of the entrance 
that will be accessed by the intended users.  

(3) All of the spaces shall be covered.  

d. Covered Parking (Weather Protection)  

(1) When required, covered bicycle parking shall be provided in one (1) of the following ways: 
inside buildings, under roof overhangs or awnings, in bicycle lockers, or within or under 
other structures.  

(2) Where required covered bicycle parking is not within a building or locker, the cover must 
be permanent and designed to protect the bicycle from rainfall and provide seven-foot 
minimum overhead clearance.  

(3) Where required bicycle parking is provided in lockers, the lockers shall be securely 
anchored.  

Table 4: Minimum Required Bicycle Parking Spaces 

Use Categories  Minimum Required Spaces  
Residential Categories 
Household living  Multi-dwelling — 2 or 1 per 10 auto spaces.  

All other residential structure types — None  
Group living  1 per 20 auto spaces  
Commercial Categories 
Retail sales/service office  2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces, whichever is greater  
Drive-up vehicle servicing  None  
Vehicle repair  None  
Commercial parking facilities, commercial, outdoor 
recreation, major event entertainment  

4 or 1 per 20 auto spaces, whichever is greater  

Self-service storage  None  
Industrial Categories 
Industrial  2 or 1 per 40 spaces, whichever is greater  
Public and Institutional Categories 
Park and ride facilities  2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces  

Exhibit B

93



 

 

Community service essential service providers parks 
and open areas  

2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces, whichever is greater  

Schools  High schools — 4 per classroom  
 Middle schools — 2 per classroom  
 Grade schools — 2 per 4th & 5th grade classroom  
Colleges, medical centers, religious institutions, 
daycare uses  

2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces whichever is greater  

 

(Ord. No. 2022-004 , § 2, 6-13-2022; Ord. No. 2021-010 , § 2, 12-7-2021; Ord. No. 2018-007, § 2, 10-2-2018; Ord. 
No. 2015-003, § 2, 3-17-2015; Ord. No. 2014-012, § 3, 7-17-2014; Ord. No. 2012-008, § 2, 7-17-2012; Ord. No. 
2010-015, § 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. 2006-021; 2005-009 § 8; Ord. 2000-2001 § 3; Ord. 86-851 § 3) 

16.94.030 Off-Street Loading Standards 

A. Minimum Standards  

1. A driveway designed for continuous forward flow of passenger vehicles for the purpose of loading and 
unloading passengers shall be located on the site of any school, or other public meeting place, which is 
designed to accommodate more than twenty five (25) persons at one time.  

2. The minimum loading area for non-residential uses shall not be less than ten (10) feet in width by 
twenty-five (25) feet in length and shall have an unobstructed height of fourteen (14) feet.  

3. Multiple uses on the same parcel or adjacent parcels may utilize the same loading area if it is shown in 
the development application that the uses will not have substantially overlapping delivery times.  

4. The following additional minimum loading space is required for buildings in excess of twenty thousand 
(20,000) square feet of gross floor area:  

a. Twenty thousand (20,000) to fifty (50,000) sq. ft. - five hundred (500) sq. ft.  

b. Fifty (50,000) sq. ft. or more - seven hundred fifty (750) sq. ft.  

B. Separation of Areas  

Any area to be used for the maneuvering of delivery vehicles and the unloading or loading of materials shall 
be separated from designated off-street parking areas and designed to prevent the encroachment of delivery 
vehicles onto off-street parking areas or public streets. Off-street parking areas used to fulfill the requirements of 
this Chapter shall not be used for loading and unloading operations.  

C. Exceptions and Adjustments.  

The review authority, through Site Plan Review, may approve loading areas within a street right-of-way in the 
Old Town Overlay District when all of the following conditions are met:  

1. Short in duration (i.e., less than one (1) hour);  

2. Infrequent (less than three (3) operations occur daily between 5:00 a.m. and 12:00 a.m. or all 
operations occur between 12:00 a.m. and 5:00 a.m. at a location that is not adjacent to a residential 
zone);  

3. Does not unreasonably obstruct traffic; [or] Does not obstruct traffic during peak traffic hours;  

4. Does not obstruct a primary emergency response route; and  

5. Is acceptable to the applicable roadway authority.  

(Ord. No. 2014-012, § 3, 7-17-2014; Ord. No. 2012-008, § 2, 7-17-2012; Ord. No. 2010-015, § 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. 
No. 2009-005, § 2, 6-2-2009; Ord. 86-851, § 3) 

Exhibit B

94



 

 

Chapter 16.140 - PARKS, TREES AND OPEN SPACES 

16.140.010 Purpose  
This Chapter is intended to assure the provision of a system of public and private recreation and open space 

areas and facilities consistent with this Code and applicable portions of the City's adopted Comprehensive Plan. 
The standards of this section do not supersede the open space requirements of a Planned Unit Development, 
found in Chapter 16.40 - Planned Unit Development (PUD).  

(Ord. No. 2023-002 , § 2, 3-7-2023; Ord. No. 2011-009, § 2, 7-19-2011; Ord. 2006-021; 91-922, § 3) 

 
***

16.140.070 Trees on Property Subject to Certain Land Use Applications 

A. Generally  

The purpose of this Section is to establish processes and standards which will minimize cutting or destruction 
of trees and woodlands within the City. This Section is intended to help protect the scenic beauty of the City; to 
retain a livable environment through the beneficial effect of trees on air pollution, heat and glare, sound, water 
quality, and surface water and erosion control; to encourage the retention and planting of tree species native to 
the Willamette Valley and Western Oregon; to provide an attractive visual contrast to the urban environment, and 
to sustain a wide variety and distribution of viable trees and woodlands in the community over time.  

*** 

 

D. Retention requirements  

1. Trees may be considered for removal to accommodate the development including buildings, 
parking, walkways, grading etc., provided the development satisfies of D.2 or D.3, below.  

2. Required Tree Canopy - All Residential Developments subject to Type II—IV land use review.  

Each net development site shall provide a variety of trees to achieve a minimum total tree canopy of 
40 percent. The canopy percentage is based on the expected mature canopy of each tree by using the 
equation πr2 to calculate the expected square footage of canopy for each tree. The expected mature 
canopy is counted for each tree regardless of an overlap of multiple tree canopies.  

The canopy requirement can be achieved by retaining existing trees or planting new trees. Required 
street trees can be used toward the total on site canopy required to meet this standard. The expected 
mature canopy spread of the new trees will be counted toward the needed canopy cover. A certified 
arborist or other qualified professional shall provide the estimated tree canopy of the proposed trees 
to the planning department for review.  

3. Required Tree Canopy - Non-Residential and Multi-Family Dwelling Developments  

a.    Each net development site shall provide a variety of trees to achieve a minimum total tree canopy 
of 30 percent. The canopy percentage is based on the expected mature canopy of each tree by 
using the equation πr2 to calculate the expected square footage of each tree. The expected mature 
canopy is counted for each tree even if there is an overlap of multiple tree canopies.  

b.    The canopy requirement can be achieved by retaining existing trees or planting new trees. 
Required landscaping trees can be used toward the total on site canopy required to meet this 
standard. The expected mature canopy spread of the new trees will be counted toward the 
required canopy cover. A certified arborist or other qualified professional shall provide an 

Exhibit B

95



 

 

estimated tree canopy for all proposed trees to the planning department for review as a part of the 
land use review process.  

c.    Development standards for new surface parking lots more than half (½) acre in size, see Section 
16.94 Parking and Loading.  

 

  Residential  
(single family  
detached and  
middle housing  
developments)  
subject to  
Residential  
Design  
Checklist  
or Type I review  

Residential  
(single family  
detached and  
middle housing  
developments)  
subject to Type  
II—IV review  

Old Town & Infill  
developments  

Commercial,  
Industrial,  
Institutional  
Public and  
Multi-Family  
dwelling  

Canopy 
Requirement  

N/A  40%  N/A  30%  

Counted Toward the Canopy Requirement  

Street trees 
included in canopy 
requirement  

N/A  Yes  N/A  No  

Landscaping 
requirements 
included in canopy 
requirement  

N/A  N/A  N/A  Yes  

Existing trees onsite  N/A  Yes x2  N/A  Yes x2  

Planting new trees 
onsite  

N/A  Yes  N/A  Yes  

Mature Canopy in Square Feet Equation πr 2 or (3.14159*radius 2) (This is the calculation to measure the 
square footage of a circle.  
   
The Mature Canopy is given in diameter. In gardening and horticulture reference books, therefore to get the 
radius you must divide the diameter in half.  

Canopy Calculation Example: Pin Oak  
Mature canopy = 35'  
 
(3.14159* 17.52 ) = 962 square feet  

 

Exhibit B

96



 

 

 
*** 
 
 

 

Exhibit B

97



City of Sherwood 
CFEC Parking Delineated Area

¯

Legend

0 0.5 10.25
Miles

Per Oregon Administrative Rules: 660-012-0440 & 660-012-0435

CFEC Parking Mandates 

TriMet Route (Line 94)

Sherwood Town Center Plan Area 

Sherwood City Limits

Sherwood Taxlots

Exhibit B

98

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Langer Farms Parkway 

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Pacific Highway

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Willamette  

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Sherwood Boulevard

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Tualatin Sherwood Boulevard   



Proposed Amendments to Title 3 – REVENUE AND FINANCE, new Chapter 3.40 COMMERCIAL PARKING LOT LOCAL 
TAX to implement the Climate Friendly & Equitable Communities statutes. 

 
Title 3 – REVENUE AND FINANCE  

Chapter 3.40 COMMERCIAL PARKING LOT LOCAL TAX 
 
 

  Page 1 of 3 
  

Chapter 3.40 COMMERCIAL PARKING LOT LOCAL TAX 

3.40.010 Purpose 

A. The purpose of this chapter is to impose a tax on commercial parking lots in the City of 
Sherwood.  

B. The commercial parking lot tax imposed by this chapter follows OAR 660-012-
0445(1)(a)(D). 

3.40.020 Definitions.  

The definitions contained in Chapter 3.40 of the Sherwood Municipal Code shall be fully 
applicable to this chapter except as may be expressly stated to the contrary herein. The 
following additional definitions shall apply throughout this chapter:  

A. "Commercial parking business" means the ownership, lease, operation, or 
management of a commercial parking lot in which fees are charged for the act or 
privilege of parking motor vehicles.  

B. "Commercial parking lot" means a standalone, covered, or uncovered area used for 
the purpose of parking motor vehicles for a fee. Parking associated with a retail or 
personal service use in the same development.  

C. "Parking tax" means the commercial parking tax imposed by this chapter.  

D. "City Manager" means the City Manager of the City of Sherwood, or his or her 
designee.

3.40.030 Parking tax imposed 

A. Pursuant to OAR 660-012-0445(1)(a)(D), there is imposed on every person a tax for the act 
or privilege of parking a motor vehicle in a commercial parking lot within the City that is 
operated by a commercial parking business. The privilege of parking includes the right to 
park, whether or not the right is exercised.  

B. The amount of the parking tax shall be equal to the parking fee multiplied by the parking 
tax rate. Effective July 1, 2024, the parking tax rate is imposed at ten percent (0.10).  

3.40.040 Measure of Tax: Parking Fee. 

A. The measure of the parking tax is the parking fee. Parking fee means the fee paid or due 
for the act or privilege of parking a motor vehicle in a commercial parking lot.  

Exhibit B

99



 

  Page 2 of 3 
 

B. It shall be conclusively presumed that the posted parking prices do not include the parking 
tax unless all the following conditions are met:  

1. The fee is advertised as including the tax or that the commercial parking business is 
paying the tax;  

2. The words "tax included" are stated immediately following the advertised or posted 
prices in print size at least half as large as the advertised or posted prices print size; 
and  

3. All advertised or posted parking prices and the words "tax included" are stated in the 
same medium, whether oral or visual, and if oral, in substantially the same inflection 
and volume. If these conditions are satisfied, then price lists, reader boards, and other 
price information mediums need not show separately the parking fee and the actual 
amount of commercial parking tax being collected.  

3.40.050 Exemptions from the Parking Tax. 

The following are exempt from the parking tax:  

A. General retail and commercial service parking lots associated with a development 
that has received land use approval.  

B. Mini-warehousing or self-storage 

3.40.060 Collection and Remittance Of Tax. 

A commercial parking business or person acting on its behalf shall collect the amount of 
the parking tax from the person paying the parking fee at the time payment is made. The 
parking tax shall be stated separately from the parking fee on all instruments evidencing the 
parking fee. The presumption is not overcome by any oral or written agreement between the 
parties.  

The person receiving payment of the parking fee shall remit the parking tax to the City 
Manager quarterly (April 15th, July 15th, October 15th, and January 15th). The parking tax shall be 
deemed held in trust by the person required to collect the same until remitted to the City 
Manager. Any person who fails to collect the parking tax, or who collects the parking tax but 
fails to remit the parking tax to the City Manager, shall be liable to the City for the amount of 
such tax. The commercial parking business or person acting on its behalf who fails to remit the 
full amount of the tax imposed and due by this chapter prior to delinquency shall pay a late 
payment penalty of ten percent of the amount of the portion of the tax that is unpaid as of the 
delinquency date, which penalty is owed in addition to the amount of the tax due. 

Such person shall, unless the remittance is made as required in this section, be guilty of a 
violation of this chapter whether such failure be the result of the person's own act or the result 
of acts or conditions beyond its control.  

Exhibit B

100



 

  Page 3 of 3 
 

3.40.070 Use Of Revenues. 

The proceeds of the tax imposed herein shall be used for transportation alternatives to 
drive-alone travel including active transportation options in accordance with OAR 660-012-
0445(1)(a)(D). To the extent permitted by applicable law the City may issue bonds, notes, or 
other evidence of indebtedness payable wholly or in part from the parking tax and may pledge 
and may apply such tax to the payment of principal of, interest on, and premium (if any) on 
such bonds, notes, or other evidence of indebtedness and to the payment of costs associated 
with them.  

3.40.080 Receipts To Transportation Fund. 

All receipts from the parking tax shall be placed in and segregated within the 
Transportation Fund. These receipts may be temporarily deposited or invested in such manner 
as may be lawful for the investment of City money and interest and other earnings shall be 
deposited in the Transportation Fund.  

 

Exhibit B

101



Proposed Amendments to Title 5 - BUSINESS LICENSES AND REGULATIONS, new Chapter 5.36 UNBUNDLED 
PARKING FOR COMMERCIAL LEASES to implement the Climate Friendly & Equitable Communities statutes. 

Title 5 – BUSINESS LICENSES AND REGULATIONS 
Chapter 5.36 UNBUNDLED PARKING FOR COMMERCIAL LEASES 

Page 1 of 1 

Chapter 5.36 UNBUNDLED PARKING FOR COMMERCIAL LEASES 

5.36.010 Parking for rented or leased commercial uses. 

A. Parking for commercial uses

1. Unless commercial uses are listed as exempt in subsection 5.36.010.A.2, off-street parking
accessory to rented or leased commercial use spaces shall not be required in any new rental
or lease agreement. If parking is desired by the tenant, the fee for parking shall be listed as a
separate line item within the lease or shall be subject to a separate rental or lease agreement.

2. Exempt uses include:
a. Hotel and motels
b. Motor vehicle sales and services
c. Truck and bus yards
d. Mini-warehousing or self/auto storage
e. Vehicle fueling stations or car wash facilities

3. Market Rates for Comparable Local Off-Street Parking - the minimum unbundled parking
rates shall be no less than $50 per space per month.

Exhibit B

102



1

Joy Chang

From: Phyllis Nasta <phyllisnasta@yahoo.com>
Sent: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 12:31 PM
To: Joy Chang
Subject: Re  parking regs

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you are expecting 
this email and/or know the content is safe. 

The intention of the mandates to reduce parking and increase transit use is well meaning but the 
method is not sensible. When you think about real people and their needs, how can you possibly limit 
their ability to park near their home or office or while dropping off kids at day care? 

People have to navigate many issues in life:  Wrangling infants and toddlers while holding shopping 
bags and diaper bags and baby equipment.  People may be injured, using temporary wheelchairs or 
walkers, or may just be in pain from illnesses, and can't walk far.  Older people may be limited in how 
much they can walk.  When it's icy or slippery outside, people can't safely  walk far. to get to their car 
or to transit. The list goes on and on.  The answer to reducing car emissions is not to deprive people 
of parking, but to increase use of electric vehicles and public transit. I see what happens when there 
is only one parking spot per house and what happens is that people double park, park on grass, or 
ask neighbors to use their driveway if available. It just makes for more clutter of cars, not less. And it's 
not fair to mandate it. If builders want to limit space, so be it, and let them compete for buyers. The 
policies outlined to reduce parking are wrong headed.  Our lives are increasingly controlled by the 
government and this just seems completely out of line. 
Thank you 

Phyllis Nasta LPC LMT 
520  203-4968 
phyllisnasta.abmp.com 

EXHIBIT C 

103



From: MARQUARDT Ryan * DLCD
To: Joy Chang
Cc: KELLY Laura * DLCD; MANVEL Evan * DLCD
Subject: DLCD comments on Sherwood code amendments, CFEC Parking reform (Casefile #LU 2024-001 PA)
Date: Tuesday, April 2, 2024 8:55:25 AM
Attachments: image001.jpg

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
are expecting this email and/or know the content is safe.

Hello Joy,
Thanks for submitting Sherwood’s CFEC parking amendments for DLCD review. Staff
appreciates the work the city has done to implement these new rules.

There are some rules for which additional amendments or further explanation may be needed.
660-012-0405(1)(a) [carpool/vanpool parking] – current code has a carpool/vanpool
applicability threshold of 40 employees. This needs to be adjusted to 50 spaces.
660-012-0405(3) [shared parking] – Amendments are needed to allow residential
development to utilize shared parking. DLCD staff also strongly recommends removing
the requirement for a parking study to approve shared parking.
660-012-0405(4) [standards for large parking lots] – DLCD staff recommends codifying
the measurement description from this rule to determine the ½ acre threshold.
660-012-0405(4)(c) [walkway standards for large parking lots] – we did not see these
standards included in the proposed amendments. I did a quick search of the
development code and didn’t see that these standards are already part of existing
regulations.
660-12-0410(2) [20% EV requirement for private commercial] – DLCD staff recommends
citing ORS 455.417 in development code to highlight the building code requirement that
20% of EV spaces in private commercial development need to have EV conduit.
660-012-0410(3) [40% EV requirement for development with 5+ units] – amendments
say 40% of parking spaces serving residential spaces. This needs to be revised to say
40% of all the development’s spaces.
660-012-0425(2)(a) [no carport/garage requirement allowed] – existing code at
16.46.010.B.6 requires a garage for manufactured homes. This regulation is not allowed.
Staff also notes that several manufactured home regulations in 16.46.010.B may be in
conflict with ORS 197.478 if they are not standards applied to site-built homes (3/12 roof
pitch, 1,000 sq ft size minimum, etc.).
660-012-0425(2)(c) [shared parking can meet mandates] – shared parking needs to be
allowed for residential housing.
660-012-0425(2)(d) [allow off-site parking] – DLCD staff suggests revising the code
(16.94.010.C) to more closely match rules text. Amendments are also needed to allow
residential parking to be located off-site.
660-012-0425(3) [no cap on reductions] – DLCD staff suggests clarifying there are no
cumulative limits to parking reductions in 16.94.020.B.6
660-012-0430 [no mandates for certain development types] – DLCD staff did not find

Exhibit D

104

mailto:Ryan.MARQUARDT@dlcd.oregon.gov
mailto:ChangJ@SherwoodOregon.gov
mailto:Laura.Kelly@dlcd.oregon.gov
mailto:Evan.MANVEL@dlcd.oregon.gov



references to most of the uses listed in this rule. Sherwood’s code at 16.94.010.A says
review authority can determine mandates for unlisted uses. The code needs to provide a
safe harbor for the uses listed in 660-012-0430 to ensure that parking mandates cannot
be applied.
660-012-0435 [no mandates in Metro 2040 center] – the amendments need to codify the
parking reform rules in 660-012-0435 in Sherwood’s adopted town center area. DLCD
staff can discuss this topic further in detail upon request.
660-012-0445(1)(a) [fair parking policy approach; commercial parking tax] – the
definition in 3.40.020.B say exclusive use of motor vehicle parking. DLCD staff would
like to see the term ‘exclusive’ removed. A commercial parking lot still exists as a use
even if it is a secondary use on the property and/or the area may be used for some other
purpose during the year. There also appears to be an erroneous OAR citation in
3.40.030.A.

Two other miscellaneous notes:
I found the placement of the transit corridor text at the heading of 16.94.010.E.1.b
confusing. It makes it seem like the regulations in the subsections that follow only apply
in those corridors. Just an observation and not necessary to address if others don’t see
an issue.
660-012-0405(2) [conversion of off-street parking] – has city staff discussed how this
allowance will be implemented? What is considered ‘underutilized’? Will conversion of
any quantity of spaces be allowed, or does it have to stay above minimum parking
requirements?

 
DLCD staff is available to discuss the amendments and CFEC rules further and answer any
questions you may have. Please let me know if I’ve overlooked something in the existing code
or proposed amendments that addresses the items listed above. We can provide an official
comment letter for the application casefile upon request.
Sincerely,
Ryan
 

Ryan Marquardt, AICP
Land Use & Transportation Planner| Planning Services Division
Pronouns: He/Him
Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development
635 Capitol Street NE, Suite 150 | Salem, OR 97301-2540
Cell: 971-375-5659 | Main: 503-373-0050
ryan.marquardt@dlcd.oregon.gov | www.oregon.gov/LCD

 
 

105

mailto:ryan.marquardt@dlcd.oregon.gov
https://url.us.m.mimecastprotect.com/s/5Z23CpYmZWi1JEKHDBm1r?domain=oregon.gov


1

Joy Chang

From: Wyffels, Michelle <WyffelsM@trimet.org>
Sent: Thursday, April 25, 2024 7:28 AM
To: Joy Chang
Subject: RE: Request for Comments - Climate Friedly & Equitable Communities Regulations, LU 2024-001 PA
Attachments: We sent you safe versions of your files; LU 2024-001 PA Public Notice-FINAL.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you are expecting 
this email and/or know the content is safe. 

Mimecast Attachment Protection has deemed this file to be safe, but always exercise caution when opening files. 

Joy‐ 
I am responding regarding Parking Reform Near Transit Corridors. 

Removing parking requirements for lots and parcels adjacent to Line 94 will create larger demand for on‐street parking. 
This change needs to be coupled by support from the City of Sherwood to install bus zones to restrict curb access in bus 
stop areas to buses. When cars are parked in bus stop areas, buses are not able to pull up to the curb to board and 
unload riders using mobility devices. This is an ADA issue. 

This includes bus stops in high parking demand areas. 

Thank you for the chance to comment, 

Michelle Wyffels she/her
Senior Planner 
Service Planning & Transit Development 
Phone 503.962.2180  
Email wyffelsm@trimet.org 

From: Joy Chang <ChangJ@SherwoodOregon.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 11:35 AM 
To: Ryan.Winfree@nwnatural.com; henry.english@pgn.com; Travis.Smallwood@pgn.com; Jose.Marquez@pgn.com; 
humphreysj@CleanWaterServices.org; spieringm@CleanWaterServices.org; LUComments@cleanwaterservices.org; 
kmenroachmentspacific@kindermorgan.com; kTabscott@pridedisposal.com; raindrops2refuge@gmail.com; 
eva_kristofik@fws.gov; mwerner@gwrr.com; dxsmith@bpa.gov; jerose@sherwood.k12.or.us; 
gbennett@sherwood.k12.or.us; Engelmann, Jessica <engelmaj@trimet.org>; Baldwin, Ben <BaldwinB@trimet.org>; 
Development Review <Development_Review@TriMet.org>; landusenotifications@oregonmetro.gov; 
ruth.e.price@odot.oregon.gov; Jill.M.HENDRICKSON@odot.state.or.us; ODOT_R1_DevRev@odot.state.or.us; 
Naomi_Vogel@co.washington.or.us; stephen_roberts@co.washington.or.us; Theresa_Cherniak@co.washington.or.us; 
Bryan_Robb@co.washington.or.us; Arn, Jason S. <Jason.Arn@tvfr.com>; Brad Crawford 
<CrawfordB@SherwoodOregon.gov>; Richard Sattler <SattlerR@SherwoodOregon.gov>; Jason Waters 
<WatersJ@SherwoodOregon.gov>; Craig Christensen <ChristensenC@SherwoodOregon.gov>; Craig Sheldon 

Exhibit E

106



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2024-002 
July 16, 2024 
Page 1 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (52 pgs)   

 
 

ORDINANCE 2024-002 
 

AMENDING SECTIONS OF THE SHERWOOD ZONING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE, 
AND ADOPTING CHAPTERS 3.40 AND 5.36 OF THE SHERWOOD MUNICIPAL CODE FOR 

CLIMATE-FRIENDLY AND EQUITABLE COMMUNITIES RULES 
 
WHEREAS, On March 10, 2020, former Governor Kate Brown issued Executive Order 20-04, directing 
state agencies to reduce climate pollution; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Oregon Land Conservation and Development Commission adopted the Climate-Friendly 
and Equitable Communities (CFEC) rules to help meet state goals to reduce climate pollution, especially 
from transportation; and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 14, 2024, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing to consider the CFEC 
regulations to comply with the newly adopted Climate-Friendly and Equitable Communities Rules in 
Oregon Administrative Rules, chapter 660, division 12; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed CFEC amendments, attached hereto as Exhibit 1, comply with the minimum 
standards identified in Oregon Administrative Rules, chapter 660, division 12; and  
 
WHEREAS, the proposed CFEC amendments are consistent with the adopted Sherwood Comprehensive 
Plan, Transportation Systems Plan and the Community Development Code; and  
 
WHEREAS, Marion County and 13 cities, including Sherwood, (herein Petitioners) challenged the validity 
of the CFEC rules under ORS 183.400 to the Oregon Court of Appeals in case no. A180037.  On March 
6, 2024, the Court of Appeals denied the petition, finding that Petitioners failed to prove that the rules 
facially exceeded statutory authority. The City and co-Petitioners are seeking review of this decision by the 
Oregon Supreme Court. If successful, the CFEC rules could be found invalid; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, acting as the Citizen Advisory Committee, has conducted three 
work sessions on CFEC rules; and  
 
WHEREAS, at its meeting on May 14, 2024, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing, 
considered proposed CFEC standards, and recommended that the City Council adopt the proposed 
amendments; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council held the first public hearing on the proposed amendments on July 16, 2024 
and final public hearing on the proposed amendments on August 6, 2024. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:  
 

107



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2024-002 
July 16, 2024 
Page 2 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (52 pgs)   

Section 1. After full and due consideration of the application, the Planning Commission 
recommendation, the record, and evidence presented at the public hearings, the City 
Council adopts the findings of fact contained in the Planning Commission recommendation, 
which is included as Attachment 1 to the staff report for this Ordinance, finding that the text 
of the indicated sections of the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code, 
Chapters 3.40 and 5.36 shall be amended to read as documented in Exhibit 1, attached to 
this Ordinance.  

 
Section 2.   Ordinance 2024-002 shall be automatically repealed with immediate effect upon any of the 

following occurrences: 
a. A finding by a court of competent jurisdiction invalidating Executive Order 20-04; 
b. Passage of a law that repeals or otherwise invalidate Executive Order 20-04; or 
c. Retraction of Executive Order 20-04 by the governor of the state of Oregon. 

 
Section 3. The proposed amendments to the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code 

and Chapters 3.40 and 5.36 in Exhibit 1, attached to this Ordinance, are hereby 
APPROVED. 

 
Section 4.  This ordinance shall become effective the 30th day after its enactment by the City Council 

and approval by the Mayor. 
 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 6th of August 2024. 
 
 
 
       _______________________    
       Tim Rosener, Mayor   Date 
 
  
 
Attest:   
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder  
 
 
           AYE NAY 

Standke ____ ____ 
Giles  ____ ____ 
Scott  ____ ____ 
Mays  ____ ____ 
Brouse  ____ ____ 
Young  ____ ____ 
Rosener ____ ____ 

 
 

108



Title 16  
ZONING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE 

Proposed Amendments  
This document presents proposed code amendments. Underlined formatting indicates added text, while 
strikethrough formatting shows what text is deleted.  

BLUE UNDERLINED = NEW TEXT TO BE ADOPTED 

BLUE STRIKETHROUGH = TEXT TO BE DELETED  

The proposed amendments are organized by code chapter. Only those sections of the code that are proposed to 
be amended are included in the document. 

Commentary 
A discussion of the purpose of the proposed amendments and the direction provided to date from 
City staff and the Planning Commission have been added to this draft of amendments. 

Furthermore, Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) requested additional and 
clarifying CFEC amendments as of April 2, 2024.   DLCD requested amendments have been 
incorporated.    

109



Chapter 16.90 SITE PLANNING Commentary 

Multi-family developments are reviewed through the Site Plan Review process under Chapter 16.90. 

OAR 660-012-0410 New Electric Vehicle Charging regulations - New multi-family and multi-use 
development applications require 40% of spaces to have conduit (pipes) to serve electric vehicle 
charging. Furthermore, OAR 660-012-0410(2) requires 20% Electric Vehicle service capacity for 
Non-Residential Development under private ownership.  

The Commercial Design Review Matrix provides points based on design criteria. One set of criteria 
relates to parking and loading areas, specifically number of parking spaces. Per OAR 660-12-0440 
(parking reform near transit corridors) no parking mandates are allowed within ½ mile of a qualified 
“frequent service” route under OAR 660-12-0440.  Tri-Met’s Line 94 qualifies as a frequent transit 
service. Footnote 7 on the Design Review Matrix was amended to add provisions for Climate 
Friendly and Equitable Communities frequent transit corridor.  

110



 

 

Chapter 16.90 SITE PLANNING

***

16.90.020 Site Plan Review 

A. Site Plan Review Required  

Site Plan review is required prior to any substantial change to a site or use that is not subject to Residential 
Design Checklist or Residential Design Review, does not meet the criteria of a minor or major modification per 
16.90.030, issuance of building permits for a new building or structure, or for the substantial alteration of an 
existing structure or use. Exemptions noted below.  

Site Plan Review is required for the following development:  

1. Multi-dwelling  

2. Commercial  

3. Industrial  

4. Mixed-use  

For the purposes of Section 16.90.020, the terms "substantial change" and "substantial alteration" mean any 
development activity as defined by this Code that generally requires a building permit and may exhibit one or 
more of the following characteristics:  

1. The activity alters the exterior appearance of a structure, building or property and is not considered a 
modification.  

2. The activity involves changes in the use of a structure, building, or property from residential to 
commercial or industrial and is not considered a modification.  

3. The activity involves non-conforming uses as defined in Chapter 16.48.  

4. The activity constitutes a change in a City approved plan, per Section 16.90.020 and is not considered a 
modification.  

5. The activity is subject to site plan review by other requirements of this Code.  

6. The activity increases the size of the building by more than 100% (i.e. the building more than doubles in 
size), regardless of whether it would be considered a major or minor modification.  

B. Exemption to Site Plan Requirement  

1. Single Family detached and middle housing developments are exempt from Site Plan Review but are 
required to complete either a Residential Design Checklist or Residential Design Review per Chapter 
16.89, unless otherwise noted.  

2. Manufactured homes located on individual residential lots per Section 16.46.010, and including 
manufactured home parks.  

C. Reserved  

D. Required Findings  

No site plan approval will be granted unless each of the following is found:  

1. The proposed development meets applicable zoning district standards and design standards in Division 
II, and all provisions of Divisions V, VI, VIII and IX.  

111



 

 

2. The proposed development can be adequately served by services conforming to the Community 
Development Plan, including but not limited to water, sanitary facilities, storm water, solid waste, 
parks and open space, public safety, electric power, and communications.  

3. Covenants, agreements, and other specific documents are adequate, in the City's determination, to 
assure an acceptable method of ownership, management, and maintenance of structures, landscaping, 
and other on-site features.  

4. The proposed development preserves significant natural features to the maximum extent feasible, 
including but not limited to natural drainage ways, wetlands, trees, vegetation (including but not 
limited to environmentally sensitive lands), scenic views, and topographical features, and conforms to 
the applicable provisions of Division VIII of this Code and Chapter 5 of the Community Development 
Code.  

5. For developments that are likely to generate more than 400 average daily trips (ADTs), or at the 
discretion of the City Engineer, the applicant must provide adequate information, such as a traffic 
impact analysis (TIA) or traffic counts, to demonstrate the level of impact to the surrounding 
transportation system. The developer is required to mitigate for impacts attributable to the project, 
pursuant to TIA requirements in Section 16.106.080 and rough proportionality requirements in Section 
16.106.090. The determination of impact or effect and the scope of the impact study must be 
coordinated with the provider of the affected transportation facility.  

6. Electric Vehicle Conduits 

a. For proposed multi-family residential or mixed-use developments - proposed multi-family residential 
buildings with five or more residential dwelling units and proposed mixed-use buildings consisting of 
privately owned commercial space and five or more residential dwelling units, shall provide 
sufficient electrical service capacity, as defined in ORS 455.417, to accommodate no less than 40 
percent of all vehicle parking spaces. Dwelling units in townhouses are not included for purposes of 
determining the applicability of this regulation. 

b. For proposed Non-Residential Development under private ownership – Each building for a proposed 
non-residential development, under private ownership, shall provide electrical service capacity at no 
less than 20 percent of the vehicle parking spaces in the garage or parking area for the building. 
Fractional numbers derived from a calculation of the vehicle parking spaces must be rounded up to 
the nearest whole number. 

7. The proposed commercial, Multi-Family dwelling, institutional or mixed-use development is oriented to 
the pedestrian and bicycle, and to existing and planned transit facilities. Urban design standards 
include the following:  

a. Primary, front entrances are located and oriented to the street, and have significant articulation 
and treatment, via facades, porticos, arcades, porches, portal, forecourt, or stoop to identify the 
entrance for pedestrians. Additional entrance/exit points for buildings, such as a postern, are 
allowed from secondary streets or parking areas.  

b. Buildings are located adjacent to and flush to the street, subject to landscape corridor and 
setback standards of the underlying zone.  

c. The architecture of buildings are oriented to the pedestrian and designed for the long term and 
be adaptable to other uses. Aluminum, vinyl, and T-111 siding are prohibited. Street facing 
elevations have windows, transparent fenestration, and divisions to break up the mass of any 
window. Roll up and sliding doors are acceptable. Awnings that provide a minimum 3 feet of 
shelter from rain are required unless other architectural elements are provided for similar 
protection, such as an arcade.  

d. Multi-family development requires a minimum of 15 percent of the area of the primary building 
elevation adjacent to a public right-of-way to include windows and entrance doors, and for the 

112



 

 

side building elevation, adjacent to a public right-of-way or public accessway, a minimum of 10 
percent glazing of area is required.  

e. As an alternative to the standards in Section 16.90.020.D.6.a—d, the following Commercial 
Design Review Matrix may be applied to any commercial, multi-family, institutional or mixed use 
development (this matrix may not be utilized for developments within the Old Town Overlay). A 
development must propose a minimum of 60 percent of the total possible points to be eligible 
for exemption from the standards in Section 16.90.020.D.6.a—d. In addition, a development 
proposing between 15,001 and 40,000 square feet of floor area, parking or seating capacity and 
proposing a minimum of 80 percent of the total possible points from the matrix below may be 
reviewed as a Type II administrative review, per the standards of Section 16.72.010.A.2.  

*** 

COMMERCIAL DESIGN REVIEW MATRIX 

Design Criteria  Possible Points  
  
0  1  2  3  4  

Parking and Loading Areas (13 Total Points Possible; Minimum 7 Points Required)  
Location of 
Parking  

Greater than 
50 percent of 
required 
parking is 
located 
between any 
building and a 
public street  

25—50 
percent of 
required 
parking is 
located 
between any 
building and a 
public street  

Less than 25 
percent of 
required 
parking is 
located 
between any 
building and a 
public street  

No parking is 
located between 
any building and 
a public street  

—  

Loading Areas  Visible from 
public street 
and not 
screened  

Visible from 
public street 
and screened  

Not visible 
from public 
street  

—  —  

Vegetation  At least one 
"landscaped" 
island every 
13—15 
parking spaces 
in a row  

At least one 
"landscaped" 
island every 
10—12 
parking spaces 
in a row  

At least one 
"landscaped" 
island every 
8—9 parking 
spaces in a 
row  

At least one 
"landscaped" 
island every 6—7 
parking spaces in 
a row  

—  

Number of  
Parking  
Spaces7 

>120%  101—120%  100%  <100% (i.e. joint 
use or multiple 
reduction) (1 
bonus)  

—  

Parking 
Surface  

Impervious  Some pervious 
paving (10—
25%)  

Partially 
pervious 
paving (26—
50%)  

Mostly pervious 
paving (>50%)  

—  

113



 

 

Landscaping (24 Total Point Possible, Minimum 14 Points Required)  

  7Percent of minimum required. For development projects in the Climate Friendly and Equitable 
Communities frequent transit corridor, no parking is required therefore points are based on the 
percentage of stalls provided relative to the underlying parking standards.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

114



Chapter 16.94 OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING Commentary 

OAR 660-012-0430 reduced mandates for specific developments.  City cannot mandate more than 
one (1) space per unit for residential developments with more than one (1) unit (e.g. multi-family 
units). There are also no parking requirements for small units, affordable units, childcare, facilities 
for people with disabilities, and shelters. Currently, the Community Development Code (CDC) does 
not require parking for the following uses: Boarding House, Day Care, and Nursing homes.  Staff 
would consider these types of uses similar to specialized facilities and shelters.  Furthermore, the 
CDC does not require parking for Accessory Dwelling Units; City’s smallest housing units. 

OAR 660-12-0440 (parking reform near transit corridors) no parking mandates allowed ½ mile of a 
qualified “frequent service” route under OAR 660-12-0440.  Tri-Met’s Line 94 qualifies as a 
frequent transit service. Impacted properties are reflected on the map that will be adopted as part 
of the proposed amendments. 

OAR 660-0435 (Climate Friendly Areas) no parking mandates within the Sherwood Town Center 
area and on parcels within one-quarter mile distance of the Sherwood Town Center. Impacted 
properties are reflected on the map that will be adopted as part of the proposed amendments. 

OAR 660-012-0405 Parking Regulation Improvements 
• Preferential placement of carpool/vanpool parking
• Allow redevelopment of any portion of a parking lot for bike or transit uses
• Allow and encourage redevelopment of underutilized parking for other uses
• Allow and facilitate shared parking
• New parking lots more than ½ acre in size must install 40% tree canopy or solar panels, solar/wind

fee-in lieu or green energy
• Adopt parking maximums in locations such as downtowns, regional or community center, and

transit-oriented development

OAR 660-012-0425 Reducing the Burden of Parking Mandates 
• Garages and carports may not be required for residential developments
• Garage parking spaces shall count towards off-street parking mandates
• Provision of shared parking shall be allowed to meet parking mandates
• Required parking maybe provided off-site, within 2,000 feet pedestrian travel of a site
• Reduce parking mandates if providing solar panels or wind power capacity, car-sharing parking

space, EV parking spaces, units that are fully accessible to people with mobility disabilities.

OAR 660-012-0445 (1)(a)(B) Fair Pricing – Unbundled Parking 
 Require unbundled parking for parking spaces serving leased commercial development.

115



Chapter 16.94 - OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING  

16.94.010 General Requirements 

A. Off-Street Parking Required

No site shall be used for the parking of vehicles until plans are approved providing for off-street parking and
loading space as required by this Code. Any change in uses or structures that reduces the current off-street parking 
and loading spaces provided on site, or that increases the need for off-street parking or loading requirements shall 
be unlawful and a violation of this Code, unless additional off-street parking or loading areas are provided in 
accordance with Section 16.94.020, or unless a variance from the minimum or maximum parking standards is 
approved in accordance with Chapter 16.84 Variances.  

B. Deferral of Improvements

Off-street parking and loading spaces shall be completed prior to the issuance of occupancy permits, unless
the City determines that weather conditions, lack of available surfacing materials, or other circumstances beyond 
the control of the applicant make completion impossible. In such circumstances, security equal to one hundred 
twenty five (125) percent of the cost of the parking and loading area is provided the City. "Security" may consist of 
a performance bond payable to the City, cash, certified check, or other assurance of completion approved by the 
City. If the installation of the parking or loading area is not completed within one (1) year, the security may be used 
by the City to complete the installation.  

C. Options for Reducing the Required Parking Spaces

1. Two (2) or more uses or, structures on multiple parcels of land may utilize jointly the same parking and
loading spaces when the peak hours of operation do not substantially overlap, provided that
satisfactory evidence is presented to the City, in the form of deeds, leases, or contracts, clearly
establishing the joint use.

a. Within residential, commercial, institutional and public, or industrial zones, shared parking may
be provided on lots that are within two thousand (2,000) five hundred (500) feet of the property
line of the use to be served.

b. Shared parking is allowed if the application can show that the combined peak use is available by a
parking study that demonstrates:

(1) There is a sufficient number of parking spaces to accommodate the requirements of the
individual businesses; or

(2) That the peak hours of operation of such establishments do not overlap, and

(3) That an exclusive permanent easement over a delineated area has been granted for
parking space use.

2. Mixed use projects are developments where a variety of uses occupies a development project or
complex. For example, an eating establishment, professional office building and movie theater are all
components of a mixed use site. It does not include a secondary use within a primary use such as an
administrative office associated with a retail establishment. In mixed-use projects, the required
minimum vehicle parking shall be determined using the following formula:

a. Primary use: i.e. that with the largest proportion of total floor area within the development at
one hundred (100) percent of the minimum vehicle parking required for that use.

b. Secondary Use: i.e. that with the second largest percentage of total floor area within the
development, at ninety (90) percent of the vehicle parking required for that use.

c. Subsequent use or uses, at eighty (80) percent of the vehicle parking required for that use.

116



3. Parking reduction is allowed with development that provides solar panels or wind power capacity, car-
sharing parking spaces, electric-vehicle parking spaces, and housing units that are fully accessible to 
people with mobility disabilities as defined in Section 16.94.020.B(6). 

D. Prohibited Uses

Required parking, loading and maneuvering areas shall not be used for long-term storage or sale of vehicles
or other materials, and shall not be rented, leased or assigned to any person or organization not using or 
occupying the building or use served.  

E. Location

1. Residential off-street parking spaces:

a. Shall be located on the same lot or development as the residential use.

a. Garages and carports are not required for residential developments.

b. If garages and carports are proposed, the garage and carport parking space(s) shall count as off-
street parking. 

c. Residential off-street parking spaces can be shared per Section 16.94.010.C.1.a.

d. If all proposed parking is off-site, off-site parking for people with disabilities must be located
within the shortest possible distance of an accessible entrance via an accessible path and no 
greater than 200 feet from that entrance. 

b. Shall not include garages or enclosed buildings with the exception of a parking structure in Multi-
Family dwelling developments where three (3) or more spaces are not individually enclosed. 
(Example: Underground or multi-level parking structures).  

2. For other non-residential uses, required off-street parking spaces may include adjacent on-street
parking spaces, nearby public parking and shared parking located within five hundred (500) 2,000 feet
of the use. The distance from the parking, area to the use shall be measured from the nearest parking
space to a building entrance, following a sidewalk or other pedestrian route. The right to use private
off-site parking must be evidenced by a recorded deed, lease, easement, or similar written notarized
letter or instrument.

3. Vehicle parking is allowed only on improved parking shoulders that meet City standards for public
streets, within garages, carports and other structures, or on driveways or parking lots that have been
developed in conformance with this code. Specific locations and types of spaces (car pool, compact,
etc.) for parking shall be indicated on submitted plans and located to the side or rear of buildings
where feasible.

a. All Any new development with forty (40) more than fifty (50) employees or more shall include
preferential spaces for carpool/vanpool designation. Carpool and vanpool parking spaces shall be
located closer to the main employee entrance than all other parking spaces with the exception of
ADA parking spaces. Carpool/vanpool spaces shall be clearly marked as reserved for
carpool/vanpool only.

b. Existing development may redevelop portions of designated parking areas for multi-modal
facilities (transit shelters, park and ride, and bicycle parking), subject to meeting all other
applicable standards, including minimum space standards.

c. In applying subsections a and b above, access for emergency vehicles must be retained and
adequate parking for truck loading should be considered.  

117



 

 

4. Any new development that includes more than one-half acre of new off-street surface parking on a lot 
or parcel shall provide one of the provisions below.  The new surface parking area shall be measured 
based on the perimeter of all new off-street spaces, maneuvering lanes, and maneuvering areas, 
including driveways and drive aisles. 

a. Installation of solar panels with a generation capacity of at least 0.5 kilowatt per new parking 
space. Panels may be located anywhere on the property. In lieu of installing solar panels on site, 
the developer may pay $1,500 per new parking space in the development into a city fund dedicated 
to equitable solar or wind energy development or a fund at the Oregon Department of Energy 
designated for such purpose; or 

b.  Actions to comply with Green Energy Technology per OAR 330-135-0010; or 

c.  Tree canopy covering at least 40 percent of the new parking lot area at maturity but no more than 
15 years after planting.  

5.  Any new development that includes more than one-half acre of new surface parking on a lot or parcel 
shall provide either trees along driveways or a minimum of 30 percent tree canopy coverage over 
parking areas. Developments are not required to provide trees along drive aisles. The tree spacing and 
species planted must be designed to maintain a continuous canopy, except when interrupted by 
driveways, drive aisles, and other site design considerations; and 

6. Provisions under subsections 4 and 5 above, the following shall apply: 

a. Development of a tree canopy plan shall be done in coordination with the local electric utility, 
including pre-design, design, building, and maintenance phases.  

b. Trees must be planted and maintained to maximize their root health and chances for survival, 
including having ample high-quality soil, space for root growth, and reliable irrigation according to the 
needs of the species. Trees should be planted in continuous trenches where possible. The minimum 
standards for planting and tree care no lower than the current American National Standards Institute 
A300 standards. 

7.     Conversion and redevelopment of underutilized parking areas for other uses is allowed. 

The City may allow the development of underused parking areas for uses permitted in the applicable 
zone. Underutilized shall mean any portion of the parking area that remains mostly vacant throughout 
most of the year (excluding special events or peak periods). A study shall accompany any request for 
site plan review Land Use applications. The study shall demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the City, that 
the elimination of the existing parking will have no detrimental effects, that cannot be mitigated by 
the applicant, on the property or sounding properties. This includes, but is not limited to, the 
possibility that the elimination of parking areas may shift the need for parking onto neighboring 
properties or cause any other negative impacts to surrounding properties. 

8.  Any new development that includes more than one-half acre of new off-street surface parking on a lot 
or parcel shall meet pedestrian walkway standards per Section 16.96.020 or 16.96.030. 

 

F. Marking  

All parking, loading or maneuvering areas shall be clearly marked and painted. All interior drives and access 
aisles shall be clearly marked and signed to show the direction of flow and maintain vehicular and pedestrian 
safety.  

G. Surface and Drainage  

118



1. All parking and loading areas shall be improved with a permanent hard surface such as asphalt,
concrete or a durable pervious surface. Use of pervious paving material is encouraged and preferred
where appropriate considering soils, location, anticipated vehicle usage and other pertinent factors.

2. Parking and loading areas shall include storm water drainage facilities approved by the City Engineer or
Building Official.

H. Repairs

Parking and loading areas shall be kept clean and in good repair. Breaks in paved surfaces shall be repaired.
Broken or splintered wheel stops shall be replaced. Painted parking space boundaries and directional symbols shall 
be maintained in a readable condition.  

I. Parking and Loading Plan

An off-street parking and loading plan, drawn to scale, shall accompany requests for building permits or site
plan approvals. A parking and loading plan is not required for all residential housing types, except for Multi-family, 
on residential lots in a recorded subdivision. The plan shall show but not be limited to:  

1. Delineation of individual parking and loading spaces and dimensions.

2. Circulation areas necessary to serve parking and loading spaces.

3. Location of accesses to streets, alleys and properties to be served, and any curb cuts.

4. Landscaping as required by Chapter 16.92.

5. Grading and drainage facilities.

6. Signing and bumper guard specifications.

7. Bicycle parking facilities as specified in Section 16.94.020.C.

8. Parking lots more than one (1) acre in size shall provide street-like features including curbs, sidewalks,
and street trees or planting strips.

J. Parking Districts

The City may establish a parking district (i.e., permits or signage) in residential areas in order to protect
residential areas from spillover parking generated by adjacent commercial, employment or mixed-use areas, or 
other uses that generate a high demand for parking. The district request shall be made to the City Manager, who 
will forward a recommendation to the City Council for a decision.  

K. Structured parking and on-street parking are exempt from the parking space maximums in Section
16.94.020.A.

L. Commercial Uses

Parking spaces for rented or leased commercial uses shall be unbundled per Title 5.36.   

(Ord. No. 2021-010 , § 2, 12-7-2021; Ord. No. 2014-012, § 3, 7-17-2014; Ord. No. 2012-008, § 2, 7-17-2012; Ord. 
No. 2010-015, § 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. 2006-021; 2000-2001, § 3; Ord. 2000-2001, § 3; Ord. 86-851, § 3) 

16.94.020 Off-Street Parking Standards 

A. Generally

Where square feet are specified, the area measured shall be the gross building floor area primary to the
functioning of the proposed use. Where employees are specified, persons counted shall be those working on the 
premises, including proprietors, during the largest shift at peak season. Fractional space requirements shall be 
counted as a whole space. The Review Authority may determine alternate off - street parking and loading 

119



requirements for a use not specifically listed in this Section based upon the requirements of comparable uses. Per 
OAR 660-012-0440 Parking Reform Near Transit Corridors no off-street parking is required for developments on a 
lot or parcel that includes lands within one-half (1/2) mile of a frequent transit corridor. Per OAR 660-012-0435 
Climate Friendly Areas, no off-street parking is required within the Sherwood Town Center and one-quarter mile of 
the area (see CFEC Parking Delineated Area Map). 

Table 1: Minimum and Maximum Parking Standards for lots or parcels not within the CFEC Parking Delineated 
Area 

(Metro spaces are based on 1 per 1,000 sq ft of gross leasable area; ADU standards are per OAR Division 46  

Minimum Parking 
Standard  

Maximum Permitted 
Parking Zone A1  

Maximum Permitted 
Parking Zone B2  

Accessory Dwelling Unit None  None  None  
Single-Family detached 
and manufactured home 
on lot3  

1 per dwelling unit None  None  

Duplex 1 space per dwelling unit 
(total of 2 per duplex)  

None  None  

Triplex 
• Lot area less than

3,000 SF 
1 space total  None  None  

• Lot area equal to or
greater than 3,000 SF and 
less than 5,000 SF  

2 spaces total None  None  

• Lot area equal to or
greater than 5,000 SF 

3 spaces total None  None  

Quadplex  
• Lot area less than

3,000 SF 
1 space total  None  None  

• Lot area equal to or
greater than 3,000 SF and 
less than 5,000 SF  

2 spaces total None  None  

• Lot area equal to or
greater than 5,000 SF and 
less than 7,000 SF  

3 spaces total None  None  

• Lot area equal to or
greater than 7,000 SF 

4 spaces total None  None  

Townhome 1 space per unit  None  None  
Cottage Cluster 1 space per unit  None  None  
Multi-Family dwelling4  1 per unit under 500 sf  

1.25 per 1 bdr  
1.5 per 2 bdr  
1.75 per 3 bdr 

None  None  

Hotel or motel 1 per room None  None  
Boarding house None  None  None  
General retail or personal 
service  

4.1 (244 sf) 5.1  6.2  

Vehicle sales, nursery  4.1  5.1  6.2  
Furniture/appliance store 4.1  5.1  6.2  
Tennis racquetball court  1.0  1.3  1.5  

120



Golf course None  None  None  
Sports club/recreation 
facility  

4.3 (233 sf) 5.4  6.5  

General office 2.7 (370 sf) 3.4  4.1  
Bank with drive-thru  4.3 (233 sf) 5.4  6.5  
Eating or drinking 
establishment  

15.3 (65 sf) 19.1 23.0 

Fast food drive-thru 9.9 (101 sf) 12.4 14.9 
Movie theater 0.3 per seat  0.4  0.5  
Day care Child Care 
Facility as defined in ORS 
329A.250 

None  None  None  

Elementary and junior 
high  

None  None  None  

High school and college  0.2 per student + teacher 0.3  0.3  
Places of worship  0.5 per seat 0.6  0.8  
Nursing home  None  None  None  
Library  None  None  None  
Single-room occupancy 
housing 

None None None 

Residential units smaller 
than 750 square feet 

None None None 

Affordable Units as 
defined in OAR 660-039-
0010 

None None None 

Facilities for people with 
disabilities as defined in 
ORS 443.400 

None None None 

Public supported housing 
as defined in ORS 456.250 

None None None 

Domestic Violence, 
Emergency and 
Transitional Shelters 

None None None 

Industrial 1.6  None  None  
Warehouse (gross square 
feet; parking ratios apply 
to warehouses 150,000 
gsf or greater)  

0.3  0.4  0.5  

1  Parking Zone A reflects the maximum number of permitted vehicle parking spaces allowed for each listed land 
use. Parking Zone A areas include those parcels that are located within one-quarter (¼) mile walking distance of 
bus transit stops, one-half (½) mile walking distance of light rail station platforms, or both, or that have a greater 
than twenty-minute peak hour transit service.  
2  Parking Zone B reflects the maximum number of permitted vehicle parking spaces allowed for each listed land 
use. Parking Zone B areas include those parcels that are located at a distance greater than one-quarter (¼) mile 
walking distance of bus transit stops, one-half (½) mile walking distance of light rail station platforms, or both.  
3  If the street on which the house has direct access does not permit on-street parking or is less than twenty-eight 
(28) feet wide, two (2) off-street parking spaces are required per single-family-detached dwelling (includes a

121



 

 

manufactured home on an individual lot) if the abutting street is twenty-eight (28) feet or wider, one (1) standard 
(9 ft. × 20 ft.) parking space is required.  
4  Visitor parking in residential developments: Multi-Family dwelling units with more than ten (10) required 
parking spaces shall provide an additional fifteen (15) percent of the required number of parking spaces for the use 
of guests of the residents of the development. The spaces shall be centrally located or distributed throughout the 
development. Required bicycle parking facilities shall also be centrally located within or evenly distributed 
throughout the development.  

B. Dimensional and General Configuration Standards  

1. Dimensions For the purpose of this Chapter, a "parking space" means a stall nine (9) feet in width and 
twenty (20) feet in length. Up to twenty five (25) percent of required parking spaces may have a 
minimum dimension of eight (8) feet in width and eighteen (18) feet in length so long as they are 
signed as compact car stalls.  

2. Layout  

Parking space configuration, stall and access aisle size shall be of sufficient width for all vehicle turning 
and maneuvering. Groups of more than four (4) parking spaces shall be served by a driveway so as to 
minimize backing movements or other maneuvering within a street, other than an alley. All parking 
areas shall meet the minimum standards shown in the following table and diagram.  

 
Table 2: Minimum Parking Dimension Requirements 
One-Way Driving Aisle (Dimensions in Feet)  

 A  B  C  D  E  F  G  H  J  
45º  8.0  16.5  13.0  11.3  46.0  3.0  2.5  51.0  

9.0  18.5  12.0  12.7  49.0  3.0  2.5  54.0  
60º  8.0  17.0  18.0  9.2  52.0  3.0  2.5  57.0  

9.0  19.5  16.0  10.4  55.0  3.0  2.5  60.0  
75º  8.0  16.5  26.0  8.3  59.0  3.0  3.0  65.0  

9.0  19.0  23.0  9.3  61.0  3.0  3.0  67.0  
90º  8.0  18.0  26.0  8.0  56.0  3.0  3.0  62.0  

9.0  20.0  24.0  9.0  58.0  3.0  3.0  64.0  

 

122



 

 

Table 3: Two-Way Driving Aisle 
(Dimensions in Feet)  

 A  B  C  D  E  F  G  H  J  
45º  8.0  16.5  24.0  11.3  57.0  3.0  2.5  62.0  

9.0  18.5  24.0  12.7  61.0  3.0  2.5  66.0  
60º  8.0  17.0  24.0  9.2  58.0  3.0  2.5  63.0  

9.0  19.5  24.0  10.4  63.0  3.0  2.5  68.0  
75º  8.0  16.5  26.0  8.3  59.0  3.0  3.0  65.0  

9.0  19.0  24.0  9.3  62.0  3.0  3.0  68.0  
90º  8.0  18.0  26.0  8.0  56.0  3.0  3.0  62.0  

9.0  20.0  24.0  9.0  58.0  3.0  3.0  64.0  
 

3. Wheel Stops  

a. Parking spaces along the boundaries of a parking lot or adjacent to interior landscaped areas or 
sidewalks shall be provided with a wheel stop at least four (4) inches high, located three (3) feet 
back from the front of the parking stall as shown in the above diagram.  

b. Wheel stops adjacent to landscaping, bio-swales or water quality facilities shall be designed to 
allow storm water runoff.  

c. The paved portion of the parking stall length may be reduced by three (3) feet if replaced with 
three (3) feet of low lying landscape or hardscape in lieu of a wheel stop; however, a curb is still 
required. In other words, the traditional three-foot vehicle overhang from a wheel stop may be 
low-lying landscaping rather than an impervious surface.  

4. Service Drives  

Service drives shall be clearly and permanently marked and defined through use of rails, fences, walls, 
or other barriers or markers, and shall have minimum vision clearance area formed by the intersection 
of the driveway center line, the street right-of-way line, and a straight line joining said lines through 
points fifteen (15) feet from their intersection.  

5. Credit for On-Street Parking  

a. On-Street Parking Credit. Except for residential uses, the amount of off-street parking required 
shall be reduced by one (1) off-street parking space for every on-street parking space adjacent to 
the development. On-street parking shall follow the established configuration of existing on-
street parking, except that angled parking may be allowed for some streets, where permitted by 
City standards.  

b. The following constitutes an on-street parking space:  

(1) Parallel parking, each twenty-four (24) feet of uninterrupted curb;  

(2) Forty-five (45)/sixty (60) degree diagonal, each with ten (10) feet of curb;  

(3) Ninety (90) degree (perpendicular) parking, each with eight (8) feet of curb;  

(4) Curb space must be connected to the lot which contains the use;  

(5) Parking spaces that would not obstruct a required clear vision area, nor any other parking 
that violates any law or street standard; and;  

(6) On-street parking spaces credited for a specific use may not be used exclusively by that 
use, but shall be available for general public use at all times. No signs or actions limiting 
general public use of on-street spaces is permitted.  

123



 

 

6. Reduction in Required Parking Spaces  

a. Developments utilizing Engineered storm water bio-swales or those adjacent to environmentally 
constrained or sensitive areas may reduce the amount of required parking spaces by ten (10) 
percent when twenty-five (25) through forty-nine (49) parking spaces are required, fifteen (15) 
percent when fifty (50) and seventy-four (74) parking spaces are required and twenty (20) percent 
when more than seventy-five (75) parking spaces are required, provided the area that would have 
been used for parking is maintained as a habitat area or is generally adjacent to an environmentally 
sensitive or constrained area.  

b. Solar Panels or Wind Power - developments utilizing solar panels or wind power may reduce the 
amount of required parking spaces by one (1) parking space when three kilowatts of capacity in 
solar panels or wind power is proposed to be provided in a development. 

c.  Car-Sharing – developments utilizing car-sharing parking may reduce the amount of required 
parking spaces by one (1) off-street parking space for each dedicated car-sharing parking space in a 
development. Dedicated car-sharing parking spaces shall count as spaces for parking mandates. 

d. Electric Vehicle Charging Station – developments that provide electric vehicle charging station may 
reduce the amount of required parking spaces by two (2) off-street parking spaces for every electric 
vehicle charging station provided in a development. Parking spaces that include electric vehicle 
charging while an automobile is parked shall count towards parking mandates. 

e. Fully Accessible Parking – developments utilizing this provision may reduce one (1) off-street 
parking space for every two units in a development above minimum requirements that are fully 
accessible to people with mobility disabilities. 

f. Any reductions under Section 16.94.020.B.6 (a-e) above, shall be cumulative and not capped. 

 

7. Parking Location and Shared Parking  

Owners of off-street parking facilities may post a sign indicating that all parking on the site is available 
only for residents, customers and/or employees, as applicable.  

C. Bicycle Parking Facilities  

1. General Provisions  

a. Applicability. Bicycle parking spaces shall be provided for new development, changes of use, and 
major renovations, defined as construction valued at twenty-five (25) percent or more of the 
assessed value of the existing structure.  

b. Types of Spaces. Bicycle parking facilities shall be provided in terms of short-term bicycle parking 
and long-term bicycle parking. Short-term bicycle parking is intended to encourage customers 
and other visitors to use bicycles by providing a convenient and readily accessible place to park 
bicycles. Long-term bicycle parking provides employees, students, residents, commuters, and 
others who generally stay at a site for at least several hours a weather-protected place to park 
bicycles.  

c. Minimum Number of Spaces. The required total minimum number of bicycle parking spaces for 
each use category is shown in Table 4, Minimum Required Bicycle Parking Spaces.  

d. Minimum Number of Long-term Spaces. If a development is required to provide eight (8) or more 
required bicycle parking spaces in Table 4, at least twenty-five (25) percent shall be provided as 
long-term bicycle with a minimum of one (1) long-term bicycle parking space.  

e. Multiple Uses. When there are two or more primary uses on a site, the required bicycle parking 
for the site is the sum of the required bicycle parking for the individual primary uses.  

124



 

 

2. Location and Design.  

a. General Provisions  

(1) Each space must be at least two (2) feet by six (6) feet in area, be accessible without 
moving another bicycle, and provide enough space between the rack and any obstructions 
to use the space properly.  

(2) There must be an aisle at least five (5) feet wide behind all required bicycle parking to allow 
room for bicycle maneuvering. Where the bicycle parking is adjacent to a sidewalk, the 
maneuvering area may extend into the right-of-way.  

(3) Lighting. Bicycle parking shall be at least as well lit as vehicle parking for security.  

(4) Reserved Areas. Areas set aside for bicycle parking shall be clearly marked and reserved for 
bicycle parking only.  

(5) Bicycle parking in the Old Town Overlay District can be located on the sidewalk within the 
right-of-way. A standard inverted "U shaped" or staple design is appropriate. Alternative, 
creative designs are strongly encouraged.  

(6) Hazards. Bicycle parking shall not impede or create a hazard to pedestrians. Parking areas 
shall be located so as to not conflict with vision clearance standards.  

b. Short-term Bicycle Parking  

(1) Provide lockers or racks that meet the standards of this section.  

(2) Locate inside or outside the building within thirty (30) feet of the main entrance to the 
building or at least as close as the nearest vehicle parking space, whichever is closer.  

c. Long-term Bicycle Parking  

(1) Provide racks, storage rooms, or lockers in areas that are secure or monitored (e.g., visible 
to employees or customers or monitored by security guards).  

(2) Locate the outside bicycle parking spaces within one hundred (100) feet of the entrance 
that will be accessed by the intended users.  

(3) All of the spaces shall be covered.  

d. Covered Parking (Weather Protection)  

(1) When required, covered bicycle parking shall be provided in one (1) of the following ways: 
inside buildings, under roof overhangs or awnings, in bicycle lockers, or within or under 
other structures.  

(2) Where required covered bicycle parking is not within a building or locker, the cover must 
be permanent and designed to protect the bicycle from rainfall and provide seven-foot 
minimum overhead clearance.  

(3) Where required bicycle parking is provided in lockers, the lockers shall be securely 
anchored.  

Table 4: Minimum Required Bicycle Parking Spaces 

Use Categories  Minimum Required Spaces  
Residential Categories 
Household living  Multi-dwelling — 2 or 1 per 10 auto spaces.  

All other residential structure types — None  
Group living  1 per 20 auto spaces  
Commercial Categories 

125



 

 

Retail sales/service office  2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces, whichever is greater  
Drive-up vehicle servicing  None  
Vehicle repair  None  
Commercial parking facilities, commercial, outdoor 
recreation, major event entertainment  

4 or 1 per 20 auto spaces, whichever is greater  

Self-service storage  None  
Industrial Categories 
Industrial  2 or 1 per 40 spaces, whichever is greater  
Public and Institutional Categories 
Park and ride facilities  2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces  
Community service essential service providers parks 
and open areas  

2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces, whichever is greater  

Schools  High schools — 4 per classroom  
 Middle schools — 2 per classroom  
 Grade schools — 2 per 4th & 5th grade classroom  
Colleges, medical centers, religious institutions, 
daycare uses  

2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces whichever is greater  

 

(Ord. No. 2022-004 , § 2, 6-13-2022; Ord. No. 2021-010 , § 2, 12-7-2021; Ord. No. 2018-007, § 2, 10-2-2018; Ord. 
No. 2015-003, § 2, 3-17-2015; Ord. No. 2014-012, § 3, 7-17-2014; Ord. No. 2012-008, § 2, 7-17-2012; Ord. No. 
2010-015, § 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. 2006-021; 2005-009 § 8; Ord. 2000-2001 § 3; Ord. 86-851 § 3) 

16.94.030 Off-Street Loading Standards 

A. Minimum Standards  

1. A driveway designed for continuous forward flow of passenger vehicles for the purpose of loading and 
unloading passengers shall be located on the site of any school, or other public meeting place, which is 
designed to accommodate more than twenty five (25) persons at one time.  

2. The minimum loading area for non-residential uses shall not be less than ten (10) feet in width by 
twenty-five (25) feet in length and shall have an unobstructed height of fourteen (14) feet.  

3. Multiple uses on the same parcel or adjacent parcels may utilize the same loading area if it is shown in 
the development application that the uses will not have substantially overlapping delivery times.  

4. The following additional minimum loading space is required for buildings in excess of twenty thousand 
(20,000) square feet of gross floor area:  

a. Twenty thousand (20,000) to fifty (50,000) sq. ft. - five hundred (500) sq. ft.  

b. Fifty (50,000) sq. ft. or more - seven hundred fifty (750) sq. ft.  

B. Separation of Areas  

Any area to be used for the maneuvering of delivery vehicles and the unloading or loading of materials shall 
be separated from designated off-street parking areas and designed to prevent the encroachment of delivery 
vehicles onto off-street parking areas or public streets. Off-street parking areas used to fulfill the requirements of 
this Chapter shall not be used for loading and unloading operations.  

C. Exceptions and Adjustments.  

The review authority, through Site Plan Review, may approve loading areas within a street right-of-way in the 
Old Town Overlay District when all of the following conditions are met:  

1. Short in duration (i.e., less than one (1) hour);  

126



 

 

2. Infrequent (less than three (3) operations occur daily between 5:00 a.m. and 12:00 a.m. or all 
operations occur between 12:00 a.m. and 5:00 a.m. at a location that is not adjacent to a residential 
zone);  

3. Does not unreasonably obstruct traffic; [or] Does not obstruct traffic during peak traffic hours;  

4. Does not obstruct a primary emergency response route; and  

5. Is acceptable to the applicable roadway authority.  

(Ord. No. 2014-012, § 3, 7-17-2014; Ord. No. 2012-008, § 2, 7-17-2012; Ord. No. 2010-015, § 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. 
No. 2009-005, § 2, 6-2-2009; Ord. 86-851, § 3) 

  

127



 

 

Chapter 16.140 - PARKS, TREES, AND OPEN SPACES Commentary 

OAR 660-012-0405 Parking Regulation Improvements   
 Development standards for new surface parking lots more than ½ acre in size 

128



 

 

Chapter 16.140 - PARKS, TREES AND OPEN SPACES 

16.140.010 Purpose  
This Chapter is intended to assure the provision of a system of public and private recreation and open space 

areas and facilities consistent with this Code and applicable portions of the City's adopted Comprehensive Plan. 
The standards of this section do not supersede the open space requirements of a Planned Unit Development, 
found in Chapter 16.40 - Planned Unit Development (PUD).  

(Ord. No. 2023-002 , § 2, 3-7-2023; Ord. No. 2011-009, § 2, 7-19-2011; Ord. 2006-021; 91-922, § 3) 

 
***

16.140.070 Trees on Property Subject to Certain Land Use Applications 

A. Generally  

The purpose of this Section is to establish processes and standards which will minimize cutting or destruction 
of trees and woodlands within the City. This Section is intended to help protect the scenic beauty of the City; to 
retain a livable environment through the beneficial effect of trees on air pollution, heat and glare, sound, water 
quality, and surface water and erosion control; to encourage the retention and planting of tree species native to 
the Willamette Valley and Western Oregon; to provide an attractive visual contrast to the urban environment, and 
to sustain a wide variety and distribution of viable trees and woodlands in the community over time.  

*** 

 

D. Retention requirements  

1. Trees may be considered for removal to accommodate the development including buildings, 
parking, walkways, grading etc., provided the development satisfies of D.2 or D.3, below.  

2. Required Tree Canopy - All Residential Developments subject to Type II—IV land use review.  

Each net development site shall provide a variety of trees to achieve a minimum total tree canopy of 
40 percent. The canopy percentage is based on the expected mature canopy of each tree by using the 
equation πr2 to calculate the expected square footage of canopy for each tree. The expected mature 
canopy is counted for each tree regardless of an overlap of multiple tree canopies.  

The canopy requirement can be achieved by retaining existing trees or planting new trees. Required 
street trees can be used toward the total on site canopy required to meet this standard. The expected 
mature canopy spread of the new trees will be counted toward the needed canopy cover. A certified 
arborist or other qualified professional shall provide the estimated tree canopy of the proposed trees 
to the planning department for review.  

3. Required Tree Canopy - Non-Residential and Multi-Family Dwelling Developments  

a.    Each net development site shall provide a variety of trees to achieve a minimum total tree canopy 
of 30 percent. The canopy percentage is based on the expected mature canopy of each tree by 
using the equation πr2 to calculate the expected square footage of each tree. The expected mature 
canopy is counted for each tree even if there is an overlap of multiple tree canopies.  

b.    The canopy requirement can be achieved by retaining existing trees or planting new trees. 
Required landscaping trees can be used toward the total on site canopy required to meet this 
standard. The expected mature canopy spread of the new trees will be counted toward the 
required canopy cover. A certified arborist or other qualified professional shall provide an 

129



 

 

estimated tree canopy for all proposed trees to the planning department for review as a part of the 
land use review process.  

c.    Development standards for new surface parking lots more than half (½) acre in size, see Section 
16.94 Parking and Loading.  

 

  Residential  
(single family  
detached and  
middle housing  
developments)  
subject to  
Residential  
Design  
Checklist  
or Type I review  

Residential  
(single family  
detached and  
middle housing  
developments)  
subject to Type  
II—IV review  

Old Town & Infill  
developments  

Commercial,  
Industrial,  
Institutional  
Public and  
Multi-Family  
dwelling  

Canopy 
Requirement  

N/A  40%  N/A  30%  

Counted Toward the Canopy Requirement  

Street trees 
included in canopy 
requirement  

N/A  Yes  N/A  No  

Landscaping 
requirements 
included in canopy 
requirement  

N/A  N/A  N/A  Yes  

Existing trees onsite  N/A  Yes x2  N/A  Yes x2  

Planting new trees 
onsite  

N/A  Yes  N/A  Yes  

Mature Canopy in Square Feet Equation πr 2 or (3.14159*radius 2) (This is the calculation to measure the 
square footage of a circle.  
   
The Mature Canopy is given in diameter. In gardening and horticulture reference books, therefore to get the 
radius you must divide the diameter in half.  

Canopy Calculation Example: Pin Oak  
Mature canopy = 35'  
 
(3.14159* 17.52 ) = 962 square feet  

 

130



 

 

 

*** 
 
 

 

131



City of Sherwood 
CFEC Parking Delineated Area

¯

Legend

0 0.5 10.25
Miles

Per Oregon Administrative Rules: 660-012-0440 & 660-012-0435

CFEC Parking Mandates 

TriMet Route (Line 94)

Sherwood Town Center Plan Area 

Sherwood City Limits

Sherwood Taxlots

132

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Langer Farms Parkway 

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Pacific Highway

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Willamette  

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Sherwood Boulevard

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Tualatin Sherwood Boulevard   



Chapter 3.40 COMMERCIAL PARKING LOT LOCAL TAX 

3.40.010 Purpose 

A. The purpose of this chapter is to impose a tax on commercial parking lots in the City of 
Sherwood.  

B. The commercial parking lot tax imposed by this chapter follows OAR 660-012-
0445(1)(a)(D). 

3.40.020 Definitions.  

The definitions contained in Chapter 3.40 of the Sherwood Municipal Code shall be fully 
applicable to this chapter except as may be expressly stated to the contrary herein. The 
following additional definitions shall apply throughout this chapter:  

A. "Commercial parking business" means the ownership, lease, operation, or 
management of a commercial parking lot in which fees are charged for the act or 
privilege of parking motor vehicles.  

B. "Commercial parking lot" means a standalone, covered, or uncovered area used for 
the purpose of parking motor vehicles for a fee. Parking associated with a retail or 
personal service use in the same development.  

C. "Parking tax" means the commercial parking tax imposed by this chapter.  

D. "City Manager" means the City Manager of the City of Sherwood, or his or her 
designee.

3.40.030 Parking tax imposed 

A. Pursuant to OAR 660-012-0445(1)(a)(D), there is imposed on every person a tax for the act 
or privilege of parking a motor vehicle in a commercial parking lot within the City that is 
operated by a commercial parking business. The privilege of parking includes the right to 
park, whether or not the right is exercised.  

B. The amount of the parking tax shall be equal to the parking fee multiplied by the parking 
tax rate. Effective July 1, 2024, the parking tax rate is imposed at ten percent (0.10).  

3.40.040 Measure of Tax: Parking Fee. 

A. The measure of the parking tax is the parking fee. Parking fee means the fee paid or due 
for the act or privilege of parking a motor vehicle in a commercial parking lot.  

133



B. It shall be conclusively presumed that the posted parking prices do not include the parking 
tax unless all the following conditions are met:  

1. The fee is advertised as including the tax or that the commercial parking business is 
paying the tax;  

2. The words "tax included" are stated immediately following the advertised or posted 
prices in print size at least half as large as the advertised or posted prices print size; 
and  

3. All advertised or posted parking prices and the words "tax included" are stated in the 
same medium, whether oral or visual, and if oral, in substantially the same inflection 
and volume. If these conditions are satisfied, then price lists, reader boards, and other 
price information mediums need not show separately the parking fee and the actual 
amount of commercial parking tax being collected.  

3.40.050 Exemptions from the Parking Tax. 

The following are exempt from the parking tax:  

A. General retail and commercial service parking lots associated with a development 
that has received land use approval.  

B. Mini-warehousing or self-storage 

3.40.060 Collection and Remittance Of Tax. 

A commercial parking business or person acting on its behalf shall collect the amount of 
the parking tax from the person paying the parking fee at the time payment is made. The 
parking tax shall be stated separately from the parking fee on all instruments evidencing the 
parking fee. The presumption is not overcome by any oral or written agreement between the 
parties.  

The person receiving payment of the parking fee shall remit the parking tax to the City 
Manager quarterly (April 15th, July 15th, October 15th, and January 15th). The parking tax shall be 
deemed held in trust by the person required to collect the same until remitted to the City 
Manager. Any person who fails to collect the parking tax, or who collects the parking tax but 
fails to remit the parking tax to the City Manager, shall be liable to the City for the amount of 
such tax. The commercial parking business or person acting on its behalf who fails to remit the 
full amount of the tax imposed and due by this chapter prior to delinquency shall pay a late 
payment penalty of ten percent of the amount of the portion of the tax that is unpaid as of the 
delinquency date, which penalty is owed in addition to the amount of the tax due. 

Such person shall, unless the remittance is made as required in this section, be guilty of a 
violation of this chapter whether such failure be the result of the person's own act or the result 
of acts or conditions beyond its control.  

134



3.40.070 Use Of Revenues. 

The proceeds of the tax imposed herein shall be used for transportation alternatives to 
drive-alone travel including active transportation options in accordance with OAR 660-012-
0445(1)(a)(D). To the extent permitted by applicable law the City may issue bonds, notes, or 
other evidence of indebtedness payable wholly or in part from the parking tax and may pledge 
and may apply such tax to the payment of principal of, interest on, and premium (if any) on 
such bonds, notes, or other evidence of indebtedness and to the payment of costs associated 
with them.  

3.40.080 Receipts To Transportation Fund. 

All receipts from the parking tax shall be placed in and segregated within the 
Transportation Fund. These receipts may be temporarily deposited or invested in such manner 
as may be lawful for the investment of City money and interest and other earnings shall be 
deposited in the Transportation Fund.  

 

135



Chapter 5.36 UNBUNDLED PARKING FOR COMMERCIAL LEASES 

 

5.36.010 Parking for rented or leased commercial uses. 

A. Parking for commercial uses 
 
1. Unless commercial uses are listed as exempt in subsection 5.36.010.A.2, off-street parking 

accessory to rented or leased commercial use spaces shall not be required in any new rental 
or lease agreement. If parking is desired by the tenant, the fee for parking shall be listed as a 
separate line item within the lease or shall be subject to a separate rental or lease agreement.  

 
2. Exempt uses include: 

a. Hotel and motels 
b. Motor vehicle sales and services 
c. Truck and bus yards 
d. Mini-warehousing or self/auto storage 
e. Vehicle fueling stations or car wash facilities 
 

3. Market Rates for Comparable Local Off-Street Parking - the minimum unbundled parking 
rates shall be no less than $50 per space per month. 

 
 

136



Title 16  
ZONING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE 

 
The proposed amendments are organized by code chapter. Only those sections of the code that are proposed to 
be amended are included in the document. 
 
  

137



Chapter 16.90 SITE PLANNING

***

16.90.020 Site Plan Review 

A. Site Plan Review Required  

Site Plan review is required prior to any substantial change to a site or use that is not subject to Residential 
Design Checklist or Residential Design Review, does not meet the criteria of a minor or major modification per 
16.90.030, issuance of building permits for a new building or structure, or for the substantial alteration of an 
existing structure or use. Exemptions noted below.  

Site Plan Review is required for the following development:  

1. Multi-dwelling  

2. Commercial  

3. Industrial  

4. Mixed-use  

For the purposes of Section 16.90.020, the terms "substantial change" and "substantial alteration" mean any 
development activity as defined by this Code that generally requires a building permit and may exhibit one or 
more of the following characteristics:  

1. The activity alters the exterior appearance of a structure, building or property and is not considered a 
modification.  

2. The activity involves changes in the use of a structure, building, or property from residential to 
commercial or industrial and is not considered a modification.  

3. The activity involves non-conforming uses as defined in Chapter 16.48.  

4. The activity constitutes a change in a City approved plan, per Section 16.90.020 and is not considered a 
modification.  

5. The activity is subject to site plan review by other requirements of this Code.  

6. The activity increases the size of the building by more than 100% (i.e. the building more than doubles in 
size), regardless of whether it would be considered a major or minor modification.  

B. Exemption to Site Plan Requirement  

1. Single Family detached and middle housing developments are exempt from Site Plan Review but are 
required to complete either a Residential Design Checklist or Residential Design Review per Chapter 
16.89, unless otherwise noted.  

2. Manufactured homes located on individual residential lots per Section 16.46.010, and including 
manufactured home parks.  

C. Reserved  

D. Required Findings  

No site plan approval will be granted unless each of the following is found:  

1. The proposed development meets applicable zoning district standards and design standards in Division 
II, and all provisions of Divisions V, VI, VIII and IX.  

138



2. The proposed development can be adequately served by services conforming to the Community 
Development Plan, including but not limited to water, sanitary facilities, storm water, solid waste, 
parks and open space, public safety, electric power, and communications.  

3. Covenants, agreements, and other specific documents are adequate, in the City's determination, to 
assure an acceptable method of ownership, management, and maintenance of structures, landscaping, 
and other on-site features.  

4. The proposed development preserves significant natural features to the maximum extent feasible, 
including but not limited to natural drainage ways, wetlands, trees, vegetation (including but not 
limited to environmentally sensitive lands), scenic views, and topographical features, and conforms to 
the applicable provisions of Division VIII of this Code and Chapter 5 of the Community Development 
Code.  

5. For developments that are likely to generate more than 400 average daily trips (ADTs), or at the 
discretion of the City Engineer, the applicant must provide adequate information, such as a traffic 
impact analysis (TIA) or traffic counts, to demonstrate the level of impact to the surrounding 
transportation system. The developer is required to mitigate for impacts attributable to the project, 
pursuant to TIA requirements in Section 16.106.080 and rough proportionality requirements in Section 
16.106.090. The determination of impact or effect and the scope of the impact study must be 
coordinated with the provider of the affected transportation facility.  

6. Electric Vehicle Conduits 

a. For proposed multi-family residential or mixed-use developments - proposed multi-family residential 
buildings with five or more residential dwelling units and proposed mixed-use buildings consisting of 
privately owned commercial space and five or more residential dwelling units, shall provide 
sufficient electrical service capacity, as defined in ORS 455.417, to accommodate no less than 40 
percent of all vehicle parking spaces. Dwelling units in townhouses are not included for purposes of 
determining the applicability of this regulation. 

b. For proposed Non-Residential Development under private ownership – Each building for a proposed 
non-residential development, under private ownership, shall provide electrical service capacity at no 
less than 20 percent of the vehicle parking spaces in the garage or parking area for the building. 
Fractional numbers derived from a calculation of the vehicle parking spaces must be rounded up to 
the nearest whole number. 

7. The proposed commercial, Multi-Family dwelling, institutional or mixed-use development is oriented to 
the pedestrian and bicycle, and to existing and planned transit facilities. Urban design standards 
include the following:  

a. Primary, front entrances are located and oriented to the street, and have significant articulation 
and treatment, via facades, porticos, arcades, porches, portal, forecourt, or stoop to identify the 
entrance for pedestrians. Additional entrance/exit points for buildings, such as a postern, are 
allowed from secondary streets or parking areas.  

b. Buildings are located adjacent to and flush to the street, subject to landscape corridor and 
setback standards of the underlying zone.  

c. The architecture of buildings are oriented to the pedestrian and designed for the long term and 
be adaptable to other uses. Aluminum, vinyl, and T-111 siding are prohibited. Street facing 
elevations have windows, transparent fenestration, and divisions to break up the mass of any 
window. Roll up and sliding doors are acceptable. Awnings that provide a minimum 3 feet of 
shelter from rain are required unless other architectural elements are provided for similar 
protection, such as an arcade.  

d. Multi-family development requires a minimum of 15 percent of the area of the primary building 
elevation adjacent to a public right-of-way to include windows and entrance doors, and for the 

139



side building elevation, adjacent to a public right-of-way or public accessway, a minimum of 10 
percent glazing of area is required.  

e. As an alternative to the standards in Section 16.90.020.D.6.a—d, the following Commercial
Design Review Matrix may be applied to any commercial, multi-family, institutional or mixed use
development (this matrix may not be utilized for developments within the Old Town Overlay). A
development must propose a minimum of 60 percent of the total possible points to be eligible
for exemption from the standards in Section 16.90.020.D.6.a—d. In addition, a development
proposing between 15,001 and 40,000 square feet of floor area, parking or seating capacity and
proposing a minimum of 80 percent of the total possible points from the matrix below may be
reviewed as a Type II administrative review, per the standards of Section 16.72.010.A.2.

*** 

COMMERCIAL DESIGN REVIEW MATRIX 

Design Criteria Possible Points 

0 1 2 3 4 
Parking and Loading Areas (13 Total Points Possible; Minimum 7 Points Required) 
Location of 
Parking 

Greater than 
50 percent of 
required 
parking is 
located 
between any 
building and a 
public street  

25—50 
percent of 
required 
parking is 
located 
between any 
building and a 
public street  

Less than 25 
percent of 
required 
parking is 
located 
between any 
building and a 
public street  

No parking is 
located between 
any building and 
a public street  

— 

Loading Areas Visible from 
public street 
and not 
screened 

Visible from 
public street 
and screened 

Not visible 
from public 
street 

— — 

Vegetation At least one 
"landscaped" 
island every 
13—15 
parking spaces 
in a row  

At least one 
"landscaped" 
island every 
10—12 
parking spaces 
in a row  

At least one 
"landscaped" 
island every 
8—9 parking 
spaces in a 
row 

At least one 
"landscaped" 
island every 6—7 
parking spaces in 
a row  

— 

Number of 
Parking 
Spaces7 

>120% 101—120% 100% <100% (i.e. joint 
use or multiple 
reduction) (1 
bonus)  

— 

Parking 
Surface 

Impervious Some pervious 
paving (10—
25%)  

Partially 
pervious 
paving (26—
50%) 

Mostly pervious 
paving (>50%)  

— 

140



Landscaping (24 Total Point Possible, Minimum 14 Points Required) 

  7Percent of minimum required. For development projects in the Climate Friendly and Equitable 
Communities frequent transit corridor, no parking is required therefore points are based on the 
percentage of stalls provided relative to the underlying parking standards.  

141



Chapter 16.94 - OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING 

16.94.010 General Requirements 

A. Off-Street Parking Required

No site shall be used for the parking of vehicles until plans are approved providing for off-street parking and
loading space as required by this Code. Any change in uses or structures that reduces the current off-street parking 
and loading spaces provided on site, or that increases the need for off-street parking or loading requirements shall 
be unlawful and a violation of this Code, unless additional off-street parking or loading areas are provided in 
accordance with Section 16.94.020, or unless a variance from the minimum or maximum parking standards is 
approved in accordance with Chapter 16.84 Variances.  

B. Deferral of Improvements

Off-street parking and loading spaces shall be completed prior to the issuance of occupancy permits, unless
the City determines that weather conditions, lack of available surfacing materials, or other circumstances beyond 
the control of the applicant make completion impossible. In such circumstances, security equal to one hundred 
twenty five (125) percent of the cost of the parking and loading area is provided the City. "Security" may consist of 
a performance bond payable to the City, cash, certified check, or other assurance of completion approved by the 
City. If the installation of the parking or loading area is not completed within one (1) year, the security may be used 
by the City to complete the installation.  

C. Options for Reducing the Required Parking Spaces

1. Two (2) or more uses or, structures on multiple parcels of land may utilize jointly the same parking and
loading spaces when the peak hours of operation do not substantially overlap, provided that
satisfactory evidence is presented to the City, in the form of deeds, leases, or contracts, clearly
establishing the joint use.

a. Within residential, commercial, institutional and public, or industrial zones, shared parking may
be provided on lots that are within two thousand (2,000) feet of the property line of the use to
be served.

b. Shared parking is allowed if the application can show that the combined peak use is available by a
parking study that demonstrates:

(1) There is a sufficient number of parking spaces to accommodate the requirements of the
individual businesses; or

(2) That the peak hours of operation of such establishments do not overlap, and

(3) That an exclusive permanent easement over a delineated area has been granted for
parking space use.

2. Mixed use projects are developments where a variety of uses occupies a development project or
complex. For example, an eating establishment, professional office building and movie theater are all
components of a mixed use site. It does not include a secondary use within a primary use such as an
administrative office associated with a retail establishment. In mixed-use projects, the required
minimum vehicle parking shall be determined using the following formula:

a. Primary use: i.e. that with the largest proportion of total floor area within the development at
one hundred (100) percent of the minimum vehicle parking required for that use.

b. Secondary Use: i.e. that with the second largest percentage of total floor area within the
development, at ninety (90) percent of the vehicle parking required for that use.

c. Subsequent use or uses, at eighty (80) percent of the vehicle parking required for that use.

142



3. Parking reduction is allowed with development that provides solar panels or wind power capacity, car-
sharing parking spaces, electric-vehicle parking spaces, and housing units that are fully accessible to
people with mobility disabilities as defined in Section 16.94.020.B(6).

D. Prohibited Uses

Required parking, loading and maneuvering areas shall not be used for long-term storage or sale of vehicles
or other materials, and shall not be rented, leased or assigned to any person or organization not using or 
occupying the building or use served.  

E. Location

1. Residential off-street parking spaces:

a. Garages and carports are not required for residential developments.

b. If garages and carports are proposed, the garage and carport parking space(s) shall count as off-
street parking.

c. Residential off-street parking spaces can be shared per Section 16.94.010.C.1.a.

d. If all proposed parking is off-site, off-site parking for people with disabilities must be located
within the shortest possible distance of an accessible entrance via an accessible path and no
greater than 200 feet from that entrance.

2. For other non-residential uses, required off-street parking spaces may include adjacent on-street
parking spaces, nearby public parking and shared parking located within 2,000 feet of the use. The
distance from the parking, area to the use shall be measured from the nearest parking space to a
building entrance, following a sidewalk or other pedestrian route. The right to use private off-site
parking must be evidenced by a recorded deed, lease, easement, or similar written notarized letter or
instrument.

3. Vehicle parking is allowed only on improved parking shoulders that meet City standards for public
streets, within garages, carports and other structures, or on driveways or parking lots that have been
developed in conformance with this code. Specific locations and types of spaces (car pool, compact,
etc.) for parking shall be indicated on submitted plans and located to the side or rear of buildings
where feasible.

a. Any new development with more than fifty (50) employees shall include preferential spaces for
carpool/vanpool designation. Carpool and vanpool parking spaces shall be located closer to the
main employee entrance than all other parking spaces with the exception of ADA parking spaces.
Carpool/vanpool spaces shall be clearly marked as reserved for carpool/vanpool only.

b. Existing development may redevelop portions of designated parking areas for multi-modal
facilities (transit shelters, park and ride, and bicycle parking), subject to meeting all other
applicable standards, including minimum space standards.

c. In applying subsections a and b above, access for emergency vehicles must be retained and
adequate parking for truck loading should be considered.

4. Any new development that includes more than one-half acre of new off-street surface parking on a lot
or parcel shall provide one of the provisions below.  The new surface parking area shall be measured
based on the perimeter of all new off-street spaces, maneuvering lanes, and maneuvering areas,
including driveways and drive aisles.

143



a. Installation of solar panels with a generation capacity of at least 0.5 kilowatt per new parking 
space. Panels may be located anywhere on the property. In lieu of installing solar panels on site, 
the developer may pay $1,500 per new parking space in the development into a city fund dedicated 
to equitable solar or wind energy development or a fund at the Oregon Department of Energy 
designated for such purpose; or 

b.  Actions to comply with Green Energy Technology per OAR 330-135-0010; or 

c.  Tree canopy covering at least 40 percent of the new parking lot area at maturity but no more than 
15 years after planting.  

5.  Any new development that includes more than one-half acre of new surface parking on a lot or parcel 
shall provide either trees along driveways or a minimum of 30 percent tree canopy coverage over 
parking areas. Developments are not required to provide trees along drive aisles. The tree spacing and 
species planted must be designed to maintain a continuous canopy, except when interrupted by 
driveways, drive aisles, and other site design considerations; and 

6. Provisions under subsections 4 and 5 above, the following shall apply: 

a. Development of a tree canopy plan shall be done in coordination with the local electric utility, 
including pre-design, design, building, and maintenance phases.  

b. Trees must be planted and maintained to maximize their root health and chances for survival, 
including having ample high-quality soil, space for root growth, and reliable irrigation according to the 
needs of the species. Trees should be planted in continuous trenches where possible. The minimum 
standards for planting and tree care no lower than the current American National Standards Institute 
A300 standards. 

7.     Conversion and redevelopment of underutilized parking areas for other uses is allowed. 

The City may allow the development of underused parking areas for uses permitted in the applicable 
zone. Underutilized shall mean any portion of the parking area that remains mostly vacant throughout 
most of the year (excluding special events or peak periods). A study shall accompany any request for 
site plan review Land Use applications. The study shall demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the City, that 
the elimination of the existing parking will have no detrimental effects, that cannot be mitigated by 
the applicant, on the property or sounding properties. This includes, but is not limited to, the 
possibility that the elimination of parking areas may shift the need for parking onto neighboring 
properties or cause any other negative impacts to surrounding properties. 

8.  Any new development that includes more than one-half acre of new off-street surface parking on a lot 
or parcel shall meet pedestrian walkway standards per Section 16.96.020 or 16.96.030. 

 

F. Marking  

All parking, loading or maneuvering areas shall be clearly marked and painted. All interior drives and access 
aisles shall be clearly marked and signed to show the direction of flow and maintain vehicular and pedestrian 
safety.  

G. Surface and Drainage  

1. All parking and loading areas shall be improved with a permanent hard surface such as asphalt, 
concrete or a durable pervious surface. Use of pervious paving material is encouraged and preferred 
where appropriate considering soils, location, anticipated vehicle usage and other pertinent factors.  

2. Parking and loading areas shall include storm water drainage facilities approved by the City Engineer or 
Building Official.  

H. Repairs  

144



Parking and loading areas shall be kept clean and in good repair. Breaks in paved surfaces shall be repaired. 
Broken or splintered wheel stops shall be replaced. Painted parking space boundaries and directional symbols shall 
be maintained in a readable condition.  

I. Parking and Loading Plan  

An off-street parking and loading plan, drawn to scale, shall accompany requests for building permits or site 
plan approvals. A parking and loading plan is not required for all residential housing types, except for Multi-family, 
on residential lots in a recorded subdivision. The plan shall show but not be limited to:  

1. Delineation of individual parking and loading spaces and dimensions.  

2. Circulation areas necessary to serve parking and loading spaces.  

3. Location of accesses to streets, alleys and properties to be served, and any curb cuts.  

4. Landscaping as required by Chapter 16.92.  

5. Grading and drainage facilities.  

6. Signing and bumper guard specifications.  

7. Bicycle parking facilities as specified in Section 16.94.020.C.  

8. Parking lots more than one (1) acre in size shall provide street-like features including curbs, sidewalks, 
and street trees or planting strips.  

J. Parking Districts  

The City may establish a parking district (i.e., permits or signage) in residential areas in order to protect 
residential areas from spillover parking generated by adjacent commercial, employment or mixed-use areas, or 
other uses that generate a high demand for parking. The district request shall be made to the City Manager, who 
will forward a recommendation to the City Council for a decision.  

K. Structured parking and on-street parking are exempt from the parking space maximums in Section 
16.94.020.A.  

L. Commercial Uses 

Parking spaces for rented or leased commercial uses shall be unbundled per Title 5.36.    

 

(Ord. No. 2021-010 , § 2, 12-7-2021; Ord. No. 2014-012, § 3, 7-17-2014; Ord. No. 2012-008, § 2, 7-17-2012; Ord. 
No. 2010-015, § 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. 2006-021; 2000-2001, § 3; Ord. 2000-2001, § 3; Ord. 86-851, § 3) 

16.94.020 Off-Street Parking Standards 

A. Generally  

Where square feet are specified, the area measured shall be the gross building floor area primary to the 
functioning of the proposed use. Where employees are specified, persons counted shall be those working on the 
premises, including proprietors, during the largest shift at peak season. Fractional space requirements shall be 
counted as a whole space. The Review Authority may determine alternate off - street parking and loading 
requirements for a use not specifically listed in this Section based upon the requirements of comparable uses. Per 
OAR 660-012-0440 Parking Reform Near Transit Corridors no off-street parking is required for developments on a 
lot or parcel that includes lands within one-half (1/2) mile of a frequent transit corridor. Per OAR 660-012-0435 
Climate Friendly Areas, no off-street parking is required within the Sherwood Town Center and one-quarter mile of 
the area (see CFEC Parking Delineated Area Map). 

 

145



Table 1: Parking Standards for lots or parcels not within the CFEC Parking Delineated Area 
(Metro spaces are based on 1 per 1,000 sq ft of gross leasable area; ADU standards are per OAR Division 46 

 Minimum Parking 
Standard  

Maximum Permitted 
Parking Zone A1  

Maximum Permitted 
Parking Zone B2  

Accessory Dwelling Unit  None  None  None  
Single-Family detached 
and manufactured home 
on lot3  

1 per dwelling unit  None  None  

Duplex  1 space per dwelling unit 
(total of 2 per duplex)  

None  None  

Triplex     
 • Lot area less than 
3,000 SF  

1 space total  None  None  

 • Lot area equal to or 
greater than 3,000 SF and 
less than 5,000 SF  

2 spaces total  None  None  

 • Lot area equal to or 
greater than 5,000 SF  

3 spaces total  None  None  

Quadplex     
 • Lot area less than 
3,000 SF  

1 space total  None  None  

 • Lot area equal to or 
greater than 3,000 SF and 
less than 5,000 SF  

2 spaces total  None  None  

 • Lot area equal to or 
greater than 5,000 SF and 
less than 7,000 SF  

3 spaces total  None  None  

 • Lot area equal to or 
greater than 7,000 SF  

4 spaces total  None  None  

Townhome  1 space per unit  None  None  
Cottage Cluster  1 space per unit  None  None  
Multi-Family dwelling4  1 per unit  None  None  
Hotel or motel  1 per room  None  None  
Boarding house  None  None  None  
General retail or personal 
service  

4.1 (244 sf)  5.1  6.2  

Vehicle sales, nursery  4.1  5.1  6.2  
Furniture/appliance store  4.1  5.1  6.2  
Tennis racquetball court  1.0  1.3  1.5  
Golf course  None  None  None  
Sports club/recreation 
facility  

4.3 (233 sf)  5.4  6.5  

General office  2.7 (370 sf)  3.4  4.1  
Bank with drive-thru  4.3 (233 sf)  5.4  6.5  
Eating or drinking 
establishment  

15.3 (65 sf)  19.1  23.0  

Fast food drive-thru  9.9 (101 sf)  12.4  14.9  
Movie theater  0.3 per seat  0.4  0.5  
Child Care Facility as 
defined in ORS 329A.250 

None  None  None  

146



Elementary and junior 
high  

None  None  None  

High school and college  0.2 per student + teacher  0.3  0.3  
Places of worship  0.5 per seat  0.6  0.8  
Nursing home  None  None  None  
Library  None  None  None  
Single-room occupancy 
housing 

None None None 

Residential units smaller 
than 750 square feet 

None None None 

Affordable Units as 
defined in OAR 660-039-
0010 

None None None 

Facilities for people with 
disabilities as defined in 
ORS 443.400 

None None None 

Public supported housing 
as defined in ORS 456.250 

None None None 

Domestic Violence, 
Emergency and 
Transitional Shelters 

None None None 

Industrial  1.6  None  None  
Warehouse (gross square 
feet; parking ratios apply 
to warehouses 150,000 
gsf or greater)  

0.3  0.4  0.5  

 
1  Parking Zone A reflects the maximum number of permitted vehicle parking spaces allowed for each listed land 
use. Parking Zone A areas include those parcels that are located within one-quarter (¼) mile walking distance of 
bus transit stops, one-half (½) mile walking distance of light rail station platforms, or both, or that have a greater 
than twenty-minute peak hour transit service.  
2  Parking Zone B reflects the maximum number of permitted vehicle parking spaces allowed for each listed land 
use. Parking Zone B areas include those parcels that are located at a distance greater than one-quarter (¼) mile 
walking distance of bus transit stops, one-half (½) mile walking distance of light rail station platforms, or both.  
3  If the street on which the house has direct access does not permit on-street parking or is less than twenty-eight 
(28) feet wide, two (2) off-street parking spaces are required per single-family-detached dwelling (includes a 
manufactured home on an individual lot) if the abutting street is twenty-eight (28) feet or wider, one (1) standard 
(9 ft. × 20 ft.) parking space is required.  
4  Visitor parking in residential developments: Multi-Family dwelling units with more than ten (10) required 
parking spaces shall provide an additional fifteen (15) percent of the required number of parking spaces for the use 
of guests of the residents of the development. The spaces shall be centrally located or distributed throughout the 
development. Required bicycle parking facilities shall also be centrally located within or evenly distributed 
throughout the development.  

B. Dimensional and General Configuration Standards  

1. Dimensions For the purpose of this Chapter, a "parking space" means a stall nine (9) feet in width and 
twenty (20) feet in length. Up to twenty five (25) percent of required parking spaces may have a 
minimum dimension of eight (8) feet in width and eighteen (18) feet in length so long as they are 
signed as compact car stalls.  

147



2. Layout  

Parking space configuration, stall and access aisle size shall be of sufficient width for all vehicle turning 
and maneuvering. Groups of more than four (4) parking spaces shall be served by a driveway so as to 
minimize backing movements or other maneuvering within a street, other than an alley. All parking 
areas shall meet the minimum standards shown in the following table and diagram.  

 
Table 2: Minimum Parking Dimension Requirements 
One-Way Driving Aisle (Dimensions in Feet)  

 A  B  C  D  E  F  G  H  J  
45º  8.0  16.5  13.0  11.3  46.0  3.0  2.5  51.0  

9.0  18.5  12.0  12.7  49.0  3.0  2.5  54.0  
60º  8.0  17.0  18.0  9.2  52.0  3.0  2.5  57.0  

9.0  19.5  16.0  10.4  55.0  3.0  2.5  60.0  
75º  8.0  16.5  26.0  8.3  59.0  3.0  3.0  65.0  

9.0  19.0  23.0  9.3  61.0  3.0  3.0  67.0  
90º  8.0  18.0  26.0  8.0  56.0  3.0  3.0  62.0  

9.0  20.0  24.0  9.0  58.0  3.0  3.0  64.0  
 

Table 3: Two-Way Driving Aisle 
(Dimensions in Feet)  

 A  B  C  D  E  F  G  H  J  
45º  8.0  16.5  24.0  11.3  57.0  3.0  2.5  62.0  

9.0  18.5  24.0  12.7  61.0  3.0  2.5  66.0  
60º  8.0  17.0  24.0  9.2  58.0  3.0  2.5  63.0  

9.0  19.5  24.0  10.4  63.0  3.0  2.5  68.0  
75º  8.0  16.5  26.0  8.3  59.0  3.0  3.0  65.0  

9.0  19.0  24.0  9.3  62.0  3.0  3.0  68.0  
90º  8.0  18.0  26.0  8.0  56.0  3.0  3.0  62.0  

9.0  20.0  24.0  9.0  58.0  3.0  3.0  64.0  
 

148



3. Wheel Stops  

a. Parking spaces along the boundaries of a parking lot or adjacent to interior landscaped areas or 
sidewalks shall be provided with a wheel stop at least four (4) inches high, located three (3) feet 
back from the front of the parking stall as shown in the above diagram.  

b. Wheel stops adjacent to landscaping, bio-swales or water quality facilities shall be designed to 
allow storm water runoff.  

c. The paved portion of the parking stall length may be reduced by three (3) feet if replaced with 
three (3) feet of low lying landscape or hardscape in lieu of a wheel stop; however, a curb is still 
required. In other words, the traditional three-foot vehicle overhang from a wheel stop may be 
low-lying landscaping rather than an impervious surface.  

4. Service Drives  

Service drives shall be clearly and permanently marked and defined through use of rails, fences, walls, 
or other barriers or markers, and shall have minimum vision clearance area formed by the intersection 
of the driveway center line, the street right-of-way line, and a straight line joining said lines through 
points fifteen (15) feet from their intersection.  

5. Credit for On-Street Parking  

a. On-Street Parking Credit. Except for residential uses, the amount of off-street parking required 
shall be reduced by one (1) off-street parking space for every on-street parking space adjacent to 
the development. On-street parking shall follow the established configuration of existing on-
street parking, except that angled parking may be allowed for some streets, where permitted by 
City standards.  

b. The following constitutes an on-street parking space:  

(1) Parallel parking, each twenty-four (24) feet of uninterrupted curb;  

(2) Forty-five (45)/sixty (60) degree diagonal, each with ten (10) feet of curb;  

(3) Ninety (90) degree (perpendicular) parking, each with eight (8) feet of curb;  

(4) Curb space must be connected to the lot which contains the use;  

(5) Parking spaces that would not obstruct a required clear vision area, nor any other parking 
that violates any law or street standard; and;  

(6) On-street parking spaces credited for a specific use may not be used exclusively by that 
use, but shall be available for general public use at all times. No signs or actions limiting 
general public use of on-street spaces is permitted.  

6. Reduction in Required Parking Spaces  

a. Developments utilizing Engineered storm water bio-swales or those adjacent to environmentally 
constrained or sensitive areas may reduce the amount of required parking spaces by ten (10) 
percent when twenty-five (25) through forty-nine (49) parking spaces are required, fifteen (15) 
percent when fifty (50) and seventy-four (74) parking spaces are required and twenty (20) percent 
when more than seventy-five (75) parking spaces are required, provided the area that would have 
been used for parking is maintained as a habitat area or is generally adjacent to an environmentally 
sensitive or constrained area.  

b. Solar Panels or Wind Power - developments utilizing solar panels or wind power may reduce the 
amount of required parking spaces by one (1) parking space when three kilowatts of capacity in 
solar panels or wind power is proposed to be provided in a development. 

149



c.  Car-Sharing – developments utilizing car-sharing parking may reduce the amount of required 
parking spaces by one (1) off-street parking space for each dedicated car-sharing parking space in a 
development. Dedicated car-sharing parking spaces shall count as spaces for parking mandates. 

d. Electric Vehicle Charging Station – developments that provide electric vehicle charging station may 
reduce the amount of required parking spaces by two (2) off-street parking spaces for every electric 
vehicle charging station provided in a development. Parking spaces that include electric vehicle 
charging while an automobile is parked shall count towards parking mandates. 

e. Fully Accessible Parking – developments utilizing this provision may reduce one (1) off-street 
parking space for every two units in a development above minimum requirements that are fully 
accessible to people with mobility disabilities. 

f. Any reductions under Section 16.94.020.B.6 (a-e) above, shall be cumulative and not capped. 

 

7. Parking Location and Shared Parking  

Owners of off-street parking facilities may post a sign indicating that all parking on the site is available 
only for residents, customers and/or employees, as applicable.  

C. Bicycle Parking Facilities  

1. General Provisions  

a. Applicability. Bicycle parking spaces shall be provided for new development, changes of use, and 
major renovations, defined as construction valued at twenty-five (25) percent or more of the 
assessed value of the existing structure.  

b. Types of Spaces. Bicycle parking facilities shall be provided in terms of short-term bicycle parking 
and long-term bicycle parking. Short-term bicycle parking is intended to encourage customers 
and other visitors to use bicycles by providing a convenient and readily accessible place to park 
bicycles. Long-term bicycle parking provides employees, students, residents, commuters, and 
others who generally stay at a site for at least several hours a weather-protected place to park 
bicycles.  

c. Minimum Number of Spaces. The required total minimum number of bicycle parking spaces for 
each use category is shown in Table 4, Minimum Required Bicycle Parking Spaces.  

d. Minimum Number of Long-term Spaces. If a development is required to provide eight (8) or more 
required bicycle parking spaces in Table 4, at least twenty-five (25) percent shall be provided as 
long-term bicycle with a minimum of one (1) long-term bicycle parking space.  

e. Multiple Uses. When there are two or more primary uses on a site, the required bicycle parking 
for the site is the sum of the required bicycle parking for the individual primary uses.  

2. Location and Design.  

a. General Provisions  

(1) Each space must be at least two (2) feet by six (6) feet in area, be accessible without 
moving another bicycle, and provide enough space between the rack and any obstructions 
to use the space properly.  

(2) There must be an aisle at least five (5) feet wide behind all required bicycle parking to allow 
room for bicycle maneuvering. Where the bicycle parking is adjacent to a sidewalk, the 
maneuvering area may extend into the right-of-way.  

(3) Lighting. Bicycle parking shall be at least as well lit as vehicle parking for security.  

150



(4) Reserved Areas. Areas set aside for bicycle parking shall be clearly marked and reserved for 
bicycle parking only.  

(5) Bicycle parking in the Old Town Overlay District can be located on the sidewalk within the 
right-of-way. A standard inverted "U shaped" or staple design is appropriate. Alternative, 
creative designs are strongly encouraged.  

(6) Hazards. Bicycle parking shall not impede or create a hazard to pedestrians. Parking areas 
shall be located so as to not conflict with vision clearance standards.  

b. Short-term Bicycle Parking  

(1) Provide lockers or racks that meet the standards of this section.  

(2) Locate inside or outside the building within thirty (30) feet of the main entrance to the 
building or at least as close as the nearest vehicle parking space, whichever is closer.  

c. Long-term Bicycle Parking  

(1) Provide racks, storage rooms, or lockers in areas that are secure or monitored (e.g., visible 
to employees or customers or monitored by security guards).  

(2) Locate the outside bicycle parking spaces within one hundred (100) feet of the entrance 
that will be accessed by the intended users.  

(3) All of the spaces shall be covered.  

d. Covered Parking (Weather Protection)  

(1) When required, covered bicycle parking shall be provided in one (1) of the following ways: 
inside buildings, under roof overhangs or awnings, in bicycle lockers, or within or under 
other structures.  

(2) Where required covered bicycle parking is not within a building or locker, the cover must 
be permanent and designed to protect the bicycle from rainfall and provide seven-foot 
minimum overhead clearance.  

(3) Where required bicycle parking is provided in lockers, the lockers shall be securely 
anchored.  

Table 4: Minimum Required Bicycle Parking Spaces 

Use Categories  Minimum Required Spaces  
Residential Categories 
Household living  Multi-dwelling — 2 or 1 per 10 auto spaces.  

All other residential structure types — None  
Group living  1 per 20 auto spaces  
Commercial Categories 
Retail sales/service office  2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces, whichever is greater  
Drive-up vehicle servicing  None  
Vehicle repair  None  
Commercial parking facilities, commercial, outdoor 
recreation, major event entertainment  

4 or 1 per 20 auto spaces, whichever is greater  

Self-service storage  None  
Industrial Categories 
Industrial  2 or 1 per 40 spaces, whichever is greater  
Public and Institutional Categories 
Park and ride facilities  2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces  

151



Community service essential service providers parks 
and open areas  

2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces, whichever is greater  

Schools  High schools — 4 per classroom  
 Middle schools — 2 per classroom  
 Grade schools — 2 per 4th & 5th grade classroom  
Colleges, medical centers, religious institutions, 
daycare uses  

2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces whichever is greater  

 

(Ord. No. 2022-004 , § 2, 6-13-2022; Ord. No. 2021-010 , § 2, 12-7-2021; Ord. No. 2018-007, § 2, 10-2-2018; Ord. 
No. 2015-003, § 2, 3-17-2015; Ord. No. 2014-012, § 3, 7-17-2014; Ord. No. 2012-008, § 2, 7-17-2012; Ord. No. 
2010-015, § 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. 2006-021; 2005-009 § 8; Ord. 2000-2001 § 3; Ord. 86-851 § 3) 

16.94.030 Off-Street Loading Standards 

A. Minimum Standards  

1. A driveway designed for continuous forward flow of passenger vehicles for the purpose of loading and 
unloading passengers shall be located on the site of any school, or other public meeting place, which is 
designed to accommodate more than twenty five (25) persons at one time.  

2. The minimum loading area for non-residential uses shall not be less than ten (10) feet in width by 
twenty-five (25) feet in length and shall have an unobstructed height of fourteen (14) feet.  

3. Multiple uses on the same parcel or adjacent parcels may utilize the same loading area if it is shown in 
the development application that the uses will not have substantially overlapping delivery times.  

4. The following additional minimum loading space is required for buildings in excess of twenty thousand 
(20,000) square feet of gross floor area:  

a. Twenty thousand (20,000) to fifty (50,000) sq. ft. - five hundred (500) sq. ft.  

b. Fifty (50,000) sq. ft. or more - seven hundred fifty (750) sq. ft.  

B. Separation of Areas  

Any area to be used for the maneuvering of delivery vehicles and the unloading or loading of materials shall 
be separated from designated off-street parking areas and designed to prevent the encroachment of delivery 
vehicles onto off-street parking areas or public streets. Off-street parking areas used to fulfill the requirements of 
this Chapter shall not be used for loading and unloading operations.  

C. Exceptions and Adjustments.  

The review authority, through Site Plan Review, may approve loading areas within a street right-of-way in the 
Old Town Overlay District when all of the following conditions are met:  

1. Short in duration (i.e., less than one (1) hour);  

2. Infrequent (less than three (3) operations occur daily between 5:00 a.m. and 12:00 a.m. or all 
operations occur between 12:00 a.m. and 5:00 a.m. at a location that is not adjacent to a residential 
zone);  

3. Does not unreasonably obstruct traffic; [or] Does not obstruct traffic during peak traffic hours;  

4. Does not obstruct a primary emergency response route; and  

5. Is acceptable to the applicable roadway authority.  

(Ord. No. 2014-012, § 3, 7-17-2014; Ord. No. 2012-008, § 2, 7-17-2012; Ord. No. 2010-015, § 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. 
No. 2009-005, § 2, 6-2-2009; Ord. 86-851, § 3) 

152



Chapter 16.140 - PARKS, TREES AND OPEN SPACES 

16.140.010 Purpose  
This Chapter is intended to assure the provision of a system of public and private recreation and open space 

areas and facilities consistent with this Code and applicable portions of the City's adopted Comprehensive Plan. 
The standards of this section do not supersede the open space requirements of a Planned Unit Development, 
found in Chapter 16.40 - Planned Unit Development (PUD).  

(Ord. No. 2023-002 , § 2, 3-7-2023; Ord. No. 2011-009, § 2, 7-19-2011; Ord. 2006-021; 91-922, § 3) 

 
***

16.140.070 Trees on Property Subject to Certain Land Use Applications 

A. Generally  

The purpose of this Section is to establish processes and standards which will minimize cutting or destruction 
of trees and woodlands within the City. This Section is intended to help protect the scenic beauty of the City; to 
retain a livable environment through the beneficial effect of trees on air pollution, heat and glare, sound, water 
quality, and surface water and erosion control; to encourage the retention and planting of tree species native to 
the Willamette Valley and Western Oregon; to provide an attractive visual contrast to the urban environment, and 
to sustain a wide variety and distribution of viable trees and woodlands in the community over time.  

*** 

 

D. Retention requirements  

1. Trees may be considered for removal to accommodate the development including buildings, 
parking, walkways, grading etc., provided the development satisfies of D.2 or D.3, below.  

2. Required Tree Canopy - All Residential Developments subject to Type II—IV land use review.  

Each net development site shall provide a variety of trees to achieve a minimum total tree canopy of 
40 percent. The canopy percentage is based on the expected mature canopy of each tree by using the 
equation πr2 to calculate the expected square footage of canopy for each tree. The expected mature 
canopy is counted for each tree regardless of an overlap of multiple tree canopies.  

The canopy requirement can be achieved by retaining existing trees or planting new trees. Required 
street trees can be used toward the total on site canopy required to meet this standard. The expected 
mature canopy spread of the new trees will be counted toward the needed canopy cover. A certified 
arborist or other qualified professional shall provide the estimated tree canopy of the proposed trees 
to the planning department for review.  

3. Required Tree Canopy - Non-Residential and Multi-Family Dwelling Developments  

a.    Each net development site shall provide a variety of trees to achieve a minimum total tree canopy 
of 30 percent. The canopy percentage is based on the expected mature canopy of each tree by 
using the equation πr2 to calculate the expected square footage of each tree. The expected mature 
canopy is counted for each tree even if there is an overlap of multiple tree canopies.  

b.    The canopy requirement can be achieved by retaining existing trees or planting new trees. 
Required landscaping trees can be used toward the total on site canopy required to meet this 
standard. The expected mature canopy spread of the new trees will be counted toward the 
required canopy cover. A certified arborist or other qualified professional shall provide an 

153



estimated tree canopy for all proposed trees to the planning department for review as a part of the 
land use review process.  

c.    Development standards for new surface parking lots more than half (½) acre in size, see Section 
16.94 Parking and Loading.  

 

  Residential  
(single family  
detached and  
middle housing  
developments)  
subject to  
Residential  
Design  
Checklist  
or Type I review  

Residential  
(single family  
detached and  
middle housing  
developments)  
subject to Type  
II—IV review  

Old Town & Infill  
developments  

Commercial,  
Industrial,  
Institutional  
Public and  
Multi-Family  
dwelling  

Canopy 
Requirement  

N/A  40%  N/A  30%  

Counted Toward the Canopy Requirement  

Street trees 
included in canopy 
requirement  

N/A  Yes  N/A  No  

Landscaping 
requirements 
included in canopy 
requirement  

N/A  N/A  N/A  Yes  

Existing trees onsite  N/A  Yes x2  N/A  Yes x2  

Planting new trees 
onsite  

N/A  Yes  N/A  Yes  

Mature Canopy in Square Feet Equation πr 2 or (3.14159*radius 2) (This is the calculation to measure the 
square footage of a circle.  
   
The Mature Canopy is given in diameter. In gardening and horticulture reference books, therefore to get the 
radius you must divide the diameter in half.  

Canopy Calculation Example: Pin Oak  
Mature canopy = 35'  
 
(3.14159* 17.52 ) = 962 square feet  

 

154



 
*** 
 
 

 

155



City of Sherwood 
CFEC Parking Delineated Area

¯

Legend

0 0.5 10.25
Miles

Per Oregon Administrative Rules: 660-012-0440 & 660-012-0435

CFEC Parking Mandates 

TriMet Route (Line 94)

Sherwood Town Center Plan Area 

Sherwood City Limits

Sherwood Taxlots

156

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Langer Farms Parkway 

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Pacific Highway

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Willamette  

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Sherwood Boulevard

Hamblinagostoh
Text Box
SW Tualatin Sherwood Boulevard   



Chapter 3.40 COMMERCIAL PARKING LOT LOCAL TAX 

3.40.010 Purpose 

A. The purpose of this chapter is to impose a tax on commercial parking lots in the City of
Sherwood.

B. The commercial parking lot tax imposed by this chapter follows OAR 660-012-
0445(1)(a)(D).

3.40.020 Definitions. 

The definitions contained in Chapter 3.40 of the Sherwood Municipal Code shall be fully 
applicable to this chapter except as may be expressly stated to the contrary herein. The 
following additional definitions shall apply throughout this chapter:  

A. "Commercial parking business" means the ownership, lease, operation, or
management of a commercial parking lot in which fees are charged for the act or
privilege of parking motor vehicles.

B. "Commercial parking lot" means a standalone, covered, or uncovered area used for
the purpose of parking motor vehicles for a fee. Parking associated with a retail or
personal service use in the same development.

C. "Parking tax" means the commercial parking tax imposed by this chapter.

D. "City Manager" means the City Manager of the City of Sherwood, or his or her
designee.

3.40.030 Parking tax imposed 

A. Pursuant to OAR 660-012-0445(1)(a)(D), there is imposed on every person a tax for the act
or privilege of parking a motor vehicle in a commercial parking lot within the City that is
operated by a commercial parking business. The privilege of parking includes the right to
park, whether or not the right is exercised.

B. The amount of the parking tax shall be equal to the parking fee multiplied by the parking
tax rate. Effective July 1, 2024, the parking tax rate is imposed at ten percent (0.10).

3.40.040 Measure of Tax: Parking Fee. 

A. The measure of the parking tax is the parking fee. Parking fee means the fee paid or due
for the act or privilege of parking a motor vehicle in a commercial parking lot.

157



B. It shall be conclusively presumed that the posted parking prices do not include the parking 
tax unless all the following conditions are met:  

1. The fee is advertised as including the tax or that the commercial parking business is 
paying the tax;  

2. The words "tax included" are stated immediately following the advertised or posted 
prices in print size at least half as large as the advertised or posted prices print size; 
and  

3. All advertised or posted parking prices and the words "tax included" are stated in the 
same medium, whether oral or visual, and if oral, in substantially the same inflection 
and volume. If these conditions are satisfied, then price lists, reader boards, and other 
price information mediums need not show separately the parking fee and the actual 
amount of commercial parking tax being collected.  

3.40.050 Exemptions from the Parking Tax. 

The following are exempt from the parking tax:  

A. General retail and commercial service parking lots associated with a development 
that has received land use approval.  

B. Mini-warehousing or self-storage 

3.40.060 Collection and Remittance Of Tax. 

A commercial parking business or person acting on its behalf shall collect the amount of 
the parking tax from the person paying the parking fee at the time payment is made. The 
parking tax shall be stated separately from the parking fee on all instruments evidencing the 
parking fee. The presumption is not overcome by any oral or written agreement between the 
parties.  

The person receiving payment of the parking fee shall remit the parking tax to the City 
Manager quarterly (April 15th, July 15th, October 15th, and January 15th). The parking tax shall be 
deemed held in trust by the person required to collect the same until remitted to the City 
Manager. Any person who fails to collect the parking tax, or who collects the parking tax but 
fails to remit the parking tax to the City Manager, shall be liable to the City for the amount of 
such tax. The commercial parking business or person acting on its behalf who fails to remit the 
full amount of the tax imposed and due by this chapter prior to delinquency shall pay a late 
payment penalty of ten percent of the amount of the portion of the tax that is unpaid as of the 
delinquency date, which penalty is owed in addition to the amount of the tax due. 

Such person shall, unless the remittance is made as required in this section, be guilty of a 
violation of this chapter whether such failure be the result of the person's own act or the result 
of acts or conditions beyond its control.  

158



3.40.070 Use Of Revenues. 

The proceeds of the tax imposed herein shall be used for transportation alternatives to 
drive-alone travel including active transportation options in accordance with OAR 660-012-
0445(1)(a)(D). To the extent permitted by applicable law the City may issue bonds, notes, or 
other evidence of indebtedness payable wholly or in part from the parking tax and may pledge 
and may apply such tax to the payment of principal of, interest on, and premium (if any) on 
such bonds, notes, or other evidence of indebtedness and to the payment of costs associated 
with them.  

3.40.080 Receipts To Transportation Fund. 

All receipts from the parking tax shall be placed in and segregated within the 
Transportation Fund. These receipts may be temporarily deposited or invested in such manner 
as may be lawful for the investment of City money and interest and other earnings shall be 
deposited in the Transportation Fund.  

 

159



Chapter 5.36 UNBUNDLED PARKING FOR COMMERCIAL LEASES 

5.36.010 Parking for rented or leased commercial uses. 

A. Parking for commercial uses

1. Unless commercial uses are listed as exempt in subsection 5.36.010.A.2, off-street parking
accessory to rented or leased commercial use spaces shall not be required in any new rental
or lease agreement. If parking is desired by the tenant, the fee for parking shall be listed as a
separate line item within the lease or shall be subject to a separate rental or lease agreement.

2. Exempt uses include:
a. Hotel and motels
b. Motor vehicle sales and services
c. Truck and bus yards
d. Mini-warehousing or self/auto storage
e. Vehicle fueling stations or car wash facilities

3. Market Rates for Comparable Local Off-Street Parking - the minimum unbundled parking
rates shall be no less than $50 per space per month.

160


	01  City Council Packet Cover 07.16.2024
	02  City Council Mtg Agenda 07.16.2024 - AMENDED
	03.1  06.18.2024 City Council Meeting Minutes AMENDED - DRAFT
	6. CITIZEN COMMENT:
	Sherwood resident Jim Claus came forward and stated he was starting the procedure on exhausting administrative remedies and reaching finality. He spoke on correspondence with state agencies, the Secretary of State’s office, and waste, fraud, and abuse...
	Sherwood resident Susan Claus came forward and stated she wished to comment on the agenda item under New Business, adopting the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). She referred to Cedar Brook Way improvements, Council goals, outside funding, and the URA. ...
	Mayor Rosener addressed the next agenda item.
	Mayor Rosener addressed the next agenda item.
	Record note: Due to a failure of the recording system, a portion of the June 18, 2024 City Council regular meeting was not recorded.
	8. NEW BUSINESS:
	Council discussion occurred and Council President Young asked that the plan be accessible.
	Mayor Rosener addressed the next agenda item and the City Recorder read aloud the public hearings statement.
	9. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C. Resolution 2024-048, Adopting the FY2024-25 budget of the City of Sherwood, making appropriations, imposing and categorizing taxes, and authorizing the City Manager to take such action necessary to carry out the adopted budget
	Finance Director Bodway outlined that the proposed resolution would adopt the 2024-2025 fiscal year budget for the City of Sherwood. He recapped that the Budget Committee received the budget message, reviewed the proposed budget, and heard public comm...
	MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT YOUNG TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2024-048, ADOPTING THE FY2024-25 BUDGET OF THE CITY OF SHERWOOD, MAKING APPROPRIATIONS, IMPOSING AND CATEGORIZING TAXES, AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO TAKE SUCH ACTION NECESSARY TO CARRY O...
	Mayor Rosener addressed the next agenda item.
	10. CITY MANAGER REPORT:
	City Manager Pro Tem Craig Sheldon reported that the city had held a joint press conference with EPA Region 10 representatives on June 18th sharing information on the $5 million EPA grant to clean up the tannery site. He reported city offices would be...
	Community Development Director Rutledge introduced Sean Conrad, the new Planning Manager and provided background. Mr. Conrad stated that he had been doing land use planning for 23 years in cities and counties in California, Washington, and Montana. He...
	Police Chief Ty Hanlon reported on new Police Department reserves and stated that the city now had four reserve officers. He reported that the official swearing in ceremony would be held on June 26th. City Manager Pro Tem Sheldon reported that there w...
	Mayor Rosener addressed the next agenda item.
	11. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS:
	Councilor Giles reported that the Library Advisory Board would not meet in June and provided an overview of upcoming library events. He reported that the Sherwood School District had held their budget meeting and he congratulated new graduates.
	Councilor Brouse reported that the Senior Advisory Board did not meet, and the Housing Advisory Committee would meet next week. She thanked city staff who had worked the Cruisin’ Sherwood event.
	Councilor Mays reported that the WRWC had met where they heard updates on the regional water project. He encouraged any Councilors and city staff interested in receiving a tour of the new water treatment plant to reach out to City Manager Pro Tem Shel...
	Councilor Scott requested new microphones for City Council meetings. He stated that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board currently had two openings and reported that they would interview the five applicants soon. He thanked HR Director Lydia McEvoy...
	Councilor Standke reported that the Planning Commission did not meet last week but would meet this week to hold a work session to discuss annexation policies. He congratulated 503 Uncorked on their 10th anniversary. He thanked city staff who had worke...
	Council President Young reported that KOIN news had recently highlighted city departments and spoke with Economic Development Manager Bruce Coleman. She reported that she had attended the joint press conference with the EPA and provided a recap of the...
	Mayor Rosener spoke on the EPA grant and his excitement for the tannery site cleanup. He reported he attended the Metro Policy Advisory Council meeting where Community Development Director Eric Rutledge and Senior Planner Joy Chang gave a presentation...
	12. ADJOURN:

	04  Resolution 2024-049 Appoint Jay Walmsley to Planning Comm - STAFF REPORT
	05  Resolution 2024-049 Appoint Jay Walmsley to Planning Comm - DRAFT
	APPOINTING JAY WALMSLEY TO THE SHERWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION

	06  Resolution 2024-050 Appoint Joe Tillotson to Planning Comm - STAFF REPORT
	07  Resolution 2024-050 Appoint Joe Tillotson to Planning Comm - DRAFT
	APPOINTING JOE TILLOTSON TO THE SHERWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION

	08  Resolution 2024-051 Reappoint Steve Munsterman to Parks and Rec Board - STAFF REPORT
	09  Resolution 2024-051 Reappoint Steve Munsterman to Parks and Rec Board - DRAFT
	10  Resolution 2024-052 Appoint James Booker to Parks & Rec Adv Board - STAFF REPORT
	11  Resolution 2024-052 Appoint James Booker to Parks & Rec Adv Board - DRAFT
	APPOINTING JAMES BOOKER TO THE SHERWOOD PARKS & RECREATION
	ADVISORY BOARD

	12  Resolution 2024-053 Appoint Tara Khodadadian to Parks & Rec Adv Board - STAFF REPORT
	13  Resolution 2024-053 Appoint Tara Khodadadian to Parks & Rec Adv Board - DRAFT
	APPOINTING TARA KHODADADIAN TO THE SHERWOOD PARKS & RECREATION
	ADVISORY BOARD

	13.1  Resolution 2024-055 Appoint Barbara Leitzinger to Parks & Rec Adv Board - STAFF REPORT
	13.2  Resolution 2024-055 Appoint Barbara Leitzinger to Park & Rec Adv Board - DRAFT
	APPOINTING BARBARA LEITZINGER TO THE SHERWOOD PARKS & RECREATION
	ADVISORY BOARD

	14  Resolution 2024-054 Adopt Ballot Title re Compensation - STAFF REPORT
	15  Resolution 2024-054 Adopt Ballot Title re Compensation - DRAFT
	16  Resolution 2024-054 Adopt Ballot Title re Compensation Ballot Title - EXH 1
	17  Resolution 2024-054 Adopt Ballot Title re Compensation Explan Statement - EXH 2
	18  Ordinance 2024-002 Amend Code Climate Friendly & Equitable Comm - STAFF REPORT
	The Sherwood Planning Commission held its first public hearing on April 9, 2024, took public testimony, considered the application (LU 2024-001 PA) and continued the hearing to May 14, 2024. One public testimony was received in opposition of the CFEC ...

	19  Ordinnace 2024-002 Amend Code Climate Friendly & Equitable Comm - Att to Staff Report
	LU 2024-001 Exhibits.pdf
	Exhibit A - Amendments.pdf
	Chapter_3.40_COMMERCIAL_PARKING_LOT_TAX 05.01.24.pdf
	Chapter 3.40 COMMERCIAL PARKING LOT LOCAL TAX
	3.40.010 Purpose
	3.40.020 Definitions.
	3.40.030 Parking tax imposed
	3.40.040 Measure of Tax: Parking Fee.
	3.40.050 Exemptions from the Parking Tax.
	3.40.060 Collection and Remittance Of Tax.
	3.40.070 Use Of Revenues.
	3.40.080 Receipts To Transportation Fund.


	Chapter_5.36_UNBUNDLED PARKING FOR COMMERCIAL LEASES 05.01.24.pdf
	Chapter 5.36 UNBUNDLED PARKING FOR COMMERCIAL LEASES


	Exhibit B - Amendments Clean.pdf
	Title 16
	ZONING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE
	Chapter 16.90 SITE PLANNING
	16.90.020 Site Plan Review

	Chapter 16.94 - OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING
	16.94.010 General Requirements
	16.94.020 Off-Street Parking Standards
	16.94.030 Off-Street Loading Standards
	16.140.010 Purpose
	16.140.070 Trees on Property Subject to Certain Land Use Applications


	Chapter_3.40_COMMERCIAL_PARKING_LOT_TAX 05.01.24 - CLEAN.pdf
	Chapter 3.40 COMMERCIAL PARKING LOT LOCAL TAX
	3.40.010 Purpose
	3.40.020 Definitions.
	3.40.030 Parking tax imposed
	3.40.040 Measure of Tax: Parking Fee.
	3.40.050 Exemptions from the Parking Tax.
	3.40.060 Collection and Remittance Of Tax.
	3.40.070 Use Of Revenues.
	3.40.080 Receipts To Transportation Fund.


	Chapter_5.36_UNBUNDLED PARKING FOR COMMERCIAL LEASES 05.01.24 - CLEAN.pdf
	Chapter 5.36 UNBUNDLED PARKING FOR COMMERCIAL LEASES




	20  Ordinance 2024-002 Amend Code Climate Friendly & Equitable Comm - DRAFT
	21  Ordinance 2024-002 Amend Code Climate Friendly & Equitable Comm - EXH 1
	Exhibit A - Amendments.pdf
	Chapter_3.40_COMMERCIAL_PARKING_LOT_TAX 05.01.24.pdf
	Chapter 3.40 COMMERCIAL PARKING LOT LOCAL TAX
	3.40.010 Purpose
	3.40.020 Definitions.
	3.40.030 Parking tax imposed
	3.40.040 Measure of Tax: Parking Fee.
	3.40.050 Exemptions from the Parking Tax.
	3.40.060 Collection and Remittance Of Tax.
	3.40.070 Use Of Revenues.
	3.40.080 Receipts To Transportation Fund.


	Chapter_5.36_UNBUNDLED PARKING FOR COMMERCIAL LEASES 05.01.24.pdf
	Chapter 5.36 UNBUNDLED PARKING FOR COMMERCIAL LEASES


	Exhibit B - Amendments Clean.pdf
	Title 16
	ZONING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE
	Chapter 16.90 SITE PLANNING
	16.90.020 Site Plan Review

	Chapter 16.94 - OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING
	16.94.010 General Requirements
	16.94.020 Off-Street Parking Standards
	16.94.030 Off-Street Loading Standards
	16.140.010 Purpose
	16.140.070 Trees on Property Subject to Certain Land Use Applications


	Chapter_3.40_COMMERCIAL_PARKING_LOT_TAX 05.01.24 - CLEAN.pdf
	Chapter 3.40 COMMERCIAL PARKING LOT LOCAL TAX
	3.40.010 Purpose
	3.40.020 Definitions.
	3.40.030 Parking tax imposed
	3.40.040 Measure of Tax: Parking Fee.
	3.40.050 Exemptions from the Parking Tax.
	3.40.060 Collection and Remittance Of Tax.
	3.40.070 Use Of Revenues.
	3.40.080 Receipts To Transportation Fund.


	Chapter_5.36_UNBUNDLED PARKING FOR COMMERCIAL LEASES 05.01.24 - CLEAN.pdf
	Chapter 5.36 UNBUNDLED PARKING FOR COMMERCIAL LEASES






